Public Document Pack

Scottish LOCAL REVIEW BODY

Borders
MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2018
COUNCIL

A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL
HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2018
at 10.00 am

J. J. WILKINSON,

Clerk to the Council,

10 September 2018

BUSINESS
1. Apologies for Absence.
2. Order of Business.
3. Declarations of Interest.
4. Consider request for review of refusal of application for erection of

dwellinghouse with associated access road, parking area and
combined entrance/layby on land west of Langton Birches, Duns.
18/00270/PPP. 18/00017/RREF.

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 3 -
14)
(b)  Decision Notice (Pages 15 -
16)
(c) Officer's Report (Pages 17 -
22)
(d)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 23 -
50)
(e) Consultation (Pages 51 -
52)
(f) List of Policies (Pages 53 -
60)
5. Consider request for review of refusal of application for change of use

from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective) at 52 Bank Street, Galashiels.
18/00398/FUL. 18/00020/RREF.

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 61 -
68)




(b)  Decision Notice (Pages 69 -

70)

(c) Officer's Report (Pages 71 -
76)

(d)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 77 -
92)

(e) Consultations (Pages 93 -
100)

() List of Policies (Pages 101 -
106)

6. Consider request for review of refusal of application for change of use

from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2) and external re-
decoration at 37 Bank Street, Galashiels. 18/00764/FUL.
18/00018/RREF.

Copies of the following papers attached:-

(@) Notice of Review (Pages 107 -
118)

(b)  Decision Notice (Pages 119 -
120)

(c)  Officer's Report (Pages 121 -
126)

(d)  Papers referred to in Officer's Report (Pages 127 -
172)

(e) Consultations (Pages 173 -
178)

(f) List of Policies (Pages 179 -
186)

7. Any Other Items Previously Circulated

8. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), S. Aitchison, A. Anderson,
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton, H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage and E. Small

Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling 01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk




Agenda Item 4a

g £ L 1 ¢ E N E E

HILLEND CLIFTONHILL EDNAM KELSO TDS 7QE 01573225070 07891690639 roygarch@icloud.com

1007 2018

HEAD OF CORPORATE ADMINISTRATION
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
REGIONAL HEADQUARTERS

NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS

TDé6 0SA

Dear Sirs
NOTICE OF REVIEW PLANNING APPLICATION NO 18/00270/PPP

| enclose a Notice of Review in connection with the Planning Application ne 18/00270/PPP together with
enclosures.

Please let me know if you require any further information.

Yours faithfully

R G LICENCE

Page 3



Notice of Review

Scottish

Borders
k‘\’L/I N

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {(SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)
Name [MRS CLARE FLEMING | Name [R.GLICENCE ARCHITECT |
Address [LANGTON BIRCHES DUNS | Address [HILLEND CLIFTONHILL KELSO |
Postcode [TD11 3HT | Postcode [[D5 7QE |

Contact Telephone 1

Contact Telephone 1M__l
Contact Telephcne 2

= et e o —
Fax No | e Fax No
E-mail* _:l E-mail* Faygarch@icloud.com |

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

Yes No

* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? v

Planning authority [SCOTTISH BOPRDERS COUNCIL |

Planning authority’s application reference number [18/00270/PPP |

Site address [LAND WEST OF LANGTON BIRCHES DUNS |

Description of proposed [PROPOSED ERECTION OF DWELLING HOUSE WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS ROAD,
development PARKING AREA AND COMBINED ENTRANCE LAYBAY

Date of application [13 03 2018 | Date of decision (if any) [13 04 2018 |

Page 1 of 4

Page 4



Notice of Review
Note. This notice must be served on the planning authorily within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1. Application for planning pemmission (including householder application)
Application for planning pemission in principle v
Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has been
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning
condition)

4.  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer v

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of
the application

3.  Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further informatian or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written
submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land which is the subject of the
review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

Further written submissions v

2.  One or more hearing sessions

v

3. Site inspection

4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure

Iif you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Yes No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? v
2  Isit possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? w2

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4

Page 5



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full. why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

IPOLICY HD2 OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The first reasons given for refusal was that the proposal would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the local development
plan.
This reason is refuted on the grounds that the location of the proposed house is within the garden ground of
Langton Birches which is bounded by a mature beech hedge and part of the small local housing group. The
efinition of a "housing group" according ta the Policy specifically includes the garden boundaries of the houses in
he group.
his proposed development would therefore form part of the existing housing group as the site is already part of the
roup by definition.
he refusal notice also refers to the proposed development as not reflecting the character of the building group and
leading to ribbon development along a public road.
This reason for refusal is also refuted as the existing building group consists of dwellings constructed on each side
f a public road which is precisely what the proposed house would be. The proposal simply follows the existing
lgattem of development.

IPOLICIES HD2 AND PMD2

The second reason for refusal concerns the proposed new entrance from the public road.

The Department of Roads has commented that the proposed layby which would allow shared access to the existing
house and the new house exceeds the recommended length for a standard layby. The officer has also stated that if
he layby could be reduced in length to 30 metres that the objection would be removed. An amended plan has been
prepared showing how this could be achieved. This plan is attached and should form part of this review.

DEPT &F RoaDS APPROVAL ATTACHED

Yes No
v v

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the
determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review,

Page 3 of 4
Page 6




Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice
of review and intend to rely on in support of your review.

IDRAWING NO CFPP02B

SUPPORTING STATEMENT FROM THE PLANNING APPLICATION

EAMAIL FROAM PEFPT ©Ff BoaADS OFFCER
AFFROVING AMENPED ENTRANCE LAYEY

Note. The planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
YOUr review:

¢’| Full completion of all parts of this form

¥ | Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

v'|  All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice fram that earlier
consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

Signed Date [0 o7 2Zo0\8

The Completed form should be returned to the Head of Corporate Administration, Scottish
Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA.

Page 4 of 4

Page 7



Ti12/2018 iCloud Mail

RE: PLANNING IN PRINCIPLE APPLICATION LANGTON BIRCHES
DUNS REF 18/00270/PPP

July 12, 2018 at 4:07 AM

=rom "Patterson, Keilh"

Hav
I can confirme the amended clan is acceptable ir principle

k=it

From: Ray Licence [maillo:raygarch@idoud.com]

Sent: 04 luly 2018 10:16

To: Pattersan, Keith

Subject: PLANNING IN PRINCIPLE APPLICATION LANGTON BIRCHES DUNS REF 18/00270/PPP

Keith

| have read your comments on the above application and amended my drawing to show a layby 30 m long with a combined
access for the existing house and the proposed new house,

| would be grateful il you coula canfirm that this will be acceptable or add any comments you might have and | will amend the
drawing agamn.

many thanks

Ray Licerce

R 2 SRR R R R SRS RS R R e L T T R R S S T TR A SN SR S g Sy g LY

This email and any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to copyright. Any
unauthorised use or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient please inform the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies from

your system.
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be those of Scottish Borders

Council.
Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing email is subject to regular

monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council under the provisions of the Freedom of
Information {Scutland} Act 2692 e T e st T T L LTI I

Page 8
hitps:/www.icloud.com/message/current/en-us/index.htmi#view?guid=message%3AINBOX%2F25918



R & L 1 € E N € E % =% B 1 7T E E

HILLEND CLIFTONHILL EDNAM KELSO TD5 7QE 01573225070 07891680639 ravgarch@icloud.com

PLANNING PERMISSION IN PRINCIPAL APPLICATION

ERECTION OF DWELLING HOUSE IN GARDEN AREA OF LANGTON BIRCHES DUNS

1.00 BACKGROUND

This statement is submitted in support of an application for planning consent in principal for a new
dwelling house in the garden area of an established dwelling house at Langton Birches Duns.

A previous application submitted in 2017 REF 17/01145/PPP was refused consent and this new
application has taken into account the objections raised and comments made in the planning
officers Part 3 report.

2.00 SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The following supporting statement lists comments on all matters raised in the objections to the
previous application and should be read in conjunction with the associated drawings and
photographs listed in the appendix

2,01 GENERAL

Mrs Fleming has lived in Langton Birches since its construction nearly thirtyfive years age and
now that her family has departed wishes to move to smaller more suitable accommodation. The
garden area at Langton Birches is extensive and the group of houses, of which Langton Birches
forms a part, is o well established local housing group in the Borders countryside.

The existing housing group is considered as a group of houses in the countryside including
gardens and boundary planting, note the group boundary shown on drawing no CFPPO1  Mrs
Fleming is a well established and respected local resident with interests in the local Church and
Healthcare and wishes to remain as close to heme as possible.

Her existing house was coriginally designed to include a large garden area to the west to
provide for future needs and that time has now arrived. My client’s current wishes are for o
smaller house with a minimal garden area and has the advantage that the proposed garden
area and boundary planting is already mature and established.

2.02 THE SITE

The attached drawing ref nos CFPPO1 and CFPPO2B show the location of the site and the site
plan with the existing dwelling, Langton Birches to the east boundary.

The site is bounded to the north by Crimson Hill a quiet little used country road linking Duns to
Gavinton and the proposed site boundary includes part of the existing garden ground to

Langton Birches.
The resulting site occupied by the existing house would have a road frontage of 48.5 M with
sufficient parking for two cars and an ample secluded garden area.

Page 9



The proposed site for the new dwelling would measure 113.58 M along the road frontage and
16 metres wide at i's widest point.

Contrary to comments made in the planning officer's report on the previous application there is
ample free area within the site boundary and established shrubs for the siting of a small house
to suit my client’s needs and for the necessary access road, parking and turning area for vehicles.
The remaining site area will provide ample garden space suitable for the size of dwelling to
be constructed.

Sufficient site analysis has been carried out to ensure that this can be accomplished and full
details would obviously be included with a full planning application in due course.

2.03 ACCESS
The existing house is accessed directly from Crimson Hill and it is intended that this be retained.

As objections have been raised to the formation of o new access the site plan drawing no
CFPPQO2 has been amended to show the proposed formation of a new layby incorporating the
existing access to Langtan Birches and the access to the proposed new house.

This should overcome the comments made by the community council and Department of Roads
and help to improve local road conditions and services in the area.

The sight lines in each direction from the revised proposal will meet the Department of Roads
requirements and are not restricted by the tree or hedge planting which are both set well back
from the road verge.

2.04 ENVIRONMENT

The proposed site is bounded to the north along the roadside with a wide grass verge planted
with a row of established trees and mature beech hedge which is maintained at 3.0 M high to
provide screening from the northerly winds.

The exfremities of the site to the east and west are screened with a mixture of mature trees and
shrubs and the south boundary along the agricultural field has a slightly raised banking and
fence with scattered trees and hedging, all well maintained.

The wide central part of the site has been maintained as a clear space for the location of the
proposed house and would provide ample space for a house with garage and parking space
for two cars.

The proposed site provides a secluded, sheltered location for a new dwelling which would have
minor visual impact from the public roadway and the existing house.

The proposed house would benefit from protection from northerly winds and weather and
benefit from the southerly aspect and heat gain from southerly facing roof areas and windows.
The site would allow a new house to be designed and located to provide privacy and shelter
for the occupant withaut affecting the privacy or access of the other properties in the local areq,
indeed the proposed house would be practically invisible from the public roadside and
neighbouring properties.

The proposed site is currently part of the garden area of Langton Birches and the boundary
trees and hedging to the site form a natural western boundary to the local housing group.

2.05 SERVICES

Services immediately available at the site include;

Public water supply

Scottish power electricity supply

British Telecom telephone and internet service

Surface water drainage will be installed on site to SUDS principles

Foul water drainage will be provided on site with a sewage treatment plant and soakaway
system.

Page 10



3.00 PLANNING POLICY

3.01
The following comments are made with reference to the current SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL

PLAN, Supplementary Planning Guidance on Mew Housing in the Borders Countryside.
The comments are made to show how this application is supported by and complies with the
Supplementary Planning Guidance notes and reference will be made to these in the text.

3.02
Scottish Planning policy 3 para 1.1 advises that the Planning Authority should promote the

efficient use of land and buildings and direct the majority of new developments towards sites
within existing setflements to make use of existing infrastructure and service capacity and reduce
energy consumption while ensuring the creation of quality residential environments.

This site will meet all of these requirements.

3.03

Scottish Planning Policy 15 advances policy in respect of small scale rural housing developments
including clusters and groups in close proximity fo settlements, replacement housing and plots on
which to build individually designed houses.

This site meets this requirement.

3.04

Planning advice note 72 Housing in the Countryside.

The purpose of the advice note is to create more opportunities for good quality rural housing
which respects Scottish landscapes and building traditions. The advice should not however be
seen as a constraint on Architects wishing to pursue innovative and carefully considered
contemporary design.

This application is one such opportunity and any design on this site would be a very carefully
considered design to comply with this policy.

3.05

2 HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE

This note lists standard criteria which should be met by any proposed new housing development
namely;

No adverse effect on the viability of a farming unit.

Satisfactory access and other read requirements

Satisfactory public or private water supply and drainage facilities.

No adverse effect on countryside amenity, landscape or nature conservation.

No adverse impact on oncient monuments, archaeological sites or on gardens or designed
landscapes in the Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes in Scotland.

Appropriate siting, design and materials in accordance with the relevant local plan policies.
The safeguarding of known mineral resources from sterilisation unless this is acceptable following
an assessment of the environmental implications.

All of these criteria would be met by the development of this site.

Page 11



2b BUILDING GROUPS

The note 2.b.1 states that a building group will be allowed to expand by 100% and that a
graup will normally consist of at least three dwelling units and that a group will be identifiable
by a sense of place which will be contributed to by natural boundaries such as water courses,
trees or enclosing landferm and man made boundories such as existing buildings, roads,
plantations or means of enclosure.

The prosed site meets of all of these requirements in that the existing building group comprises
five dwellings and the sense of place is established by the existing building and their natural
ond man made field and garden boundaries.

The note also emphasizes that any new development should not adversely impact on existing
properties and householders.

It has already been shown that the development of this site will have limited visual impact on
any of the existing dwellings and that the amenity of the existing householders would not be
affected adversely,

4.00 COMMENTS

4.01
This application for planning consent in principle complies with all aspects of the Supplementary
Planning Guidance notes with regard to location, services and other indicators given in the notes.

The siting of the proposed house ond amended access point is noted on the site development
plan.

4.02

With reference to the planning officer, Andrew Evans, recommendations in his report on the
previous application the following comments are made in italics

SITE HISTORY

Paragraph 2

The proposed dwelling would not reflect or respect the character of the houses within the existing
building group.

The existing building group is formed by houses built along the roadside and of mixed Architectural
character and design. The proposed house would add a balance to the current group by adding a
house to the south side of the road odjacent to Langton Birches.

Paragraph 3

The proposal would constitute an unacceptable over-development of the plot and that the
dwelling house could not be satisfactorily located on the application site.

We have carried out sufficient studies to ensure that a house of the size required by my client could
be accommodated on the site complete with associofed access road, parking and turning areas.
Complete details will be provided with o full plonning application in due course.

Page 12



4.03 POLICY PRINCIPLE/BUILDING GROUP

We note that it is agreed that numerically another dwelling could be accommodated within the
building group and note also the comment that most of the houses forming the group are on the
north side of the road. This group now needs a balance by the addition of a house on the south
side adjacent to Langton Birches and we would also note that under the terms of the council’s
definition of a housing group that garden areas and boundary planting are included in the
group.

This site including boundary planting to the garden area is port of the group, not remote from it
and the existing group would benefit from the addition of another dwelling in this location.

5.00 CONCLUSION

The recommendation for refusal of the previous application was based on two statements;

1 That the proposed development would not form part of or be well related to an existing
housing group, would not reflect the character of the building group and would lead to ribbon
development along o public road.

We believe we have shown that the building group includes the existing dwellings and their garden
areas and boundary freatment, the proposed dwelling would be sited well within this established
group boundary and as the houses forming the group are built in a row alongside the roadway the
addition of a further dwelling simply adds fo the established group in a similar way ond totally in
character with the established group pattern.

The definition of “ribbon development” relotes to the development of multiple dwellings on each
side of a road on greenfield sites and does simply not apply in this instance.

2 That the development would result in a proliferation of accesses and represent o further
access onto an unrestricted and unlit section of public road to the detriment of road safety

We have adjusted the access to the proposed house by adding o new layby to incorporate the
access points fo Langfon Birches and the proposed house. Although this narrow road is unresiricted
the vehicle speeds in the area are generclly low and the addition of one other small dwelling house
with a safe entrance ond exit with adequate sight lines will not make an oppreciable difference to
road safety in the local area.

6.00 APPENDIX
6.01
This statement should be read in conjunction with the drawing nos CFPPO1 and CFPPO2 which

are attached and with reference to the Scottish Borders Local Plan, Supplementary Planning
Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside December 2008.

Roy Licence

R G LICENCE ARCHITECT 21 02 2018

Page 13



FaRMm FIELD

e
&
E 2

Oakric
AR5

|
OEASS VERGE PROPEISED MEW LAYBY

300 L.‘. o
PURBLC ROLAD PROPCISED ACCESS POINT T 100.2m
+ 101.3m

TD ZROPOIED HEW HOUSE ANE LANGTON BRCHES |
EXIETING BEECH HEDGING TO ROAD BOUNDARY

SIGHT LINES SIGHT LIMES o
GRASS VERGE EXISTING ROWY OF TREES S GE AMD OFENIMG CUOSED OFF WITH HEDGIMNG
L L - e s A
L : e =T : : : TR p== =] o o
'91 + 101.35 EXISTING GARDEN AREA PROPERTY OF APFLICANT I' &
— AND APRLICATION SITE KATCHED 42EA DENOTES AREA FOR HOUSE AND ACCESS \
"'Il'm 4 EXISTING TREES / : : 7
' + 10121 SO K 7 i
k. SITE AREa 0.124 HA /"’— R vy 101.42 PROPCSED MEW ATCESS TO LANGTOM BIRCKES
N e/ EXISTING [JEAD CAK - =%
™ > il POST AND WIRE FENCE 107.32 B
i TO BDUNDARYT 1—-._____\\- r
i
]

-

YIEW S OUT TO 50UTH

Langton
Birches

PROFPERTY OF APPLICANT

FARM FIELD

o
Q

«Q
(0]
H
I

50307 20018 EMNTRAMCE AMD LATEY AMEMDED

@ CFPPO2 B

SO e ] 4 Ao R CHITECT

FILLENE  CUFTONRILL  EDrdam  KELSC 108 TOE
TE. D573 225070 MDb J7881800035 EMall reyparch Risoud cor
\ Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 201 1. All rights reserved. Licence number 100020449

CLIEMT  CLARE FLEMINEG
PROIECT  PROPOSER SITE FOS NEW DWELLNG A0LSE
AT LANGTOM BIRCHES DUKE

TITLE TROPOSED SITE LATGILT PLAM
STALE 1-250 § A1

ETSE 1202 20°8 =




Agenda Item 4b

%g?étéf_lg Regulatory Services

g e e |
OIS

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

|Applicatinn for Planning Permission Reference : 18/00270/PPP

| To: Mrs Clare Fleming per R G Licence Architect Hillend Ednam Kelso Scottish Borders TD5 7QE

With reference to your application validated on 13th March 2018 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Erection of dwellinghouse with associated access road, parking area and combined
entrance/layby

At : Land West Of Langton Birches Duns Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 18th April 2018
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed

Depute Chief Planning Officer

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 15



SR ey S

COUNCIL

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 18/00270/PPP

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
CFPPO1 Location Plan Refused
CFPPO0O2 Site Plan Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), and contrary to the guidance within the
adopted New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance Note (2008),
in that the proposed development would not form part of or be well related to an existing building
group, would not reflect the character of the building group and would lead to ribbon development
along a public road.

2 The proposed development of a single dwelling at this site would be contrary to the access
requirements of policies HD2 (Housing in the Countryside) and PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the
Local Development Plan 2016, in that the development would result in an unacceptable access
arrangement with the public road to the detriment of road safety.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The

notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 16



Agenda Item 4c

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Ill REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 18/00270/PPP

APPLICANT : Mrs Clare Fleming

AGENT : R G Licence Architect

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse with associated access road, parking area and

combined entrance/layby
LOCATION: Land West Of Langton Birches

Duns
Scottish Borders

TYPE : PPP Application

REASON FOR DELAY: No Reason

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
CFPPO1 Location Plan Refused
CFPP02 Site Plan Refused
CFPPO1 Location Plan Approved
CFPP02 Site Plan Approved

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

CONSULTATIONS:

ROADS PLANNING SERVICE: The applicants have attempted to take on board the previous
comments raised by this Section in terms of serving both the existing property and the proposed site
with a shared service lay-by. Whilst in theory this is acceptable, the current proposal stretches the
service layby to approximately 60m in length. A standard service lay-by to serve two accesses is 24m
in length including tapers. Whilst there is some leeway in terms of modifying the standard specification
to fit a particular situation, the current proposal takes this to an unacceptable extent. | shall require an
amended drawing to be submitted showing the service lay-by reduced in size by at least half before |
am able to support this proposal. The applicant may wish to consider closing the existing access to
Langton Birches and relocate this to a new access serving both properties at the proposed location
shown on the location plan submitted.

COMMUNITY COUNCIL: No response received. Consultation expired.

| note that in relation to previous application (17/01145/PPP) on this site the Community Council
objected to the application due to the impact of the development on the road between Langton Birches
and Middlewood Farm, the condition and lack of drainage of the road, the poor visibility at the
proposed access, the impact of construction traffic and lack of parking for delivery vehicles and visitors
to the property. The full response can be viewed on Public Access.

Page 17



EDUCATION & LIFELONG LEARNING: No response received. Consultation expired.

| note that in relation to previous application (17/01145/PPP) on this site they advised the proposed
development is within the catchment area for Duns Primary School and Eyemouth High School. A
contribution of £4,639 is sought for the Primary School and £3,428 is sought for the High School,
making a total contribution of £8,068.

SCOTTISH WATER: No response received. Consultation expired
PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application was publicised by means of the placing of an advert in the Berwickshire News, and via
a public notice on the national website "Tell Me Scotland". No objections or representations were
received to the proposals.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
ADOPTED SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (2016)

PMD1: Sustainability

PMD2: Quality Standards

ED10: Protection of Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils
HD2: Housing in the Countryside

HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity

EP3: Local Biodiversity

EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

IS2: Developer Contributions

IS7: Parking Provision and Standards

IS9: Waste Water Treatment and Sustainable Urban Drainage

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE

- Placemaking and Design (2010)

- Development Contributions (Revised 2018)

- New Housing in the Borders Countryside (2008)

- Trees and Development (2008)

- Householder Development (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight Guide) (2006)

Recommendation by - Andrew Evans (Planning Officer) on 18th April 2018

SITE

The site is located at Langton Birches to the south of Duns. The application site is an area of land in the
garden ground of the existing dwelling at Langton Birches, Duns. The existing house is located to the east
of the application site. The house has a mature garden ground. To the south of the site is agricultural land.
To the north is the minor road to Gavinton. The site is level.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
The application seeks Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of a single detached dwellinghouse.
Indicative drawings were submitted with the application. These show a dwelling positioned west of the

existing house at Langton Birches, in garden ground. Adjustments to the access proposals have been made
in comparison to the previous, refused, application on the site (17/01145/PPP).

Page 18



POLICY PRINCIPLE

In terms of the principle of development the application is required to be assessed principally in terms of
policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 and the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on new housing in the countryside. This policy allows for new housing associated with existing
building groups, conversion of suitable buildings, and in cases where economic justification is present.

PLANNING HISTORY
Planning permission has previously been refused in this site on multiple occasions as follows:

17/01145/PPP: The erection of a single dwellinghouse on the site was refused planning permission on 2nd
October 2017 for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), and contrary to the guidance within the adopted New
Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Guidance Note (2008), in that the proposed
development would not form part of or be well related to an existing building group, would not reflect the
character of the building group and would lead to ribbon development along a public road.

2. The proposed development of a single dwelling at this site would be contrary to the access
requirements of policies HD2 (Housing in the Countryside) and PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the Local
Development Plan 2016, in that the development would result in a proliferation of accesses, and represent a
further access onto an unrestricted and unlit section of public road to the detriment of Road Safety.

12/00343/FUL: The erection of a single dwelling on the same site was refused planning permission on 11th
May 2012 and the subsequent appeal was dismissed. The Local Review Body varied the decision of the
Appointed Officer and refused planning permission for the following reasons:

1. The proposal would be contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy H7 of the
Consolidated Structure Plan in that a dwellinghouse on this site would be located outwith the identifiable
limits of the established group, would not be well related to the group and would lead to ribbon development
along a public road.

2. The proposed dwelling would be contrary to Policy G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy
N20 of the Consolidated Structure Plan in that the development would not reflect or respect the character of
the houses within the existing building group.

3. The proposed development would be contrary to Policy G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan in that
the proposal would constitute an unacceptable over-development of the plot and that the dwellinghouse
could not be satisfactorily accommodated on the application site.

This third reason was added in by the Local Review Body and was not part of the original officer's delegated
decision.

13/01025/FUL: The application for the erection of a single dwelling on the same site was withdrawn.

There has been no major change in the Housing in the Countryside policies and guidance of the Council
since the determination of the previous 2017 application on the site.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

The application is accompanied by a six page Supporting Statement, setting out the applicant's and agent's
position, and seeking to provide justification why this site should be approved. It can be viewed in full on the
Public Access website.

POLICY PRINCIPLE / BUILDING GROUP

My previous 2017 consideration of this site concluded:

Page 19



"An existing building group is located to the north east of the site. Numerically, the group has capacity to
accommodate a dwelling within the current plan period. However, in terms of the position of the site relative
to the group, there is a clear conflict with adopted policy; my view is that the group itself is on the other side
of the minor road, and also offset from the application site. The application site is remote from the building
group, and does not form part of it. "

This remains the case. A building group is present nearby, but this site is not well related to it, and a house
on this site is not acceptable, when considered against the adopted planning policy on Housing in the
Countryside.

The agent's response in the Supporting Statement in respect of the current application to the view (of myself
and the LRB in relation to the earlier application) that the proposal constitutes ribbon development is " The
definition of "ribbon development" relates to the development of multiple dwellings on each side of a road on
greenfield sites and does simply not apply in this instance." This does not bear up to scrutiny. Ribbon
development is defined as follows:

"The building of houses along a main road, especially one leading out of a town or city." - Oxford English
Dictionary.

"Ribbon development is a line of buildings, served by individual accesses, extending along a road, without
accompanying development of the land to the rear." (Northern Ireland planning policy).

"Ribbon Development - a narrow bank of development extending along one or both sides of a road."
Shetland Islands Council Planning.

Scottish Planning Circular No. 24/1985 Development in the Countryside and Green Belts sets out that ribbon
development should be avoided.

Fundamentally however, the application requires to be assessed against policy HD2 of the Local
Development Plan on Housing in the Countryside.

CHANGES RELATIVE TO PREVIOUS APPLICATION

Since the refusal of the previous application on the site, the access arrangements have been revised. One
of the previous reasons for refusal was in relation to the proliferation of accesses. The agent attempts to
address this by revising the proposals to show a combined access and layby arrangement. However the
details of the layby are unacceptable to the RPS engineer. This is discussed further below.

BUILDING GROUP / CONSIDERATION OF PRINCIPLE AND PLACEMAKING

The Local Review Body in 2012 reached a view that there was a building group at Langton Birches.
Members agreed that the group consisted of 1 and 2 Duns Mill Cottages, The Bungalow, Oakridge and
Langton Birches itself and that the locus had a distinct sense of place. However, they were unclear as to the
precise boundaries or extent of the group and the relationship of the proposed house to the existing
properties. Members were also concerned about the capacity of the site itself to accommodate the proposed
development. The Planning Authority has previously been of the view that the applicant's existing dwelling,
Langton Birches, forms part of a wider building group consisting of 5 existing dwellings, 4 of which are
located on the north side of the public road.

| note the contention of the agent in the Supporting Statement (Section 4.03) that:

"Most of the houses forming the group are on the north side of the road. This group now needs a balance by
the addition of a house on the south side adjacent to Langton Birches and we would also note that under the
terms of the Council's definition of a housing group that garden areas and boundary planting are included in

the group."

Whilst there is a building group present at Langton Birches, this current planning application site does not
form part of it, and is not well related to it. The notion of "Balance" is an invention of the agent presented in
this statement, and is not part of the actual policy wording of the policy HD2 A of the LDP. The proposed
site of the new dwelling would not respect or reflect the character and amenity of the group as it would be

Page 20



located outwith the area contained by the sense of place and would result in the loss of existing trees and
shrubs which contribute to the identified sense of place. The garden woodland within which the site is
positioned serves a landscaping function to the edge of the building group. There is considered no
justification for a dwelling on this site. Concerns over ribbon development remain.

PRIME QUALITY AGRICULTURAL LAND

Policy ED10: Protection of Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils is notionally applicable to the site. This
aims to protect prime quality agricultural land from development. Despite being identified as PQAL, it was
apparent at the time of my site visit, that the application site is now completely positioned within the maturing
garden ground and planting, and is not agricultural in nature. | have no concerns in terms of any conflict with
policy EP10 of the LDP.

TREE, WOODLAND AND HEDGEROWS

Existing trees, woodland and hedgerows are protected by policy EP13 of the LDP on Trees, Woodlands and
Hedgerows. The Council has also adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and
Development, and on Trees and Development, which are both relevant to these proposals. The SPG on
Trees and Development requires application of the relevant British Standard for Tree Protection, British
Standard 5837: Trees in Relation to Construction. In the case of these proposals, it would have been
possible for a house to be suitably positioned within the existing trees.

| am satisfied that the proposed development could comply with the requirements of policy EP13 and the
adopted SPG on Trees and Development. However, had the application been acceptable in principle, |
would have been minded to consider imposition of conditions to protect trees to be retained, and identify
which trees can be removed.

AMENITY

Neighbouring amenity is afforded protection by policy HD3 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan
2016. This is enhanced upon by privacy and amenity standards set out in the adopted Supplementary
Planning Guidance on Householder Development. In the case of these proposals there are no significant
amenity concerns, as given the poor spatial relationship of the site to the remainder of the building group,
there is as a result, no overlooking or poor amenity relationship arising.

ROAD SAFETY

Road safety is a material planning consideration. The Roads Planning Service was consulted on the
application. The RPS engineer advises that the proposed service layby is unacceptable due to its excessive
length. He would consider a revised proposal. However | am not prepared to enter into negotiation on a site
which is unacceptable in principle. The road safety issue may be capable of resolution. The principle of
development on this site is unacceptable. | would include road safety in the reasons for refusal of this
application, but note that a suitable detail for the access layby could be achieved, with a reduction in the
shared access layby being possible, though not yet demonstrated.

WATER SUPPLY AND DRAINAGE

Policy IS9 of the Local Development Plan on Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban
Drainage is relevant to this application. This requires development proposals to make satisfactory
arrangements for dealing with foul and surface water drainage. SUDS (Sustainable Urban Drainage
Systems) principles should be incorporated in the development. The site is located in a rural area. The
submitted Supporting Statement specifies that the proposed means of water supply is via public water
supply. It further advises that surface water drainage will be installed on site to SUDS principles. Foul water
drainage will be provided on site with a sewage treatment plant and soakaway. Standard planning conditions
would be appropriate to cover the means of water supply and foul and surface water drainage to serve the
site.

Page 21



DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Council has adopted supplementary planning guidance and planning policy covering development
contributions. In this case contributions assessment is as follows:

- Education

| note that in relation to previous application (17/01145/PPP) on this site the Education and Lifelong
Learning requested a contribution of £4,639 for Duns Primary School and £3,428 for Eyemouth High School,
making a total contribution of £8,068.

- Affordable Housing

As only a single dwelling is proposed in this application, no affordable housing contribution would be due.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of the
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), and contrary to the guidance within the adopted New
Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance Note (2008), in that the proposed
development would not relate sympathetically to an existing building group and would lead to ribbon
development along a public road.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), and contrary to the guidance within the
adopted New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance Note (2008),
in that the proposed development would not form part of or be well related to an existing building
group, would not reflect the character of the building group and would lead to ribbon development
along a public road.

2 The proposed development of a single dwelling at this site would be contrary to the access
requirements of policies HD2 (Housing in the Countryside) and PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the
Local Development Plan 2016, in that the development would result in an unacceptable access
arrangement with the public road to the detriment of road safety.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 22



gz abed

18/00270/PPP

Scottish Borders

Planning (Scotla
1997

Notice

Town And Country

REFUSED

subject to the
requirements of the
associated Decision

Council

18.04.18

FARM FIELD

DOTTED LINE INDICATES EXTENT OF CURRENT HOUSING GROUP
AS ESTABLISHED BY GARDEN AND SITE BOUNBARIES

[

\-—--—---I

ill Cottages
/—@rnleﬂ 9
: GRASS VERGE i, P, R o T s e S i e o i i S e i St
—_____|___-_________________________._.——— 100.2m
1 a4 PUBLIC ROAD EXISTING ENTRANCE TO HNGTON BIRCHES
i el B e e AR S —— R e e LR SRS T S Rty R T F e - S SRk PR R B = W SRR S e S el AN oS e D RS SRR LG St
|EST|BGC@

e et

POST AND WIRE FEMNCE
TO BOUNDARY

+ 101.38 \‘
' Langton
Birches
FARM FIELD
1
1
1
1
1
Y
1
%
'
+
1
1
1
1
%
Y
1
%
(Y
1
Y
1
1
‘

‘------ - =

1
i

1

1

i

1

g

g

B

B

i

i

% B
\‘ o
3

‘ PROPERTY OF APPLICANT I 4

h ) 1

' i

1

g

]

1

g

]

1

fi

§

i

g

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 201 1. All rights reserved. Licence number 100020449

/% CFPPOT

L.l € EN € E Aol E Wl P E Y
HILLEND CLIFTONHILL EDNAM KELSO TD5 7QE
TEL 01573 225070 MOB 07891690639 EMAIL raygarch@icloud.com
CLIENT CLARE FLEMING
PROJECT PROPOSED SITE FOR NEW DWELLING HOUSE
AT LANGTON BIRCHES DUNS

TITLE LOCATION PLAN
SCALE 1-500@A1
DATE 12022018

Pt wal| epusby



e Sorger S 18/00270/PPP
18.04.18

Planning (Scotland) Act
1997

REFUSED

subject to the

vz abed

FARM FIELD requirements of the
associated Decision
Notice
Qakridg
H3.58M 485 M
GRASS VERGE
S PROPOSED ACCESS POINT 100.2m -
Fes A v SIGHT LINES EXISTING ENTRANCE TO EANGTON BIRCHES
R — 7 W // 7772
EXISTING BEECH HEDGING TO ROAD BOUNDARY
l@ £ m(\ QQ gemg ) (o ) (o] '“%5“‘”7"%‘”@% . /W//// /// . //// _ &

9 101.35 EXISTING GARDEN AREA PROPERTY OF APPLICANT
AND APPLI ON SITE REA OTES AREA FOR
NG TREES / /%7/// // 9.00 M
Ho1.36 Q / o T
r 1.41
EXISTING DEAD OAK

@)
/ SITE AREA 0.124 HA \_/ 101.42
/ _l;m 39

POST AND WIRE FENCE
‘ ®
[;!"
o

TO BOUNDARY

VIEWS OUT TO SOUTH = §

VIEWS OUT TO SOUTH

Langton
Birches

PROPERTY OF APPLICANT

"

VIEWS OUT TO SOUTH

FARM FIELD

@ CFPPO2

R G| L1ICEMNTEE A RoC Bl T E € T
HILLEND  CLIFTONHILL EDNAM KELSO TD5 7QE

TEL 01573 225070 MOB 07891690639 EMAIL raygarch@icloud.com

x Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 201 1. All rights reserved. Licence number 100020449 CLRfT_ CONEFERING

PROJECT PROPOSED SITE FOR NEW DWELLING HOUSE
AT LANGTON BIRCHES DUNS

TITLE PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT PLAN

SCALE 1-250 @ Al
DATE 12 02 2018




Scottish

/194Borders
e COLIMNCIL

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA Tel: 01835 825251 Fax: 01835 825071 Email: ITSystemAdmin@scotborders.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you far completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 1000867 14-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application

What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

D Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface mineral working).
Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

D Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal

Please describe the proposal including any change of use: * (Max 500 characters)

ERECTION OF DWELLING HOUSE WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS ROAD, PARKING AREA, COMBINED ENTRANGE AND
LAYBY

Is this a temporary permission? * D Yes No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place? D Yes No
(Answer 'No' if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

No L—_| Yes — Started D Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) [:] Applicant Agent

Page 10of 7
Page 25




Agent Details

Please enler Agent details

Company/Crganisation:

Ref. Number:

First Name: *

Last Name: *

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

Email Address: ¥

R G LICENCE ARCHITECT

Building Name:

LICENCE

Building Number:

01573225070

Address 1
(Street). *

Address 2.

Town/Cily: *

Country: *

Poslcode: *

You musl enler a Building Name or Number, or both: *

HILLEND

CLIFTONHILL

KELSG

UK

TDS 7QE

raygarch@icloud.com

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual D Crganisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant delails

Title:

OCther Tille:

First Name: *

Last Name: *

Company/Organisation

.

Telephone Number:

Exlension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Mrs
Building Name:
i Building Number:
FLEMING gdl[rjé(:)sj
Address 2:
! Town/City: *
Country: ™
_ Postcode: *

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

LAND WEST OF LANGTCN

CRIMSCN HILL

DUNS

UK

TD11 3HT

raygarch@icloud.com

Page 26

Page 2 of 7




Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Scoltish Borders Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: LANGTON BIRCHES

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5;

Town/City/Seltlement: DUNS

TD11 3HT

Post Code:

Please idenlify/describe the location of the site or siles

Northing oA Easting =7B535

Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? * D Yes No
Site Area

Please slale the sile area: 0.12

Please slale the measuremenl type used: Heclares (ha) D Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use

Please describe the current or most recent use: * (Max 500 characters)

GARDEN GROUND TG LANGTON BIRCHES

Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new allered vehicle access to or from a public road? Yes [:l No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings he posilion of any existing. Allered or new access points, highlighting the changes
you propose lo make. You should also show existing fooltpalhs and note if there will be any impact on thess.

Page 3 of 7

Page 27




Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? * L__.' Yes No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements

Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? * Yes D No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

D Yes — connecling to public drainage network
No — proposing to make private drainage arrangements
D Not Applicable — only arrangements for water supply required

As you have indicated that you are proposing to make private drainage arrangements, please provide further details.
What private arrangements are you proposing? *
New/Altered septic tank.

{:I Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewage treatment plants, or passive sewage treatment such as a reed bed).

D Other private drainage arrangement (such as chemical toilets or composting toilets).

What private arrangements are you proposing for the New/Altered septic tank? *

Discharge 1o land via soakaway.
O] Discharge to walercourse(s) (including partial soakaway).

D Discharge to coastal waters.

Please explain your private drainage arrangements briefly here and show more details on your plans and supporting information: *

DETAILS OF THE ENLARGEMENT OF THE EXISTING TREATMENT PLAN WILL BE SUPPLIED WHEN A FULL PLANNING
APPLICATION IS MADE

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? * Yes D No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:-
Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Envirenmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

Yes

D No, using a private water supply
D No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Page 4 of 7

Page 28




Assessment of Flood Risk

s the site within an area of known risk of flooding? * D Yes No D Don’t Know

If the site is wilhin an area of known risk of flooding you may need lo submil a Flood Risk Assessment before your applicalion can be
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authorily or SEPA for advice on whal information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? * D Yes No D Don’t Know
Trees
Are there any Irees on or adjacenl to the application site? * Yes D No

If'Yes, please mark on your drawings any lrees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close Io the proposal site and indicate if
any are lo be cut back or felled.

All Types of Non Housing Development — Proposed New Floorspace

Does your proposal alter or creale non-residential floorspace? * D Yes No

Schedule 3 Development

Does the proposal involve a form of development listec in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country D Yes No D Don't Know
Planning {Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will addilionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning autherily’s websile for advice on the additional
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spousefpartner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an D Yes No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATICN 15 - TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Cerlificate must be completed and submilted along with the application form. This is most usually Centificate A, Form 1,
Certificale B, Cerlificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? * Yes D No

Is any of lhe land part of an agricultural holding? * D Yes No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Cenlificate is required to complete this seclion of the proposal:

Certificate A

PageS5of 7

Page 29




Land Ownership Certificate

Cerlificale and Notice under Regulalion 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

Cerlificate A

| hereby certify that —

(1) - No person olher than myself/the applicanl was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owrer or is the
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of lhe land to which the applicalion relates at

the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the dale of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relales constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: RAY LICENCE
On behalf of: Mrs CLARE FLEMING
Date: 07/03/2018

Please tick here to cerlify this Cerlificale. *

Checklist — Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1897
The Town and Couniry Planning (Development Managemenl Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order lo ensure thal you have provided all the necessary informalion
in support of your application. Failure to submil sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemad
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of condilions allached lo a previous consent, have you provided a slatement to
that effect? *
D Yes D No Nol applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have
you provided a statement to thal effect? *

D Yes D No Not applicable to lhis application
c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for

developmenl belonging lo the calegories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Acl), have
you provided a Pre-Applicalion Consultation Reporl? *

D Yes D No Not applicable lo this applicalion

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1897
The Town and Country Planning (Development Managemenl Procedure) (Scolland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates lo developmenl belonging to the calegories of nalional or
major developments and you do nol benefil from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development
Managemenl Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *

D Yes !:l No Nol applicable to lhis application
&) If this is an application for planning permission and relales lo development belonging lo the category of local developments (subjecl

to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Developmenl Management Procedure (Scolland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design
Slalement? *

E] Yes D No Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna lo be employed in an electronic communication nelwork, have you provided an
ICNIRP Declaration? *

D Yes D No Not applicable to this application

Page 6 of 7

Page 30




g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of mallers specified in
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

Sile Layout Plan or Block plan.

D Elevations.

D Floar plans

D Cross sections.

D Roof plan.

D Master Plan/Framework Flan.

D Landscape plan.

‘:l Pholographs andfor photomonlages.

[ ] other.

It Clher, please specify: * (Max 500 characlers)

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmenltal Statement. * D Yes N/A
A Design Stalement or Design and Access Slatemenl, E] Yes NfA
AFlood Risk Assessment, * [:l Yes NIA
A Drainage Impaclt Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). * I:l Yes N/A
Drainage/SUDS layoul. * D Yes N/A
A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan D Yes N/A
Conlaminated Land Assessment. * D Yes N/A
Habital Survey. * D Yes N/A
A Processing Agreement, * D Yes N/A

Other Slalemenls (please specify). (Max 500 characlers)
SUPPCORTING STATEMENT

Declare — For Application to Planning Authority

|, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a parl of this application.

Declaration Name: Mr RAY LICENCE

Declaration Date: 07/03/2018

Page 7 of 7

Page 31




Page 32



, %g?,gtgf; Planning and

COUNCIL Lconomic Development

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations
2008

LAppIication for Planning Permission Reference: 12/00343/FUL —|

To:  Mrs Clare Fleming per R G Licence Architect Hillend Edham Kelso Scottish Borders
TD5 7QE

With reference to your application validated on 14th March 2012 for planning permission under the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse with integral garage

At: Garden Ground Of Langton Birches Duns Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuses planning pemnission for the reason(s) stated on the
attached schedule.

Dated 11th May 2012

Planning and Economic Development
Council Headquarters

Newtown St Boswells

MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed
Head of Planning and Regulatory Services

Visit hitp://eplanning.scotborders gov. uk/publicaccess/ to view Planning information online

Page 33




5 Scottish

Planning and

Borders &
COUNCH FEconomic Development

APPLICATION REFERENCE: 12/00343/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

FLE PLO1 Location Plan Refused

FLE PLO2 Site Plan Refused

FLE PLO3 Site Plan Refused

FLE PLO4 Floor Plans Refused

FLE PLO5S Floor Plans Refused

FLE PLOB Sections Refused

FLE PLO7 Elevations Refused

FLE PLO8 Elevations Refused

STATEMENT Report Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposal would be contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy H7
of the Consolidated Structure Plan in that a dwellinghouse on this site would be located out
with the identifiable limits of the established group, would not be well related to the group
and would lead to ribbon development along a public road.

2 The proposed dwelling would be contrary to Policy D1 of the Consolidated Local Plan and
Policy N20 of the Consolidated Structure Plan in that the development would not reflect or
respect the character of the houses within the existing building group.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within
three months from the date of this notice. The notice of review should be addressed to Corporate
Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 34



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO THE HEAD OF PLANNING

AND REGULATORY SERVICES

PART lil REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 12/00343/FUL
APPLICANT : Mrs Clare Fleming
AGENT : R G Licence Architect
DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse with integral garage
LOCATION: I:)Garden Ground Of Langton Birches
uns

Scottish Borders

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
FLE PLO1 Location Plan Refused
FLE PLO2 Site Plan Refused
FLE PLO3 Site Plan Refused
FLE PLO4 Floor Plans Refused
FLE PLO5 Floor Plans Refused
FLE PLO6 Sections Refused
FLE PLO7 Elevations Refused
FLE PLOS8 Elevations Refused
STATEMENT Report Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 1
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Roads Planning Service: There are concerns that the proposed dwelling would stretch development
away from the main group of buildings. Encouraging development in this fashion could lead to a
proliferation of accesses along an unlit and restricted section of public road, without the appropriate
infrastructure in place to serve these properties. The internal layout also causes concern, as it does
not allow for parking and turning of two vehicles, not including garages, within the curtilage of the plot.
Failure to provide this facility would result in vehicles reversing onto the public road, which is
unacceptable at this location.

In this particular case the access is essentially a shared access with Langton Birches (shared by
means of a service lay-by), therefore it can be considered that there is no "new" accesses onto this
section of road as a result of this development. Therefore, on balance, the development is acceptable
on the proviso that the applicant can demonstrate parking and turning, as detailed above, can be
provided within the curtilage of the plot. In addition, the service lay-by must be constructed as per
standard detail (DC-2). It should be noted that only contractors on the Council’s approved list (DC-8)
may work within the public road boundary.

CC: No objections.

Page 35



There are no third party letters of representation.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Consolidated Scottish Borders Local Plan 2011

Policy G1
Policy NE4
Policy D2
Policy D4
Policy Inf4

Consolidated Scottish Borders Structure Plan 2001-2018
Policy N20
Policy H7

Policy 111
Policy 119

Recommendation by - Barry Fotheringham (Principal Planning Officer) on 9th May 2012

Langton Birches is a detached dwellinghouse located within mature private gardens on the south side of the
minor C class road between the A6112 south of Duns and the village of Gavinton. It is located opposite the
property known as Oakridge and forms part of a wider building group consisting of 5 existing dwellings, 4 of
which are located on the north side of the public road.

The application site is an area of well established garden ground to the west of the applicants current
dwelling consisting of high density self seeded trees. It is defined by a mature beech hedge and semi
mature avenue of trees on the north boundary, a post and wire fence and mature hedge on the south
boundary beyond which are agricultural fields currently used for grazing. The application site is narrow and
measures 0.0833ha.

It is proposed to erect a 2 bedroom, 2 storey dwellinghouse on the widest part of the site approximately 55m
west of the applicants existing property. The design ethos is of a contemporary, low carbon dwelling
arranged over 2 floors. It would incorporate an integral garage on the ground floor with open plan living
space at first floor level. The dwelling would have a series of shallow roof pitches which would be finished
with dark grey coloured zinc panels. The south elevation would be predominantly glazed with a covered
decking area to the west end and would be finished with vertical timber lining. The north elevation would
essentially be a blank elevation with limited window openings and air to air heat exchanger vents at first floor
level. Access to the property would be via an extended private service lay-by incorporating the existing
access serving Langton Birches.

It is accepted that a building group does exist at this location, consisting of 5 dwelling units contained within
a distinct sense of place which is contributed to by mature trees and woodland to the east of the group and
that the existing self seeded copse, hedgerow and avenue to the west. The principal policy constraint in
determining this application is Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan which promotes appropriate rural
housing development in village locations, on sites associated with existing groups, and in dispersed
communities in the Southern Borders Housing market area. Housing of up to 2 new dwellings or 30%
increase of the building group may be approved provided that the planning authority is satisfied that the site
is well related to an existing group of at least 3 dwellings. There clearly is the presence of a building group
at this location but it is felt that the site is not well related to this established group of buildings.

In assessing the suitability of any particular group to accommodate new houses, a number of criteria must
be taken into account. These would include but are not limited to the following:

* The scale and siting of new development should reflect and respect the character and amenity of the
existing group, and the individual houses within the group;

» New development should be limited to the area contained by that sense of place;

Page 36



* Any new build should be located within a reasonable distance of the existing properties within the building
group, the distance between existing properties and proposed new build should be guided by the spacing
between the existing properties within the group;

» Sites should not normally break into a previously undeveloped field or require the removal of mature trees
in good condition;

» Existing groups may in themselves be complete, such as terraces of farm cottages and may not be suitable
for further additions;

+ Extensions of ribbon development along public roads will not normally be permitted.

It is considered that the scale of the proposed development is acceptable in that it would introduce one
dwelling to the group where a maximum number of 2 new dwellings may be appropriate in general policy
terms. The additions to building group threshold would not be exceeded. However, the proposed site of the
new dwelling would not respect or reflect the character and amenity of the group as it would be located out
with the area contained by the sense of place and would result in the loss of existing trees and shrubs which
contribute to the identified sense of place. The existing dwellings form a relatively tight group, with the
exception of Langton Birches, but the proposed dwelling would be located 55m west of this property and
would not follow the general pattern of development or spacing between existing properties. This would
lead to ribbon development along the public road to the detriment of the character and amenity of the
existing group and a form of development not supported by the Roads Planning Service.

As mentioned earlier in this report, the proposed dwelling offers a modern or contemporary design approach
which is aimed at reducing the development carbon footprint. A south facing aspect, large glazed openings
and renewable energy technologies coupled with low carbon materials would in theory make the dwelling
energy efficient and in accordance with renewable energy policies. However, the design of the proposed
dwelling is not consistent with the character of the individual houses within the group which demonstrate
traditional forms and materials. Whilst this is of lesser importance when compared to the principal of
erecting a dwelling on this site the design of the proposed dwelling is not considered to be appropriate for
this location.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed erection of a dwellinghouse on this site would be contrary to development plan policies
relating to new housing in the borders countryside in that the development would be located out with the
identifiable limits of the established group, would not be well related to the group and would lead to ribbon
development along a public road. In addition, the development would not comply with policies covering
design and quality standards in that the dwelling would not be compatible with or respect the character of
the dwellings in the building group.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The proposal would be contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy H7 of the
Consolidated Structure Plan in that a dwellinghouse on this site would be located out with the
identifiable limits of the established group, would not be well related to the group and would lead to
ribbon development along a public road.

2 The proposed dwelling would be contrary to Policy D1 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy

N20 of the Consolidated Structure Plan in that the development would not reflect or respect the
character of the houses within the existing building group.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 37



Page 38



Scottish

Borders
COUNCIL

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY DECISION NOTICE

APPEAL UNDER SECTION 43A (8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING
(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND
LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

LOCAL REVIEW REFERENCE: 12/00035/RREF

PLANNING APPLICATION REFERENCE: 12/00343/FUL

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL: Erection of dwellinghouse with integral garage
LOCATION: Garden Ground of Langton Birches, Duns

APPLICANT: Mrs Clare Fleming

DECISION

The Local Review Body varies the decision of the appointed officer and refuses
planning permission for the following reason:

1 The proposal would be contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan
and Policy H7 of the Consolidated Structure Plan in that a dwellinghouse on
this site would be located outwith the identifiable limits of the established
group, would not be well related to the group and would lead to ribbon
development along a public road.

2 The proposed dwelling would be contrary to Policy G1 of the Consolidated
Local Plan and Policy N20 of the Consolidated Structure Plan in that the
development would not reflect or respect the character of the houses within
the existing building group.

3: The proposed development would be contrary to Policy G1 of the
Consolidated Local Plan in that the proposal would constitute an
unacceptable over-development of the plot and that the dwellinghouse could
not be satisfactorily accommodated on the application site.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL
The application is for the erection of dwellinghouse with integral garage on the

garden ground of Langton Birches, Duns. The application drawings consisted of the
following drawings:

Page 39



Plan Type Plan Reference No.

Location Plan FLE PLO1
Site Plan FLE PLO2
Site Plan FLE PLO3
Floor Plans FLE PLO4
Floor Plans FLE PL0O5S
Sections FLE PLO6
Elevations FLE PLO7
Elevations FLE PLO8
Report STATEMENT

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

The application was presented to the Local Review Body at its meeting on 17"
September 2012. After examining the review documentation, which included:

(a) Decision Notice; (b) Notice of Review and supporting papers; (c) Report of
Handling; (d) papers referred to in Report of Handling;(e) Correspondence from
Consultees; and (f)) List of Policies, Members concluded that they did not have
sufficient information to conclude the review and that further procedure was required
in the form of a site visit. The site visit, which was unaccompanied, was held
immediately and following its conclusion the Review Body reconvened at the Duns
Area Office, Newtown Street, Duns to consider the case.

The Local Review Body considered the Review competently made under section 43A
(8) of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

REASONING
The determining issues in this review were:

(1) whether the proposal would be in keeping with the Development Plan, and
(2) whether there were any material considerations which would justify departure
from the Development Plan.

The Development Plan comprises: consolidated Scottish Borders Structure Plan
2001-2018 and consolidated Scottish Border's Local Plan 2011. The Review Body
considered that the most relevant of the listed policies were:

e Structure Plan Policies: N20, H7 and 111
e Local Plan Policies: G1, D2, H2, G5, INF4, and NE4

Other material key considerations the Local Review Body took into account related
to:

= Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders
Countryside 2008

=  Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking and Design 2010

=  Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011

After considering the slides of the site and the submitted site and location plans, the
Review Body accepted that there was a building group at Langton Birches, as
defined in Structure Plan Policy H7, Policy D2 of the Local Plan and in the approved
Supplementary Planning Guidance. In coming to this conclusion, Members agreed
that the group consisted of 1 and 2 Duns Mill Cottages, The Bungalow, Oakridge and

Page 40



Langton Birches itself and that the locus had a distinct sense of place. However,
they were unclear as to the precise boundaries or extent of the group and the
relationship of the proposed house to the existing properties. Members were also
concerned about the capacity of the proposed site itself to accommodate the
proposed development. In the circumstances, they felt that it was necessary to
conduct a site visit.

Members confirmed that the site visit had been useful in clarifying these questions.
Following debate it was determined that the proposed development would be outwith
and not well related to the building group and that it would represent ribbon
development along the public road. Members considered that the tree belt to the
west of Langton Birches formed a defined and defendable edge to the group and the
insertion of a house into the woodland would diminish its effectiveness and
attractiveness.

The Review Body noted that there was a mix of building styles within the group and
that the proposed dwelling was of a contemporary and innovative design. Members
complimented the applicant in proposing a house which sought to maximise energy
efficiency but felt that the proposal would not reflect the character of the existing
group and would be harmful to its appearance. The Review Body highlighted that it
was not opposed, as such, to contemporary house design in rural building groups but
were clear that any house should pay regard to the context in which it is being built
and be compatible with the character of the neighbouring built form. In this instance,
the Review Body did not consider that this objective of Policy G1 had been met
successfully.

Members also determined that the proposed development would be
overdevelopment of the site. The combination of the small size and unusual shape of
the plot limited the ability to successfully accommodate the house, whilst providing
useful garden ground, parking for two cars and turning facilities. The development
would therefore be contrary to Policy G1 (2) of the Local Plan.

CONCLUSION

After considering all relevant information, the Local Review Body concluded that the
development was contrary to the Development Plan and that there were no other
material considerations that would justify departure from the Development Plan.

Notice Under Section 21 of the Town & Country Planning (Schemes of
Delegation and Local Review procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008.

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to refuse
permission for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed
development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, the
applicant may question the validity of that decision by making an application
to the Court of Session. An application to the Court of Session must be made
within 6 weeks of the date of the decision.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and
the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable
of reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which
has been or would be permitted, the owner of the land may serve on the
planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of

Page 41



the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part V of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Chairman of the Local Review Body

Date:...25 October 2012

Page 42



%‘é?ﬁtéf- 2 Regulatory Services

CCOCUNCI

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) {Scotland) Regulations 2013

IAppIicalinn for Planning Permission Reference : 17/01145/PPP

I To: Mrs Clare Fleming per R G Licence Architect Hillend Ednam Kelso Scottish Borders TD5 7QF

With reference to your application validated on 17th August 2017 for planning permission under the Town
and Country Planning {Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development -

Proposal : Erection of dwellinghouse

At: Land West Of Langton Birches Duns Scottish Borders

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reasonis) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 2nd October 2017
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed
Depute Chief Planning Officer

Visit http:/eplanning.scothorders gov. uk/online-applications!

Page 43



%g)?“léltelsrg Regulatory Services

COUINICH

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 17/01145/PPP

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
CF OPD2 Site Plan Refused
CF OPM Location Plan Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2018), and contrary tothe guidance within the
adopted Mew Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Guidance Note (2008), in that the
proposed development would not form part of or be well related to an existing building group, would
not reflect the character of the building group and would lead to ribbon development along a public
road.

2 The proposed development of a single dwelling at this site would be contrary to the access
requirements of policies HD2 (Housing in the Countryside) and PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the
Local Development Plan 2016, in that the development would result in a proliferation of accesses,
and represent a further access onto an unrestricted and unlit section of public road to the detriment
of Road Safety.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 434
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headguarters, Mewtown St
Boswells, Melrose TDE OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
pravisions of Part § of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997,

Visit hitp:feplanning.scothorders gov.ukfonline-applications/

Page 44



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 17/01145/PPP

APPLICANT : Mrs Clare Fleming

AGENT : R G Licence Architect

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse

LOCATION: Land West Of Langton Birches
Duns

Scottish Borders

TYPE : PPP Application

REASON FOR DELAY: No Reason

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
CF OP02 Site Plan Refused
CF OPO1 Location Plan Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

CONSULTATIONS:

EDUCATION AND LIFELONG LEARNING: | refer to your request for Educations view on the impact
of this proposed development, which is within the catchment area for Duns Primary School and
Eyemouth High School. A contribution of £4,639 is sought for the Primary School and £3,428 is
sought for the High School, making a total contribution of £8,068.

ROADS PLANNING SERVICE: As nothing has changed since the last application on this site
(13/01025/FUL), have no option but to repeat previous comments:

"The previous application (12/00343/FUL) for the same proposal raised some concerns given its
location in relation to the rest of the building group. The main issue related to concerns over a
proliferation of accesses and the lack of appropriate infrastructure. Nevertheless, with the previous
application, it was accepted that a shared service lay-by with Langton Birches, could on balance be
accepted, as this would not result in an additional new access onto an unrestricted and unlit section of
public road. However, that argument is lost with the current submission due to a new access being
proposed which is divorced from the existing access to Langton Birches. Given the above, | must
withhold my support of this application: due to the inappropriate extension of this building group which
would lead to a proliferation of accesses. "

COMMUNITY COUNCIL: Although we have no objection to the proposed design of the dwelling

house itself, we must table our objection as we consider the impact of the development on the road
between Langton Birches and Middlewood Farm to be problematic. Specifically:

Page 45



1. The road between Langton Birches and Middlewood Farm has been the subject of much
discussion at the Community Council over the past few years with regard to both drainage and the
condition of the carriageway. This is a narrow and very poorly drained section of road. As a
consequence, traffic passing along this section is often forced off the tarmac onto muddy, boggy
sections on either side of the carriageway. Vehicles have difficulty passing safely without wheels,
tyres and suspension being damaged. The CC has requested work to be carried out to improve the
situation but it is unlikely that a comprehensive project to resurface this section of road (complete with
the necessary drainage) will be possible. We do however understand that some work can be done
through the Neighbourhood Operations Small Scheme Fund.

2. Having looked carefully at the proposed access to the site we are concerned about the poor
visibility because of the trees and hedges around the perimeter of the site. Clearly as this is a
derestricted section of road, we consider the proposed entrance to be a potential safety hazard.

3 Construction traffic we believe could be a considerable hazard on this section of road. Parking
of heavy vehicles on the existing substandard verge would result in even more damage to the fragile
highway. We believe that hard standing will need to be provided for all construction traffic.

4. Service traffic in the future will also need to be catered for with some form of layby as the
existing road width is insufficient for both parked service vehicles and the safe passage of other
vehicles.

We would therefore ask that planning approval be subject to:

1. The provision of adequate drainage along the roadside perimeter of the development.
2, Adequate visibility for vehicles entering and leaving the property.
3. Appropriate hardstanding for both construction traffic and future service traffic.

Finally, could | suggest that in determining this application the Planning Officers take on the views of
Mr Daren Silcock (Neighbourhood Area Manager Berwickshire), as | am aware that he has plans to
provide upgraded facilities on this section of road.

NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES MANAGER: Though not a consultee, the Neighbourhood Services
Manager was copied into the consultation reply of Gavinton, Fogo, and Polwarth Community Council
as Neighbourhood Operation have funding to create two new passing places on the C101 from
Gavinton to Nisbet Rhodes. Neighbourhood Services advise they have no opinion on whether a house
is suitable at this location from a planning perspective, but if permission was granted then they would
be interested in where the service layby/ entrance would be located/ installed to ensure that it doesn't
conflict with where SBC (NS) may decide to install either of the passing places along with any
drainage works that may be necessary as part of these works.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application did not require any postal notification, there being no postal addresses (other than the
applicants existing dwelling) within the statutory notification distance. The application was publicised
by means of a press notice in the Berwickshire News, and a notice on the national public notice
website "Tell Me Scotland". No objections or representations were received.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Adopted Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016)

PMD1: Sustainability

PMD2: Quality Standards

ED10: Protection of Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils
HD2: Housing in the Countryside

HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity

EP3: Local Biodiversity

EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows

I1S2: Developer Contributions

IS7: Parking Provision and Standards

IS9: Waste Water Treatment and Sustainable Urban Drainage

Page 46



SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE

- Placemaking and Design (2010)

- Development Contributions (2018)

- New Housing in the Borders Countryside (2008)

- Trees and Development (2008)

- Householder Development (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight Guide) (2008)

Recommendation by - Andrew Evans (Planning Officer) on 29th September 2017

SITE

The application site is an area of land in the garden ground of the existing dwelling at Langton Birches,
Duns. The existing house is located to the east of the application site. The house has a mature garden
ground. To the south of the site is located agricultural land. To the north is the minor road to Gavinton. The
site is level.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Planning permission in principle is sought for the erection of a single detached dwelling. Indicative drawings
were submitted with the application. These show a dwelling positioned west of the existing house at
Langton Birches, in garden ground.

SITE HISTORY

Application 12/00343/FUL for the erection of a single dwelling on the same site was refused on appeal. The
Local Review Body varied the decision of the appointed officer and refused planning permission for the
following reason:

1. The proposal would be contrary to Policy D2 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy H7 of the
Consolidated Structure Plan in that a dwellinghouse on this site would be located outwith the identifiable
limits of the established group, would not be well related to the group and would lead to ribbon development
along a public road.

2. The proposed dwelling would be contrary to Policy G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan and Policy N20 of
the Consolidated Structure Plan in that the development would not reflect or respect the character of the
houses within the existing building group.

3. The proposed development would be contrary to Policy G1 of the Consolidated Local Plan in that the
proposal would constitute an unacceptable over-development of the plot and that the dwellinghouse could
not be satisfactorily accommodated on the application site.

This third reason was added in by the LRB, and was not part of the original officer's delegated decision.
Application 13/01025/FUL for the erection of a single dwelling on the same site was withdrawn.

There has been no major change in the Housing in the Countryside policies and guidance of the Council
since the determination of the previous application on the site.

POLICY PRINCIPLE / BUILDING GROUP

An existing building group is located to the north east of the site. Numerically, the group has capacity to
accommodate a dwelling within the current plan period. However, in terms of the position of the site relative
to the group, there is a clear conflict with adopted policy; my view is that the group itself is on the other side
of the minor road, and also offset from the application site. The application site is remote from the building
group, and does not form part of it.

Page 47



The Local Review Body in 2012 reached a similar view, that there was a building group at Langton Birches,
Members agreed that the group consisted of 1 and 2 Duns Mill Cottages, The Bungalow, Oakridge and
Langton Birches itself and that the locus had a distinct sense of place. However, they were unclear as to
the precise boundaries or extent of the group and the relationship of the proposed house to the existing
properties. Members were also concerned about the capacity of the proposed site itself to accommodate the
proposed development. The Planning Authority has previously been of the view that the applicants existing
dwelling, Langton Birches, forms part of a wider building group consisting of 5 existing dwellings, 4 of which
are located on the north side of the public road.

Whilst there is a group present at Langton Birches, this current planning application site does not form part
of it, and is not well related to it. The proposed site of the new dwelling would not respect or reflect the
character and amenity of the group as it would be located out with the area contained by the sense of place
and would result in the loss of existing trees and shrubs which contribute to the identified sense of place.
The garden woedland within which the site is positioned serves a landscaping function to the edge of the
building group. There is considered no justification for a dwelling under part A (Building Groups) of policy
HD2 of the Local Development Plan. Concerns over ribbon development remain.

PRIME QUALITY AGRICULTURAL LAND

Policy ED10: Protection of Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils is notionally applicable to the site. This
aims to protect prime quality agricultural land from development. Despite being identified as PQAL, it was
apparent at the time of my site visit, that the application site is now completely positioned within the maturing
garden ground and planting, and is not agricultural in nature. | have no concerns in terms of any conflict
with policy EP10 of the LDP.

PLACEMAKING AND DESIGN

The proposals require to be assessed in terms of the adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance and the
adopted planning policies relating to Placemaking and Design. The Local Development Plan contains a
group of policies on Placemaking and Design.

- House design

The submitted application was made in principle, and as such, detailed design considerations are not being
decided with this application. A suitable house design could be brought forward.

- House position and orientation

The undulating nature of the southern edge of the application site means that there are concerns on the
acceptability of the site for a house. The combination of the small size and unusual shape of the plot limits
the ability to successfully accommodate the house, whilst providing useful garden ground, parking for two
cars and turning facilities. This has not changed since the previous refusal of this site.

The existing dwellings form a relatively tight group, with the exception of Langton Birches, but the proposed
dwelling would be located 55m west of this property and would not follow the general pattern of development
or spacing between existing properties. This would lead to ribbon development along the public road to the
detriment of the character and amenity of the existing group and a form of development not supported by the
Roads Planning Service.

Policy PMD?2 of the Local Development Plan sets out the Council position in terms of quality standards for all
new development. Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the LDP sets out (amongst other matters) criteria on
Placemaking and Design. The most relevant here are as follows. Criteria (h) requires development are
created with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the context, designed in sympathy with
Scottish Borders architectural styles; Criteria (k) requires that development is compatible with, and respects
the character of the surrounding area, neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form, Criteria (l) requires
that development can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site, | do not consider development of a
house on this plot would meet these placemaking criteria. The proposed development would conflict with
the requirements of policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the Local Development Plan. Were the site
acceptable in principle, the Planning Authority would have given consideration to limiting the form, scale and
position on the plot to reflect that of the housing adjacent to the site.

Page 48



TREE, WOODLAND AND HEDGEROWS

Existing trees, woodland, and hedgerows are protected by policy EP13 of the LDP on Trees, Woodlands
and Hedgerows. The Council has also adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and
Development, and on Trees and Development, which are both relevant to these proposals. The SPG on
Trees and Development requires application of the relevant British Standard for Tree Protection, British
Standard 5837: Trees in Relation to Construction. Policy EP13 (Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows) of the
LDP sets out the Council position in detail. In the case of these proposals, the development set out in the
submitted application it would have been possible for a house to be suitably positioned within the existing
trees.

| am satisfied that the proposed development could comply with the requirements of policy EP13 (Trees,
Woodlands and Hedgerows) of the Local Development Plan, and the adopted SPG on Trees and
Development. However, had the application been acceptable in principle, | would have been minded to
consider imposition of conditions to protect trees to be retained, and identify which trees can be removed.

LANDSCAPING

Further conditions would have been appropriate in terms of hard surfaces, materials, surfacing and
boundary treatments, had the principle of development been acceptable here.

AMENITY AND PRIVACY

The impact of development on neighbouring amenity is a material planning consideration. Amenity and
privacy are afforded protection via policy HD3 of the LDP, and via the adopted SPG on Householder
Development. The SPG sets out privacy and amenity standards to ensure that any overshadowing or
overlooking is to an acceptable level. Existing neighbours are entitled to a degree of protection of amenity
and privacy. In the case of this application, | am content that a dwelling on the proposed site could comply
with these standards. The nearest other dwellings are sufficiently distant from the site that | am satisfied the
proposal to develop a house on this site would not affect the residential amenities of occupants of these
properties.

ROAD SAFETY

Road safety is a material planning consideration. Policy IS7 on Parking Provision and Standards sets out
that development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with approved
standards. Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the LDP sets out (amongst other matters) criteria on
accessibility. Criteria (q) requires that development ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety,
including but not limited to the site access, Criteria (s) requires that development incorporates adequate
access and turning space for vehicles including those used for waste collection purposes.

Following the comments of the Community Council, The Neighbourhood Services Manager provided
commentary in regards to future proposals for provision of passing places on the minor road serving the site.
The Roads Planning Service Engineer was aware of this when making his comments on the application.

| am satisfied that the proposed development would have unacceptable access arrangements. The

application is considered to be contrary to the relevant access requirements of policies HD2 (Housing in the
Countryside) and PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the Local Development Plan 2016.

Page 49



Suitable parking is likely to be achievable in terms of IS7 (Parking Provision and Standards).
WATER SUPPLY AND DRAINAGE

Policy 1S9 of the Local Development Plan on Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban
Drainage is relevant to this application. This sets out that development proposals should make satisfactory
arrangements for dealing with foul and surface water drainage. SUDS (Sustainable Urban Drainage
Systems) principles should be incorporated in the development. The site is located in a rural area. The
submitted supporting statement specifies that the proposed means of water supply is via public water
supply. It further advises that surface water drainage will be installed on site to SUDS principles. Foul water
drainage will be provided on site with a sewage treatment plant and soakaway. Were the application
otherwise acceptable, water supply and drainage could be suitably controlled via imposition of planning
conditions.

DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Council has adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions which is
relevant to this application. Policy 1S2: Developer Contributions of the LDP seeks to ensure that
development contributions are identified and collected in line with prevailing policy. The SPG on
Development contributions sets out the prevailing contribution levels. In the case of this application,
contributions were identified in terms of Education and Lifelong Learning. This requirement currently totals
£8,067. Were the application otherwise acceptable, then a legal agreement to ensure collection of this
contribution would have been necessary.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of the
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), and contrary to the guidance within the adopted New
Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Guidance Note (2008), in that the proposed
development would not relate sympathetically to an existing building group and would lead to ribbon
development along a public road.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The proposed development of a single dwellinghouse at this site would be contrary to policy HD2 of
the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), and contrary to the guidance within the
adopted New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Guidance Note (2008), in that the
proposed development would not form part of or be well related to an existing building group, would
not reflect the character of the building group and would lead to ribbon development along a public
road.

2 The proposed development of a single dwelling at this site would be contrary to the access
requirements of policies HD2 (Housing in the Countryside) and PMD2 (Quality Standards) of the
Local Development Plan 2016, in that the development would result in a proliferation of accesses,
and represent a further access onto an unrestricted and unlit section of public road to the detriment
of Road Safety.

Page 50



Agenda Item 4e

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO Scottish

Borders

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION COUNCIL

Comments provided by

Roads Planning Service

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number:
Keith Patterson kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk
Roads Planning Officer 01835 826637

Date of reply

16 April 2018

Planning Application
Reference

18/00270/PPP Case Officer:
Andrew Evans

Proposed Development

Erection of Dwellinghouse

Site Location

Land West of Langton Birches, Duns.

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be made after
consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.

Background and
Site description

There have been a number of previous applications at this site. Concern has
previously been expressed about the potential for a proliferation of access and
the lack of infrastructure in the surrounding area.

Key Issues
(Bullet points)

Assessment

The applicants have attempted to take on board the previous comments raised by
this section in terms of serving both the existing property and the proposed site
with a shared service lay-by. Whilst in theory this is acceptable, the current
proposal stretches the service layby to approximately 60m in length. A standard
service lay-by to serve two accesses is 24m in length including tapers. Whilst there
is some leeway in terms of modifying the standard specification to fit a particular
situation, the current proposal takes this to an unacceptable extent.

| shall require an amended drawing to be submitted showing the service lay-by
reduced in size by at least half before | am able to support this proposal.

The applicant may wish to consider closing the existing access to Langton Birches
and relocate this to a new access serving both properties at the proposed location
shown on the location plan submitted.

Recommendation

] Object [1Do not object | [1Do not object, X Further information
subject to conditions | required

Recommended
Conditions

Recommended
Informatives

Signed : Alan Scott

Page 51


mailto:kpatterson@scotborders.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4f
List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 18/00017/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 18/00270/PPP

Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse with associated access road, parking
area and combined entrance/layby

Location: Land West of Langton Birches, Duns

Applicant: Mrs Clare Fleming

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have

regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:

a) the long term sustainable use and management of land

b) the preservation of air and water quality

c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species

d) the protection of built and cultural resources

e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources

f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its
sustainable management

9) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the
private car

h) the minimisation of light pollution

i) the protection of public health and safety

j) the support to community services and facilities

k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy

) the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement

of their environment
POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

Page 53



9)

List of Policies

it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h)

It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,

it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

0)
P)
q)
r

s)

Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,

it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t)

u)

It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY ED10: PROTECTION OF AGRICULTURAL LAND AND CARBON RICH SOILS

Page 54



List of Policies

Development, except proposals for renewable energy development, which results in the
permanent loss of prime quality agricultural land or significant carbon rich soil reserves,
particularly peat, will not be permitted unless:

a) the site is otherwise allocated within this local plan

b) the development meets an established need and no other site is available

c) the development is small scale and directly related to a rural business.
Proposals for renewable energy development, including proposals for wind energy
development, will be permitted if they accord with the objectives and requirements of policy
ED9 on renewable energy development.

POLICY HD2: HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE

The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:

a) in village locations in preference to the open countryside where permission will only
be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites,

b) associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their
character or that of the surrounding area, and

c) in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.

These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will be the
starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the countryside, which will
be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance / Supplementary Guidance on New
Housing in the Borders Countryside and on Placemaking and Design.

(A) BUILDING GROUPS

Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group,
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided
that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three houses, no
additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been implemented,

b) the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group,
and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when
determining new applications. Additional development within a building group will be refused
if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse
impacts,

c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed
two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No
further development above this threshold will be permitted.

In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal should
be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to
the character of the group.

The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units
within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period. This will include those
units under construction or nearing completion at that point.

(B) DISPERSED BUILDINGS GROUPS

In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses

Page 55



List of Policies

or more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may

be appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or
environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary
consideration.

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups that meet
the above criteria may be approved provided that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community in
the Southern Borders housing market area,
b) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed

two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period. No further
development above this threshold will be permitted,

c) the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of
housing in the countryside proposals.

(C) CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS TO A HOUSE

Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided
that:

a) the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is capable
of conversion and is physically suited for residential use,
b) the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the

existing structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of
conversion, and

c) the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale
and architectural character of the existing building.

(D) RESTORATION OF HOUSES

The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the former
residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height). In
addition:

a) the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the
character of the landscape setting,

b) any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form and
architectural character of the existing or original building, and

c) significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive contribution to
the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.

(E) REPLACEMENT DWELLINGS
The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that:

a) the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical building
pattern and the character of the landscape setting,

b) the proposal is in keeping with the existing/original building in terms of its scale,
extent, form and architectural character,

c) significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be considered
where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive
contribution to the landscape and /or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.

Page 56



List of Policies

(F) ECONOMIC REQUIREMENT

Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is
satisfied that:

a) the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural,
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it
is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of that worker on-
site is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such development could include
businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity if located within an existing
settlement, or

b) it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit that is
the subject of the application, and the development will release another house for continued
use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to
the countryside, and

c) the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social
or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and

d) no appropriate site exists within a building group, and

e) there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the
required residential use.

In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, there
shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance where it meets the
terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on landscape and existing
communities. The cumulative effect of applications under this policy will be taken into
account when determining impact.

POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that

would be lost; and

the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:

the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,

i) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP3: LOCAL BIODIVERSITY
Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable Species
and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the

public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity
conservation.

Page 57



List of Policies

Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and
species should:

a) aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and

b) be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site,
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and

c) compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets
as appropriate; and

d) aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems

approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and
provision for their long-term management and maintenance.

POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS

The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.

Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

a) aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland
resource, including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
b) where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c) adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.

POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such
deficiencies.

Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

a) treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);

b) provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;

c) off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer

Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all
in accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;

d) leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or off-
site;

e) landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of
future management and maintenance;

f) protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or off-

site, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any
losses and/or alternative provision;

9) provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for

Page 58



List of Policies

the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision
of street furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by
planning condition. Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered. A planning obligation will only be
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with
approved standards.

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE

WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or
failing that:
b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing

sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing
that:

c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:

d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.

Development will be refused if:

a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to

provide for new infrastructure.

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE

Page 59



List of Policies

Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites,
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required),
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

e SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside
2008

SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010

SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011

SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight 2006

SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008

SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008

Page 60



Agenda Item 5a

Notice of Review

Scottish

Borders
COUNCIL

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS
AMENDED}IN RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review,

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)
Name  Craig Oliver Name
Address 27 Marigold Drive, Galashiels, TD1 2LW Address
Postcode TD1 1EP Postcode
Contact Telephone 1 TN Contact Telephone 1
Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

Yes No

* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? o

Planning authority
Planning authority’s application reference number 1s/0osgaiFuL

Site address 52 Bank St, Galashiels. TD1 1EF

Description of proposed

development change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)

Date of application 3 April 2018 Date of decision (if any) 29t May 2018

Page 1 of 4

Page 61



Notice of Review
Note: this notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1. Application for planning pemission (including househelder application)

Application for planning permission in principle

Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has been <
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or maodification, variation or removal of a planning
condition)

4.  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review (tick one box)

1.  Refusal of application by appointed officer v

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of
the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further infermation or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as:
written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions; and/or inspecting the land which is the
subject of the review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions v

v
v

2.  One cor more hearing sessions

3.  Site inspection

4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:
Yes No

1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? v

2 Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? 7

if there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
ingpection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4

Page 62




Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review of your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Boedy to

caonsider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

see attached

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the tes rj?

determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your

review.

Page 3 of 4

Page 63




Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit
with your notice of review and intend to rely on in support of your review. Note: there will be no
opportunity to submit further documents to accampany this notice of review.

Grounds for appeal as attached.

Letter of support from Christine Graham MSP

Confirmation that Timebomb are finalists in Scotland's Business Awards (Borders)

Note: the planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is

determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Chechklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
your review:

7

Full completion of all parts of this form

- | , Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

b All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other

documents) which are now the subject of this review. . il

Note: where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earlier

consent.

Declaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as nd in the supporting documents.

Date UL‘&IZOIQ

Signed

The completed form should be returned to the Clerk of the Local Review Body, Democratic
Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA or sent

by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 4 of 4

Page 64




18/00398/FUL
Timebomb Tattoo, Bank St, Galashiels

Craig Oliver

Notice of Review

The application was refused on the grounds that

(1) the level of contribution of the proposed to the town's core retail function will not be so
significant as to justify its occupation by the proposed use and there is no evidence to suggest
otherwise.

Timebomb Tattoo is one of Scotland's leading tattoo salons. Clients travel to Galashiels from across
the Borders, Scotland and even Europe for the sole purpose of having a tattoo done at Timebomb.
The salon is highly regarded within the sector and the tattoo artists employed in the shop are invited
to attend exhibitions and conventions. Visiting tattoo artists (the most recent was from the USA
earlier this summer) come to Timebomb to feature their work and draw a fresh range of clients.
Timebomb offers employment to 4 tattoo artists, all of whom have full diaries and are booked up six
to seven weeks in advance. An average of 200 clients visit the salon each month. Most are
accompanied by a friend or family member who, whilst the tattoo is being made, visit local cafes,
restaurants or shops. As such, Timebomb is significantly contributing to the local economy and
footfall.

(2) the development would potentially detract from the vitality and viahility of the town centre and
no other material considerations would outweigh this potential harm.

This appears an objective measure.

In the time that Timebomb has been in operation, there is no evidence that it has detracted from
the vitality and viability of the town centre. On the contrary, the shared footfall outlined in (1) above
directly cantributes to imprave the vitality and viability of the town. There are a number of empty
units on Bank Street and elsewhere in the town centre (particularly Channel Street and Douglas
Bridge), if this appeal is denied and Timebomb has to close, adding to those empty units, then that
will certainly detract from the vitality and viability of the town. It is a measure of the esteem with
which Timebomb is held that they have reached the finals of the Borders Retail Business Awards
2018.

There was significant media coverage of the decision to refuse permission for the DWP to take a
property on Douglas Bridge last year. That decision was overturned at appeal by the Scottish
Government with the Reporter noting “a number of units were vacant or displaying ‘to let’ signs and
| noted a number of charity shops. Overall it (Galashiels) displays signs of decline and little evidence
of recent investment.” Denying change of use for Timebomb and potentially adding to the number

Page 65



of vacant units seems to stand in direct conflict to Scottish Borders Council’s stated aims of
encouraging investment and entrepreneurship. It is frustrating and upsetting that the Change of Use
was denied just weeks before Scottish Borders Council announced plans to relax the strict retail use
in Galashiels. It is particularly distressing that, prior to that decision, other businesses have recently
been granted change of use in Bank Street with seemingly little or no hurdles to overcome. To
reiterate, Timebomb is a thriving business giving employment to four, it attracts visitors to the town,
with Timebomb clients visiting other shops and businesses. Timebomb actively contributes to the
local economy.

Page 66



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
CUSTOMER SERVICES

21 AUG 2018

HEADQUARTERS
NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS
TO6 DSA

Borders Retail
Business Awards 2018

TIMEBOMB TATTOO, GALASHIELS

Your business has been nominated by the public within the last 12 months and now
reached the final of the Borders Retail Business Awards. We'd liKe to feature your
business at the Awards Ceremony and Dinner which returns to the Borders this year at the

Peebles Hydro Hotel, Innerleithen Road, Peebles, EH45 81X at 6:30pm on Sunday 30th
September 2018

BEST TATTOOISTS ‘ 4

As a finalist business you are considered for consumer awards too.
Mystery shopping will continue until the week before the ceremony.

People can show their support for you by voting at

www.scotlandsbusinessawards.co.uk/borders

voting will close on Friday 28" September

't you'd like to attend the Black Tie Awards Ceremony and Dinner please visit
www.scotlandshusinessawards.cn.ukftickets

and click on the Borders Retail Business Awarm link thén use the access code -
Early Bird discounts -avaiiable until 2 Septé?ﬁber 2018

Any questions please contact the head of the présentaﬁon team

Scott Somerville who will be calling on you prior to the awards
scott@scotlandsbusinessawards.co.uk or or-0750 540 1575

Please don't post this online in full as it I:untains password information, thank you.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5b

%‘é?_‘éltésrg Regulatory Services

TOWHN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Iﬂpplicatiun for Planning Permission Reference : 18/00398/FUL

I To: Craig Oliver 27 Marigold Drive Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 2LW

With reference to your application validated on Zrd April 2018 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development -

Proposal : Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)

at: 52 Bank Street Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1EP

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reasonis) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 29th May 2018
Requlatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 OSA

Signed
Depute Chief Planning Officer

Wisit hitp:feplanning. scothorders. gov.uk/online-applications,
Page 69




%‘é?_‘éltésrg Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 18/00398/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

Location Plan Fefused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development does nat comply with Palicy ED4 aof the Local Development Flan 2016
in that it does not camprise a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. The level of
contribution of the proposed use to the town's care retail function will not be so significant as to
Justify its occupation by the proposed use and there is no evidence to suggest othemwise. The
development would potentially detract from the vitality and wiability of the town centre and no other
material considerations would outweigh this patential harm

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authaority to refuse planning permission for or
approval reguired by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning autharity to review the case under Section 434
of the Town and Country Planning (Scaotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, Newtown St
Boswells, Melrose TDE OSA,

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasanably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Flanning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
pravisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Wisit hitp:feplanning. scotborders. gov.uk/online-applications’

Page 70




Agenda Item 5c¢

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Ill REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 18/00398/FUL
APPLICANT : Craig Oliver
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)
LOCATION: 52 Bank Street
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD1 1EP
TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

Location Plan Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Consultations:

Roads Planning Service: No objection. It is unlikely that this proposal will result in a detrimental effect
on the surrounding road network. There is town centre parking available both on and off street within
acceptable walking distance

Environmental Health Service: Noise from equipment used on these premises has the potential to
impact on local amenity. Recommend conditions regarding noise limits

Economic Development Service: Have no objections and support this application as it could increase
town centre footfall.

Flood Protection Officer: The site is at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1 in 200 years. In
2012, several businesses on Bank Street were badly flooded from water overtopping at the Bakehouse
Burn, running down St John Street and Gala Park, which pooled on Bank Street. If this application is to
be approved, the FPO recommends that the applicant signs up to receive early warning from the
Council's water level gauge on the Bakehouse Burn. It is also recommended that, to receive flood
warnings from SEPA, the applicant signs up to FLOODLINE. Flood protection products such as
floodgates and air-vent covers are also commercially available from the Council at heavily discounted
prices. The FPO recommends that the owner purchases a flood gate and self-closing airbricks if
required. However, this is a change of use that is unlikely to have a significant effect on the storage
capacity of the functional flood plain or affect local flooding problems and he does not oppose it on
flooding grounds.

Page 71



Forward Planning Service: This site is within the Core Activity Area of the town as defined in the Local
Development Plan 2016. The application must be assessed against Policy ED4. This policy seeks to
ensure Class 1 retail units are not lost within town centres as these generate higher footfall which
enhances vitality and viability of the town centre. The policy also allows other uses within Class 3 (food
and drink). This proposal falls within Use Class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose of
Policy ED4. The policy does allow consideration of a number of other factors to be considered and
applied on a case by case basis. The key factors that influence the vitality and viability of a town centre
include pedestrian footfall, the diversity of uses and the number of vacant properties. The proposed
use requires to be tested against Policy ED4's criteria.

The Council's Town Centre Footfall Survey at this location indicates a recent increase up to 8470 in
2017 from 6850 in 2013. The Council's most recent retail survey (Summer 2017) indicates that the
Galashiels' retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19% in the Winter of 2016.
It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, although by the nature of the business
and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be substantially less than a typical retail
unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not considered these are reasons in themselves for
deviating from Council policy in this instance.

The Council's retail survey, which goes back to 2006, shows that these premises were vacant between
Spring/Summer of 2016 and the Spring/Summer of 2017. It is believed the tattooist opened in May
2017. At no other time since 2006 have the premises been vacant. No information has been
submitted in respect of the marketing of the premises at the time it was vacant. It is not, therefore,
possible to assess this retrospective application in terms of the marketing history of the proposal
during this period. Bank Street is the most attractive and buoyant retail area of Galashiels, being
opposite the well maintained and attractive garden. Vacancy rates on Bank Street have historically
been low.

Town centre regeneration in Galashiels is a major objective for the Council and these principles are
identified in the Blueprint. If the Council allows a number of uses which do not meet the principal
thrust of Policy ED4 this would defeat the long term aims of generating healthy footfall. This would
have major implications for the aspirations of ensuring a buoyant and healthy town centre.

It is not considered that this planning application meets the requirements of Policy ED4 and should
therefore be refused.

Community Council: No reply
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Local Development Plan 2016
PMD2, PMD5, ED3, ED4, HD3, EP9, I1S7, IS8, 1S9
Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Recommendation by - Carlos Clarke (Lead Planning Officer) on 28th May 2018

Proposal and site description

This application seeks retrospective consent for a tattoo studio within a former retail unit located within the
town centre. The property fronts Bank Street and has a timber faced shopfront.

Principle

The property is within the town centre. Policy ED3 supports a wide range of uses appropriate to the town
centre. This is a use appropriate to a town centre location, capable of contributing positively to its overall
character, mixed use nature and overall vitality and viability. However, the property is also within the Core
Activity Area where uses other than Class 1 (retail) and 3 (food and drink) are to be refused under Policy
ED4, unless the proposal can be assessed as contributing significantly to the town centre's core retalil
function. This proposal would most comfortably fit within Class 2 and, even if categorised outside a Class

Page 72



(sui generis) it would be in conflict with Policy ED4 since it is within neither Class 1 nor 3. The test is whether
the proposal would make a significant positive contribution to the core retail function of the town centre. To
assist with this test, Policy ED4 identifies six criteria to apply to Class 2 uses, and these are considered in
turn:

1. How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips

It is difficult to be anything other than speculative as regards to how this particular business will contribute to
joint shopping trips. It will clearly do so more than a vacant shop, or perhaps some other Class 2 or other
uses. However, it will likely do so less than a shop or café, since clients are likely to be in the building for
some time and may not perhaps be likely to combine their visit with shopping. That said, some may do and
clients may likely visit for consultations before or after receiving a tattoo. Some may also be accompanied by
friends or family who may wish to combine their trip with visits to shops, a café or other town centre
businesses. | would, however, ultimately consider that the proposal is unlikely to contribute significantly to
joint shopping trips, certainly not to the extent of a Class 1 or Class 3 use.

2. Footfall contribution

As our Economic Development Service note, the proposal will generate footfall since it will comprise a
business that generates personal visits by clients. However, as the Forward Planning Service note, it may
most likely generate significantly less footfall than a typical retail unit. That said, the unit itself is small so
differences between footfall generated by a shop or café and tattooist will be proportionate to the size of the
unit and the success of the business itself. There is no firm evidence on the matter, but it is reasonable to
speculate that the level of footfall is unlikely to be as significant as for a Class 1 or Class 3 use operating
from the same premises.

3. Current vacancy and footfall rates

As our Forward Planning Service notes, the Council's most recent retail survey (Summer 2017) indicates
that the Galashiels' retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19% in the Winter of
2016. This indicates an improvement, but also a relatively high level of vacancy, which suggests the town
remains vulnerable in terms of its capacity to attract and maintain commercial businesses. As they also
suggest, Bank Street is an attractive and buoyant retail area of Galashiels. Vacancy rates on Bank Street
have historically been low. On the one hand, this suggests the street is attractive to retailers and may remain
so - to allow Class 2 uses may dilute its attractiveness. On the other hand, this might also suggest that the
street is robust enough to accommodate small changes in its overall mix of uses, particularly since it does,
already, contain a number of non-retail businesses. It is to be noted also that the Local Review Body
recently consented the provision of a dog grooming practice further along the street (application
17/01704/FUL) which will also add to the variety of uses that complement the retail function, but will reduce
its core retail base. This proposal will contribute positively in that it will ensure occupancy of a unit, albeit it
will contribute negatively in that it will remove another unit from the retail core.

In terms of footfall, the Council's Town Centre Footfall Survey indicates an increase up to 8470 in 2017 from
6850 in 2013 at this location. As the FPS notes, footfall along Bank Street is reasonably high. Given this use
did not commence operation until the past year or so, it is not possible to be sure as to how it may have
contributed to footfall, since the next survey is not due until later in the year. As noted above, this proposal
will contribute positively to footfall, but not likely to the extent of a Class 1 or 3 business, albeit the small size
of unit means that any variations may not, perhaps, be significant.

4, Longevity of vacancy

| understand that the property has been vacant once since 2006. The most recent being the period just
before this business commenced operating from the premises. According to the Council's retail survey it
appears that the property was vacant between summer 2016 and May 2017. The applicant was asked to
confirm when he started operating and how long the property was vacant before he moved in, but has not
responded to calls or emails regarding the application. In any case, while any extent of vacancy is
concerning, longer periods of vacancies have become increasingly common in town centres in the last ten
years, and this period is not extensive. Any period of vacancy is clearly undesirable in terms of the vitality of
the town centre, however, the level of vacancy here does not appear significant enough that it should be an
overriding consideration.

Page 73



5. Marketing history of premises

It is known that the premises were marketed by a local agent on-line and by a notice in the window.
However, it was described as a shop or an office, the latter being a Class 2 use itself for which the unit was
not lawfully capable of being occupied as. Regardless, whether the opportunity given for Class 1 or 3
businesses to use the premises was sufficient is unknown. Obtaining information on the extent of marketing
from the owner would have been helpful, though | have been unable to approach the owner without having
first agreed this with the applicant who has not responded to any emails or calls regarding this application. It
is, however, apparent that the property was marketed but this does not, on its own, demonstrate that a
departure from Class 1 or 3 uses should be permitted.

6. Ability to retain shop frontage

The shop frontage has been unaffected by the use since it commenced, and no alterations to it are
proposed. The arrangement of the interior has resulted in a relatively welcoming public frontage, with an
entrance/waiting area to the front of a display wall visible from the outside. The proposal is acceptable as
regards this criterion.

Ultimately, Policy ED4 resists uses other than those falling within Class 1 and 3 unless it can be shown that
the proposed use will make a significant positive contribution to the core retail function. Applying the policy
tests to this proposal, | would conclude that the proposal will make a positive contribution, in that it will
ensure a business that contributes to town centre activity will operate from the premises, as opposed to it
being vacant. However, this will be at the expense of a unit that could be occupied by a Class 1 or 3 use
which would likely contribute more significantly to the core retail function of the town. While the level to
which any particular use might contribute to the town's core retail function from a unit this size may not be
vastly different between one use and another, this proposal will not reach the level of 'significant contribution
that the policy requires. On balance, | would conclude that the proposal does not satisfy Policy EDA4.

| note that the LRB has recently allowed for a dog groomers in Bank Street on the basis that it will provide a
specialist service, despite being a Class 2 use. Though a tattooist provides a specialist service, it is perhaps
not quite a niche market, and indeed is a use that is becoming increasingly commonplace. Though the
LRB's decision recognises that there needs to be some flexibility when dealing with small scale units, it is
also a decision to be taken on its own merits, and does not directly influence a decision on this application
which has its own particular considerations to account for.

Services and parking

The proposal is acceptable as regards parking and access issues. It is presumed that mains water and
drainage services will exist and that long standing bin storage and collection arrangements are in place.

Flood risk

As our Flood Protection Officer notes, the property is at risk of flooding, though the proposal is not a
vulnerable use. An informative note can cover the FPO's recommendations.

Amenity

The use will not conflict with other businesses, nor directly affect the amenity of neighbouring properties. |
note the EHS's suggestion that a noise limit be imposed. However, this is a town centre use in a town centre
location, and equipment in a tattooists is unlikely to generate high levels of external noise. The business has
already become established and the EHS has not advised of any concerns with its operation to date. The
EHS has scope to control noise separately under environmental protection procedures, so a condition would
appear to be unnecessary. An informative could have usefully drawn the applicant's attention to the matter if
the application were to be approved.

Alterations

No external alterations are proposed, so there will be no adverse effect on the character or appearance of
the Conservation Area. No signage is proposed and, would, in any case, fall to be considered under the

Page 74



Advertisement Regulations. An Informative note can refer the applicant to consent requirements for such
works.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development does not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it
does not comprise a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. The level of contribution of the
proposed use to the town's core retail function will not be so significant as to justify its occupation by the
proposed use and there is no evidence to suggest otherwise. The development would potentially detract
from the vitality and viability of the town centre and no other material considerations would outweigh this
potential harm

Recommendation: Refused

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5d

'23 fﬂp-q. 2“1 — CC

_:;;:-.;-ﬁ;-w""-f. S ! TOWN AND COUNTRY For Office Use Only:

% B%?-f:ltéig TR festestonMmber, \SIERTR
199 :

Era,

s COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATION

2\ mAal oD DAVS ...

Date Registered: 2 A4S

s3Il ssssanpssaanaapsessanm fnnins s st nnas pne see nonttn pes
L4

..?&ﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬂ.ﬁ:&?...Pusth}de.'TF?}..E.‘.—.‘ﬁj.. e e b o SR TONING ol i x 0i h
Tel. No. 2 P T Rt e DR R (C
E-mail address il SOrBES. .. . cuiovr ssboes snstosansions snesssitess

2. F-”” PﬂstafHUUl‘Eaa WA AP I LI WP I ] Sl Fl e | S wmag e wm = .Jd ﬂﬂ thE SIIE pfﬂﬂ)

52 pBadk STREET) (AAdHhES T ™= X

Is this address a flat?
Yes No

3. Brief Deseription of Proposed Development

CHAGE tAnse Heom CeTan To "tatTos el

(: Sy ey '5) CQ.ETEEE; Pec T \_JE_,)

4. Type of Application (tick one box only)

(a) Full application for new building works and/or a change of use and/or engineering works

(b) Full application for a change of use not involving any building works

(c) Planning permission in Principle

(d) Approval of matters specified in conditions (pursuant to a Planning Permission in Principle)

(e) Application for removal or variation of a condition on a planning permission previously granted
(Please indicate reference number of previous application)

() Application for renewal of a limited period permission
(Please indicate reference number of previous application)

(g) Application for renewal of an unimplemented permission
You need only answer Questions 16 and 17)
(Please indicate reference number of previous application)

5. Applications for Matters Specified in Conditions (if you ticked (d) in Q.4, please complete)

(a) State the reference number and date of the planning permission in PANCIPIE ...iveieeienieiiii i s

(b) State which of the conditions are submitted for approval as par of this application:

All Conditions (please tick) or Condition Numbers

Page 77



6. Pre-Application Discussion and Consultation

(a) Has assistance or prior advice been sought from Scottish Borders Council about this application?

Yes No

If yes, please complete the following information about the advice you were given:

Officer Name: C ANl ouLiveE. Date: '

Council Reference: l

(b) Has Pre-Application Consultation taken place (for MAJOR developments: See Notes for Guidance)?

Yes No

If Yes, a Pre-application Consultation Report should accompany this application

/. Site Area 8. State whether applicant owns or controls any
adjoining land (edged in blue on submitted plans)

9. Existing/Proposed Uses

Please indicate all existing and proposed uses that are the subject of this_application:

Existing

10. Commerce and Business

(A) Floorspace e
Please indicated the total amount of floorspace (in square metres) to which this application relates
Existing — Proposed -

(A) Employment /
Please indicate the number of staff employed (including part-time):
Existing — P ed -

//M} |

——

|"(B) Traffic Flow jave,
What is the anticipated traffic flow to the site"during a normal working day? (No. of vehicles moving in and out of the site)
(Include all vehicles except those used by individual employees driving to work)

Existing - //’ Proposed -

f_,.-"’

o

~
=
(C) Industrial Processes
In the case of industrial development, please give a description of the processes to be carried on and of the end products, as
well as the type of machinery to be installed:

(D) Storage of Hazardous Substances
Will the proposal involve the use or storage of any materials of a type and quantity defined as hazardous substances? If YES,

please state materials and quantities below:

Page 78



11. Car Parking

Please indicate car parking facilities/spaces:

Existing: Proposed:

tick those that apply)

Accesses and Rights of Way (Please

(A) There will be no new access to a highway (either vehicle or pedestrian), no alteration
to an existing access to a public road and no alteration to any public right of way or other public path

(B) There will be a new or altered access to a public road Vehicular Pedestrian

(C). A public right of way or other pubilic path will be affected by the proposed development

_

Will the proposed development involve the felling of any trees? Yes No ':
(If YES, please indicate positions on plan)

14. Drainage and Water Supply

(A) Please state how surface water will be disposed of:

(B) How will foul sewage be dealt with?

Mains sewer Septic Tank and Soakaway Other (Please specify)...........ccoeevreeneneivvisioennnsns

(C) From where will the proposed development receive its water supply?

Public mains supply :I Private source

Where the water supply is from a private source, has any testing or analysis been undertaken?

Yes No

Please indicate position of source on location/site plan, and where possible provide details of the source (e.g. borehole, spring elc.), and of any
related pipework or apparatus

15. Materials

Please state type and colour of materials to be used (if known)

EXISTING PROPOSED

Exterior Walls

Roof

Windows

16. Additional Information

Is there any additional information you wish to give in support of this application?

Page 79



17. Declaration

| hereby apply for planning permission and declare that, to the best of my knowledge, the information contained in this
application and on the submitted plans is correct.

| attach FOUR copies of the application forms and enclose the application fee of £.. e together with:

] Four sets of the necessary plans and drawings

In the case of MAJOR developments, a Pre-Application Consultation Report

A Design and Access Statement or Design Statement, where the application site is situated within a mnsewgtim area,
historic garden or designed landscape, a National Scenic Area, the site of a scheduled monument or the curtilage of an

A Listed Building (see Notes for Guidance for further information)

7[ Signec ol ) ORBOIRIERE.... ... covsisisn cirsmsrrbusrasipnensisbeasniinansht SONING B B X R R,

18. Please complete Certificate A and Certificate B (please tick ONE box in each)

CERTIFICATE A under Section 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended

| certify that:

At the beginning of a period of 21 days ending with the date of this application, nobody other than the applicant was the owner' of all
of the land to which the application relates

OR
A  The applicant has given the required notice to everyone who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the
sk accompanying application, was the owner' of any part of the land to which the application relates, as listed below:
Owner's Name Address at which notice was served Date on which notice was served
RELimd DA NUNR 22 MmAaRkel STeeeT 2\ \1\8 .
CALAISIHED
o\l 3AE

Dateiz\l'\'\‘%

Signe wnnennsnen DML DBNANOF... .o iiiiiinniic

C ERT' F | CATE B under Section 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended

| certify that:

At the beginning of a period of 21 days ending with the date of this planning application, none of the land to which the application
relates is, or is part of, an agricultural holding;

OR

/ The applicant has given the required notice to every person other than the applicant who, at the _beginning of 21 days ending with
v the date of the application, was a tenant of an agricultural holding on all or part of the land to which the application relates, as

follows:

Address at which notice was served Date on which notice was served

Tenant's Name

Signed...... pannnnnennssss O DBNANOL... ..o iiiins i

" An owner includes anyone with a lease on the land that has at least seven years left to run
Page 80



18/00398/FUL
29/05/2018

636 Toom |

636000m

6361 00m

. 636000m

Scottish Borders Council
Town And Country

Planning (Scotland) Act
- 1997

i ~ REFUSED

0S MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale subject to the

Friday, March 30, 2018, ID: M4P-00701697 requirements of the

Brown Newsagents, Kelso associated Decision
R Notice

1:1250 scale print at A4, Centre: 349277 E, 636030 N e

©Crown Copyright Ordnance SuveyR @@ r8 100057546




This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 17/01704/FUL
APPLICANT : Mr S Wilson
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT ; Change of use from retail to dog grooming practice
LOCATION: 38 Bank Street
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD11EP
TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

Location Plan Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Consultations:

Roads Planning Service: No objections
Environmental Health Service: No comments

Economic Development Service: Understand it doesn't comply with Policy ED4. However, they do not
object because the main aim of Policy ED4 is to protect and enhance the vitality and viability of town
centres and this business could contribute to achieving this. They also do not believe this small
increase in Class 2 use will have a detrimental effect on the retail floorspace, or retail demand in
Galashiels. The business could also maybe consider selling dog leads, bowls etc on ancillary basis

Forward Planning: The proposal falls within Use Class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose
of Policy ED4. The policy does allow consideration of a number of other factors to be considered and
applied on a case by case basis which in extreme instances may allow consideration of allowing other
uses. The key factors that influence the vitality and viability of a town centre include pedestrian
footfall, the diversity of uses and the number of vacant properties. The proposed Class 2 use requires
to be tested against Policy ED4's criteria.

The Council's Town Centre Footfall Survey at this location indicates a recent significant increase up to
847 in 2017 from 685 in 2013. The Council's most recent retail survey (Summer 2017) indicates that
the Galashiels' retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19% in the Winter of
2016. It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, although by the nature of the
business and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be substantially less than a
typical retail unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not considered these are reasons in
themselves for deviating from Council policy in this instance.

Page 83



It is understood that these premises have only very recently become vacant, having operated as a
sweet shop until late 2017. The Council's retail survey, which goes back to 2006, shows that these
premises have not been vacant at any time of the survey. It has previously been occupied as a
clothes shop, a craft shop and sweet shop. Bank Street is the most attractive and buoyant retail area
of Galashiels, being opposite the well maintained and attractive garden. Vacancy rates on Bank Street
have historically been low.

It is noted that the premises are small and some consideration may be given as to what retail interest
there may be in a unit of this size. However, it does appear to be the case in Galashiels town centre
that there is limited interest in larger retail units and it is not considered that there has been sufficient
time for these premises to be marketed to gauge potential interest from retailers. It is considered there
are already other small units of similar size on Bank Street operating in retail use.

The comments of Economic Development are noted but there is concern that approvals are granted
with the fundamental test that 'any use is better than nothing'. This would be a short term response to
a much wider issue and in the longer term precedents would be set for non-class 1 uses which in time
would have a serious impact upon the vitality and viability of Galashiels. Town centre regeneration in
Galashiels is a major objective for the Council and these principles are identified in the Blueprint. If the
Council allows a number of uses which do not meet the principal thrust of Policy ED4 this would defeat
the long term aims of generating healthy footfall. This would have major implications for the
aspirations of ensuring a buoyant and healthy town centre.

The application does not meet the requirements of Policy ED4 and should therefore be refused.

Flood Protection Officer: The site is at risk in 1:200 year flood event. However, this is a small scale
development that won't affect storage capacity of the functional flood plain or affect local flooding
problems and so does not oppose. Recommends flood warnings and evacuation plan.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Local Development Plan 2016

PMD2, PMD5, ED3, ED4, HD3, EP7, EP9, IS7, IS9

Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Recommendation by - Carlos Clarke (Lead Planning Officer) on 7th February 2018

This application seeks consent to convert a vacant shop premises located within the town centre to a dog
groomers. The site forms part of the ground floor of a 2 % storey Category C Listed Building located within
the Conservation Area. The frontage comprises a door and single window within a stone elevation. No
alterations are proposed to the building under this application.

In terms of the principle, the site is within the town centre, where a range of uses can be supported under
Policy ED3 provided they contribute positively to the vitality and viability of the town centre. The proposed
use is an appropriate activity for a town centre location and will complement its principal retail and service
functions. However, the property is also within the Core Activity Area where uses other than Classes 1 and 3
are to be refused under Policy ED4, unless the proposal can be assessed as positively contributing to the
town centre. This proposal would most comfortably fit within Class 2 and, even if categorised outside a
Class (sui generis) it would be in conflict with Policy ED4 since it is within neither Class 1 nor 3. The test is
whether the proposal would make a significant positive contribution to the core retail function of the town
centre. To assist with this test, Policy ED4 identifies six criteria to apply to Class 2 uses, and these are
considered in turn:

g 7 How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips

Page 84



A dog groomer's has the potential to contribute to linked shopping trips. As noted in the applicant's
supporting statement, customers can leave their dogs off, and then visit shops or cafes in the town centre.
The central location of the premises makes this possible. However, not all dog owners may choose to do
this. In all likelihood, the level of linked shopping trips from customers using the proposed business
compared with those visiting a shop or café in the same premises is likely to be less. While the difference
between this proposal and a retail or café use will not be significant (given that the premises is relatively
small), the net benefit to the town centre is likely to be less than the Class 1 and 3 uses promoted by Policy
ED4.

2 Footfall contribution

The outlet is currently vacant and, therefore, the proposed use is certainly more beneficial to the town by
way of footfall contribution than the current vacancy. Also, the outlet is so small that its overall contribution to
the town centre by way of footfall will, whether it is in Class 1, 2 or 3, or another use will, on the whole, be
relatively small. However, comparing with a Class 1 retail or Class 3 café use, the use of the property as a
dog groomers is, in all likelihood, likely to involve less footfall per day than a retail or café use and that would
not reflect the purpose of the policy. Reducing footfall will have a knock-on effect for other Class 1 and 3
uses,

The applicant has stated his intention to sell goods from the premises (30-40%), which will assist in footfall
numbers, albeit the level of retail trade is not something that could be easily enforced via a planning
consent, if granted. The business will be new, and this suggestion was made in response to Economic
Development's comments. Therefore, it would not be prudent to expect this level of retail trade to be
guaranteed. Itis not considered, in any case, that the proposed use would likely compare as favourably to
the footfall contribution of a retail or café use in the same location.

3. Current vacancy and footfall rates

As the Forward Planning Service notes, the town's vacancy rate has dropped of late and the footfall rates in
the area have, in their interpretation, significantly increased. These rates will, of course, vary in time and are
a useful record of past activity, rather than a strong indicator of future trends. However, they do suggest that
Bank Street, in particular, is in a relatively stable position. As they note, the level of vacancy and footfall in
the town do not suggest that a departure from Class 1 or Class 3 is justified.

4. Longevity of vacancy

The applicant advises that the most recent business closed in October. This application was made in
December. While the speed of this proposal is welcome, and demonstrates that such an outlet in such a
highly central location is desirable, it also suggesls that the potential for a retail or café business to operate
from it has been given little, if any, opportunity. Had the property been vacant for longer, most likely at least
a year, this would provide more weight in favour of a use which does not comply with Policy ED4. However,
as it stands, the unit has not been vacant long and, in recent years, has not had apparent difficulty in finding
new occupiers.

5. Marketing history of premises

The applicant advises that the unit was advertised as far back as May 2017 by means of signage in and on
the shop, thus how it came to his attention. He looked into the retail business as a going concern, but
established that it was not viable or sustainable as it was. This level of marketing is extremely limited. As
the Forward Planning Section notes, there is currently limited interest in the town's larger retail units.
However, that may not be the case for smaller units. The extent to which this unit has been marketed for
potential sale or lease by a Class 1 or 3 business has been inadequate. Evidence of unsuccessful marketing
over at least six months, in local papers and websites, as well as a board on the building, would be the
minimum necessary to demonstrate that no retailer or café operator would be interested in occupying it.

On a related note, the applicant has stated that the ‘well-being' and micro chipping side of the business
should not be forgotten, and points to the potential for the proposal to be an asset to the town. These points
are accepted, and the proposed use will potentially be an asset to the town. However, it comprises the use
of a premises that could potentially provide a stronger contribution in the form of a Class 1 or 3 use which
the LDP positively endorses. There has been next to no opportunity for a retailer or café outlet to do this,

Page 85



and that suggests that the proposal is premature without such marketing having first been properly
undertaken.

6. Ability to retain shop frontage

The shop frontage would be unaffected as no alterations are proposed as part of this application. There is
also the potential to require an internal frontage display since it is the applicant’s intentions to sell goods as
well as provide the principal dog grooming business. The frontage is relatively small and, therefore, whether
it is in retail, café or a professional use such as this, the internal display will not have a significant bearing on
the town centre. In this case, the proposal is not unacceptable as regards its frontage display

Services and parking

The property is expected to have existing mains and water services. It has no dedicated parking, though that
is not a concern for an established town centre property. Bin storage and collection will be expected to
follow existing arrangements.

Flood risk

The site is within the 1:200 flood risk area for the town but is an established premises and the proposal is
not for a vulnerable use. If the application were to be approved, an informative note could refer to the Flood
Protection Officer’s advice.

Amenity

There would be no harm to neighbouring residential amenity or neighbouring businesses from a well
operated business and | note that the EHS has raised no concerns.

Alterations

No alterations are proposed to the building. An informative can refer the applicant to the potential for
alterations to require Planning, Advertisement and/or Listed Building Consent.

Conclusion

The proposal would be a positive contributor to the town centre. However, it would occupy a unit which is
safeguarded for a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. The proposal would be for a Class 2 use
which, though it may include some element of retail, will not comply with Policy ED4. Applying the tests of
Policy ED4, the fact that the property has not been vacant for very long and does not appear to have been
subject to marketing of any significance, suggest that the opportunity given for a Class 1 or 3 use to occupy
it has been insufficient. Though the applicant’s business would be welcome in the town centre, and the effect
of its operation from this outlet will not be significantly different from a Class 1 or 3 use due to its size, it will
not likely generate the same degree of footfall as either of those uses. It is not considered that a departure
from a retail or food and drink use is appropriate or justified at this time. To do so would materially affect
determinations on other applications for Class 2 uses within the Core Activity Area. The proposed
development will not comply with Policy ED4 and other material considerations do not outweigh this conflict.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development would not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that
the use would not comprise a Class 1 or 3 use; would occupy a premises which has not been sufficiently
marketed for sale or let; and which has been vacant for a relatively short period. The level of footfall
contribution to the town centre will likely be less than that generated by a Class 1 or 3 use operating from
the same location and this would detract from the future viability and vitality of the town centre

Recommendation: Refused

Page 86



1 The proposed development would not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016
in that the use would not comprise a Class 1 or 3 use; would occupy a premises which has not been
sufficiently marketed for sale or let; and which has been vacant for a relatively short period. The
level of footfall contribution to the town centre will likely be less than that generated by a Class 1 or
3 use operating from the same location and this would detract from the future viability and vitality of

the town centre

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 87



Page 88



Scottish

Borders
= COUNCIL

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY DECISION NOTICE

APPEAL UNDER SECTION 43A (8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING
(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL
REVIEW PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Local Review Reference: 18/00007/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 17/01704/FUL

Development Proposal: Change of use from retail to dog grooming practice
Location: 38 Bank Street, Galashiels

Applicant: Mr S Wilson

DECISION

The Local Review Body reverses the decision of the appointed officer and grants planning
permission for the reasons set out in this decision notice subject to conditions and an
informative as set out below.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

The application relates to the change of use from retail to a dog grooming practice.
The application drawings and documentation consisted of the following:

Plan Type Plan Reference No.

Location Plan

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

The Local Review Body considered the review, which had been competently made, under
section 43A (8) of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 at its meeting on 16"
April 2018.

After examining the review documentation at that meeting, which included: a) Notice of
Review (including Decision Notice); b) Officer's Report; c) Papers referred to in Officer's

Report; d) Consultations; and e) List of Policies, the LRB considered whether the social
media comments submitted by the applicant in the review documents constituted new

Page 89



evidence under Section 43B of the Act and whether or not this evidence could be referred to
in their deliberations. Members decided that the comments could have been provided and
been in front of the Appointed Officer before the application was determined and that there
were no exceptional circumstances that meant they could not have been provided at that
time. The Review Body proceeded to determine the case without reference to this
information. They also noted the applicant’s request for further procedure in the form of a
site visit and hearing but did not consider this necessary after considering the case and
viewing photographs and plans of the site and surroundings.

REASONING
The determining issues in this Review were:

(1) whether the proposal would be in keeping with the Development Plan, and
(2) whether there were any material considerations which would justify departure from the
Development Plan.

The Development Plan comprises: SESplan Strategic Development Plan 2013 and the
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. The LRB considered that the relevant listed
policies were:

¢ Local Development Plan policies: PMD2, PMD5, ED3, ED4, HD3, EP7, EP9, 152,
IS7, IS8 and 1S9

Other Material Considerations
e Scottish Planning Policy 2014

The Review Body noted that the proposal was to change the use of a former retail unit into a
dog grooming practice and that this would constitute Class 2 Use under Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997. They noted the proposal was for change of
use only and that there were no alterations proposed to the shopfront.

Members principally considered the application against Policy ED4, noting that the
application site was within the defined Core Activity Area in Galashiels, the Policy normally
opposing uses other than Classes 1 and 3 at ground floor level within the Area. As the
proposed use fell within Use Class 2, Members then considered the potential contribution of
the proposed use to the retail function of Galashiels, using the criteria listed in the
justification for Policy ED4 in the Local Development Plan.

In doing so, they noted the consultation response from Economic Development which
supported the proposed use, whilst also accepting the point made by Forward Planning that
it would not be the case that “any use is better than no use”. Members were particularly
influenced by the specific nature of the proposal for a dog grooming business, believing that
this was a specialist service that would be likely to generate linked shopping trips associated
with visiting the use, additional footfall and provide diversity and the type of niche small scale
unit that should be encouraged in the retail centre. This would integrate with the variety of
different small units in Bank Street, some of them non-retail.

Members considered that there needed to be some flexibility when it related to small scale
units, given the pressures within the town centre and the presence of larger stores. Whilst
noting that the shop had not been vacant for long, Members considered it important that the
proposed use would allow the unit to be occupied, to the benefit of the retail centre. It was

Page 90



also noted that there would be some ancillary sales of products within the unit and that the
shopfront would be unaltered.

Having considered the contribution of the proposed use against the relevant criteria under
Policy ED4, the Review Body considered that there would be a positive contribution and that
the change of use could be supported. Members then discussed issues relating to length of
consent and other uses within Use Class 2. They concluded that there was no justification
for a temporary period of consent but that it would be necessary to limit the use to that
applied for, rather than allowing any other use within Use Class 2. Members also required an
Informative note added to the consent to advise the applicant on the potential need for
consent in relation to any new signage or shopfront alteration.

CONCLUSION

After considering all relevant information, the Local Review Body concluded that the
development was consistent with the Development Plan and that there were no other
material considerations that would justify departure from the Development Plan.
Consequently, the application was approved.

DIRECTION

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006.

CONDITION

1. The premises shall be used for a dog grooming practice only and for no other
purpose (including any other purpose in Class 2 of the Schedule to The Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997, or in any provision
equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that
Order).

Reason: To ensure that the use is restricted to that applied for.

INFORMATIVE

1. Please note that as the property is within a Conservation Area, any alterations to the
shopfront, including changes in colour, are likely to need the submission of a
separate planning application. Advertisement Consent may also be necessary for
any new signage proposals.

Notice Under Section 21 of the Town & Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and
Local Review procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008.

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to refuse
permission for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed
development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant
may question the validity of that decision by making an application to the Court of
Session. An application to the Court of Session must be made within 6 weeks of the
date of the decision.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial

Page 91



use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the
owner of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring
the purchase of the owner of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part V
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Signed........... Councillor T Miers
Chairman of the Local Review Body

Date.....ccccnuue. 19 April 2018

Page 92



Agenda Item 5e

PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Economic Development Section
From: Development Management Date: 5th April 2018
Contact: Carlos Clarke @& 01835 826735 Ref: 18/00398/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 26th April 2018, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 26th April 2018, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into ldox.

Name of Applicant: Craig Oliver
Agent: N/A

Nature of Proposal: Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)
Site: 52 Bank Street Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1EP

OBSERVATIONS OF: Economic Development Section

CONSULTATION REPLY

We have no objections and support this application as it could increase town centre
footfall.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 93



http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/

Scottish

Borders
COUNCIL
Scottish Borders Council
Regulatory Services — Consultation reply
Planning Ref 18/00398/FUL
Uniform Ref 18/00895/PLANCO
Proposal Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)
52 Bank Street
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
Address TD1 1EP
Date 18/4/18
Amenity and Pollution Officer David A. Brown
Contaminated Land Officer Reviewed — ho comments

Amenity and Pollution

Assessment of Application

Noise
Nuisance

This is an Application for Change of use from retail to a tattoo studio.
Noise from equipment used on these premises has the potential to impact on local amenity.

Recommendation

Agree with application in principle, subject to Conditions.

Conditions

Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used in connection with the Development will not exceed Noise
Rating Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 — 0700 and NR 30 at all other times when measured within
the nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be open for ventilation). The noise emanating from any
plant and machinery used on the premises should not contain any discernible tonal component. Tonality
shall be determined with reference to BS 7445-2

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

All equipment used on the premises shall at all times be maintained and operated so as to comply with the
above Noise Limits.

Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

Page 94




Consultation Reply = iunde

ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE

To: HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGULATORY SERVICE

FAO: Carlos Clarke Planning Ref: 18/00398/FUL
From: HEAD OF ENGINEERING & INFRASTRUCTURE Date: 11" April 2018
Contact: lan Chalmers Ext: 5035 Our Ref: B48/2493

Nature of Proposal: Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)

Site: 52 Bank Street Galashiels

In terms of information that this Council has concerning flood risk to this site, | would state that The
Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal Hazard Map (Scotland) known as the “third generation flood
mapping” prepared by SEPA indicates that the site is at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1
in 200 years. That is the 0.5% annual risk of a flood occurring in any one year.

The Indicative River & Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) has primarily been developed to provide a strategic
national overview of flood risk in Scotland. Whilst all reasonable effort has been made to ensure that
the flood map is accurate for its intended purpose, no warranty is given.

Due to copyright restrictions | cannot copy the map to you however, if the applicant wishes to inspect
the maps they can contact me to arrange a suitable time to come in and view them.

In 2012, several businesses on Bank Street were badly flooded from water overtopping at the
Bakehouse Burn, running down St John Street and Gala Park, which pooled on Bank Street.

If this application is to be approved, | would recommend that the applicant contacts the Flood and
Coastal Management Team on 01835 825035 and signs up to our receive early warning from the
Council’s water level gauge on the Bakehouse Burn, there is currently a “Bank Street Flood Warning
Group” that receives the messages.

Furthermore, there is also access and egress issues during flood conditions and | would recommend
that, to receive flood warnings from SEPA, the applicant signs up to FLOODLINE at www.sepa.org.uk or
by telephone on 0845 988 1188.

Many businesses on the street own flood gates and a number of flood protection products such as
floodgates and air-vent covers are also commercially available from the Council at heavily discounted
prices through our subsidised flood product scheme; details of these can be found by calling Emergency
Planning on 01835 825056. | would recommend that the owners purchase a flood gate and self-closing
airbricks if required.

Page 95


http://www.sepa.org.uk/

Notwithstanding the above this is a change of use that is unlikely to have a significant effect on the
storage capacity of the functional flood plain or affect local flooding problems and | would not oppose it
on flooding grounds.

Please note that this information must be taken in the context of material that this Council holds in
fulfilling its duties under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009.

lan Chalmers

Engineer — Flood and Coastal Management
Scottish Borders Council

Page 96



PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Forward Planning Section
From: Development Management Date: 5th April 2018
Contact: Carlos Clarke @& 01835 826735 Ref: 18/00398/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 26th April 2018, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 26th April 2018, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into ldox.

Name of Applicant: Craig Oliver
Agent: N/A

Nature of Proposal: Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)
Site: 52 Bank Street Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1EP

OBSERVATIONS OF: Forward Planning Section

CONSULTATION REPLY

52 Bank Street is located within the Core Activity Area of Galashiels as defined by the Scottish
Borders Local Development Plan 2016. This application must therefore be assessed against
Policy ED4 — Core Activity Areas in Town Centres. In essence, this policy seeks to ensure Class 1
retail units are not lost within town centres as these generate higher footfall which enhances vitality
and viability of the town centre. As a result of the economic downturn Policy ED4 also allows other
complimentary uses within town centres, namely those within Use Class 3 (Food and Drink).

The retrospective proposal falls within Use Class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose
of Policy ED4. The policy does allow consideration of a number of other factors to be considered
and applied on a case by case basis which in extreme instances may allow consideration of
allowing other uses.

The key factors that influence the vitality and viability of a town centre include pedestrian footfall,
the diversity of uses and the number of vacant properties.

Policy ED4 states that proposals for uses other than Class 1 and 3 at ground level in core activity
areas will normally be refused. Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in
terms of their contribution towards the core retail area function of the area and will only be
acceptable where there is a significant positive contribution to the core retail function. Paragraph
1.2 of the fore text to Policy ED4 sets out criteria against which proposals for Class 2 uses within
core retail activity areas will be considered, these are:

. How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips;
. Footfall contribution;

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 97



http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/

Current vacancy and footfall rates
Longevity of vacancy

Marketing history of premises; and
Ability to retain shop frontage

The proposed Class 2 Use therefore requires to be tested against the aforesaid criteria.

The Council’'s Town Centre Footfall Survey at this location (point 7/8) indicates a recent increase
up to 8470 in 2017 from 6850 in 2013. The Council’s most recent retail survey (Summer 2017)
indicates that the Galashiels’ retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19%
in the Winter of 2016. It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, although by
the nature of the business and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be
substantially less than a typical retail unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not
considered these are reasons in themselves for deviating from Council policy in this instance.

The Council’s retail survey, which goes back to 2006, shows that these premises were vacant
between Spring/Summer of 2016 and the Spring/Summer of 2017. It is believed the tattooist
opened in May 2017. At no other time since 2006 have the premises been vacant. No information
has been submitted in respect of the marketing of the premises at the time it was vacant. It is not,
therefore, possible to assess this retrospective application in terms of the marketing history of the
proposal during this period. Bank Street is the most attractive and buoyant retail area of
Galashiels, being opposite the well maintained and attractive garden. Vacancy rates on Bank
Street have historically been low.

Town centre regeneration in Galashiels is a major objective for the Council and these principles
are identified in the Blueprint. If the Council allows a number of uses which do not meet the
principal thrust of Policy ED4 this would defeat the long term aims of generating healthy footfall.
This would have major implications for the aspirations of ensuring a buoyant and healthy town
centre.

It is not considered that this planning application meets the requirements of Policy ED4 and should
therefore be refused.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 98



http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION

Scottish

Borders
COUNCIL

Comments provided by

Roads Planning Service

Contact e-mail/number

Officer Name and Post

Alan Scott

Senior Roads Planning Officer

ascott@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 826640

Date of reply

25" April 2018

Planning Application
Reference

18/00398/FUL

Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

Proposed Development

Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)

Site Location

52 Bank Street, Galashiels

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be made after
consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.

Background and
Site description

Key Issues
(Bullet points)

Assessment

Given its previous use, it is unlikely that this proposal will result in a detrimental
effect on the surrounding road network. There is town centre parking available
both on and off street within acceptable walking distance of this location which
will adequately cater for the anticipated traffic associated with this proposal.

Informatives

Recommendation [ Object XIDo not object | [1Do not object, LIFurther information
subject to conditions required

Recommended

Conditions

Recommended

Signed: DJI

18/00398/FUL

Page 99

Page 1of1



mailto:ascott@scotborders.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5f
List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 18/00020/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 18/00398/FUL

Development Proposal: Change of use from retail to tattoo studio (retrospective)
Location: 52 Bank Street, Galashiels

Applicant: Craig Oliver

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability

a) In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,

b) it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

c) it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

d) it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

e) it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

f) it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

g) it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h) It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

i) it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
i) it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the

highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,

k) it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

) it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

m) it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in

accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Page 101



List of Policies

Accessibility

0) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

[9))] it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within

Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following
criteria are satisfied:

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the

social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town
and village cramming’; and

d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its
surroundings; and

e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water
and drainage and schools capacity; and

f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining

properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design
statements as appropriate.

POLICY ED3: TOWN CENTRES AND SHOPPING DEVELOPMENT
The Council will seek to develop and enhance the role of town centres. A network of centres
and growth of the retail sector will be supported through directing development to the

following district town centres:

Duns, Eyemouth, Galashiels, Hawick, Jedburgh, Kelso, Melrose, Peebles, Selkirk

Page 102



List of Policies

To protect town centres, town centre locations will be preferred to edge-of-centre locations
which, in turn, will be preferred to out-of-centre locations. An out-of- centre location will only
be considered where there is no suitable site available in a town centre or edge-of-centre
location.

The council will support a wide range of uses appropriate to a town centre. Proposals for
shopping development and other town centre developments will generally be approved
within defined district town centres provided that the character, vitality, viability, and mixed
use nature of the town centre will be maintained and enhanced. For the avoidance of doubt,
the council will apply the preferred order of locations set out above to appropriate uses
generating significant footfall, including community and cultural facilities, offices, libraries,
and education and healthcare facilities as well as retail and commercial leisure uses. It will
also ensure that different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations.

Town centre enhancement, including the provision of new retail facilities and complementary
non-retail uses, will be encouraged in centres both within the hierarchy and other centres
which:

a) are council priorities for area regeneration because of special economic difficulties
and/or population decline,

b) are subject to significant retail spending leakage,

c) play an important role in areas planned for substantial development under the

development strategy.

The council will have regard to the following considerations, where relevant, in assessing
applications for out of centre development, including retail proposals:

a) the individual or cumulative impact of the proposed development on the vitality and
viability of existing town centres,

b) the availability of a suitable town centre or edge of centre site,

c) the ability of the proposal to meet deficiencies in shopping provision which cannot be
met in town centre or edge of centre locations,

d) the impact of the proposal on travel patterns and car usage,

e) the accessibility of the site by a choice of means of transport,

f) the preference for commercial centres in the preferred order of locations, including
appropriate retail clusters and parks, over other out of centre locations,

9) the extent to which a proposal would constitute appropriate small scale shopping
provision designed to serve the needs of local rural communities,

h) the location of the proposal. Sites will be located within existing settlements and,

within them preference will be given to applications on vacant or derelict sites, or on
sites deemed to be surplus to requirements.

The council will encourage the use of town centres during the evening provided residential
amenity is protected. Any proposed development which would create an unacceptable
adverse impact on the town centre will be refused.

POLICY ED4: CORE ACTIVITY AREAS IN TOWN CENTRES

To provide flexibility and maintain vitality and viability in the retail core of the town centre,
core activity areas have been identified in Galashiels, Hawick, Peebles, Kelso, Selkirk,
Melrose, Jedburgh, Duns and Eyemouth. In core activity areas a mix of uses appropriate to
the town centre will be allowed. Class 1 and 3 of the Use Class Order are seen as
appropriate uses within core activity areas.

Page 103



List of Policies

Proposals for uses other than Class 1 and 3 at ground level in core activity areas will
normally be refused.

Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in terms of their contribution
towards the core retail function of the area and will only be acceptable where there is a
significant positive contribution to the core retail function.

Other uses, such as residential, are encouraged above shops and other town centre uses.
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that
would be lost; and

) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:

) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,

i) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP9: CONSERVATION AREAS

The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area
which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale,
proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.

The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle
Consent.

Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

a) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical
form or state of disrepair, and

b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and

c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as

part of the townscape.
In cases a) to ¢) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable

alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed.

Page 104



List of Policies

Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for
demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and
design concepts of the proposals.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with
approved standards.

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY IS8: FLOODING

At all times, avoidance will be the first principle of managing flood risk. In general terms, new
development should therefore be located in areas free from significant flood risk.
Development will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding from any source
or would materially increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. The ability of functional
flood plains to convey and store floodwater should be protected, and development should be
located away from them.

Within certain defined risk categories, particularly where the risk is greater than 0.5% annual
flooding probability or 1 in 200 year flood risk, some forms of development will generally not
be acceptable. These include:

a) development comprising essential civil infrastructure such as hospitals, fire stations,
emergency depots etc., schools, care homes, ground-based electrical and
telecommunications equipment unless subject to an appropriate long term flood risk
management strategy;

b) additional built development in undeveloped and sparsely developed areas.

Other forms of development will be subject to an assessment of the risk and mitigation
measures.

Developers will be required to provide, including if necessary at planning permission in
principle stage:

a) a competent flood risk assessment, including all sources of flooding, and taking
account of climate change; and
b) a report of the measures that are proposed to mitigate the flood risk.

The information used to assess the acceptability of development will include:

a) information and advice from consultation with the council’s flood team and the
Scottish Environment Protection Agency;

b) flood risk maps provided by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency which
indicate the extent of the flood plain;

c) historical records and flood studies held by the council and other agencies, including

past flood risk assessment reports carried out by consultants and associated

Page 105



List of Policies

comments from the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, also held by the
council;
(d) the Scottish Environment Protection Agency’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.

POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE

WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or
failing that:

b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or
failing that:

c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or

temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone
treatment plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:

d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing
it can be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to
public health, the environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.

Development will be refused if:

a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to

provide for new infrastructure.

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE

Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites,
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required),
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
o “Shop Fronts and Shop Signs” Supplementary Planning Guidance 2011
e Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot Study 2018

e Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Page 106



Agenda Item 6a

Notice of Review

Scottish
Borders
—== COUNCIL

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING {(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS
AMENDED)IN RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROGEDURE}
{SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)
Name  Robin Purdie Name
Address 16 High Cross Avenue, Melrose Address
Postcade TD6 95Q Postcode

Contact Telephone 1 _ Contact Telephone 1
Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2
Mark this box to confir all contact should be through
this representative:
Yes No
* Do you agree to cormrespondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail? E]

Planning authority Scotish Borders Councit

Planning authority’s application reference number 1soo7earuL

Site address 37 Bank Streat, Galashists, TO1 1EP

Description of ed

develg?:irﬁgnct' propos Change of use from retait (Class1) to mortgage shop (Class 2)
Date of application 17/06/2018 Date of decision (if any) cznezms

Page 1of 4

Page 107



Notice of Review
Note: this notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1.  Application for planning permission {including householder application)

Application for planning permission in principle I:l

3.  Further application {including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has beenl:'
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, vanation or removal of a planning
condition) I:I
4.  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review (tick cne box)

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the pericd allowed for determination of D
the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer [:l

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to detemmine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Furlther information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as:
written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions; andfor inspecting the land which is the
subject of the review case.

Piease indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures} you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may fick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions
2. One or more hearing sessions
3. Siteinspection El

4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure I:l

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

| believe our proposal should be reconsidered. The unit has been empty and marketed for 2 years and there
appears 10 be no logic or fairness in recently granting permission to the dog groomers then refusing us

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:

Yes No
1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land? |:| |:|
2  1sit possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry? |:| |:|

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4

Page 108




Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review of your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your nofice of review and all matiers you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

My company has had an offer accepted to purchase 37 Bank Street, which has been empty and on the market for
neanly 2 years. We are an independent morntgage brokerage, and are going to rebrand our company to Borders
Morigage Hub upon moving. We are currently based in Edinburgh, but | am a bom & bred Borderer who has been
arranging morigages around the mortgages for nearly 18 years.

Thus far, change-of-use planning permission has been declined even though:

1. The property has been empty and on the market for nearly 2 years

2. We will create jobs. Atleast one local person will be recruited immediately upon us arriving

3. We will bring an awful lot more footfall to the area than the shop has generated in the last 2 years

4. Our presence will enhance the area

5. A dog grooming business was granted permission very recently, at the nend-door property. This company
appears to be a one-man business, and that property was on the market for a lot less time than number 37

| have attached our supporting statement, along with additional info, and would be grateful if the outcome could be
reconsidered.

As it stands, we find the refusal to be, at best, strange given the points above and, at worst, borderline
discriminatory against professional services businesses. And it does not really create the impression that
Galashiels is open to inward investment from businesses that want to reloccate there.

And with regard to us being refused permission after the dog grooming business was recently accepted — we would
really question the fairness of the decision to decline us if this cannot be overturned on appeal.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the F_QI

determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

Since making our initial application, some new information has since emerged regarding the previous use of the
building. Prior to being owned by the current owner the property was at one time the office of Pike & Chapman
solicitors, and prior to that was an office for the Pearl insurance company. Both of these are Class 2.

Page 3cf4

Page 109



Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit
with your notice of review and intend to rely on in support of your review. Nole: there will be no
opportunity to submit further decuments to accompany this notice of review.

|0ur supporting statement, which was previously submitied to the planning officer.

An additional letter with new info and further thoughts

Note: the planning authority will make a copy of the nofice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. it may also be available on the planning authority website.

Chacklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confinn you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
your review:

¥'| Full comptetion of all parts of this form
Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

All documents, materials and evidence which you intend fo rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note: where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, vanation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earier
consent.

Declaration

I the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

I,
Date | /21{/&'/(5‘ |

Signed

The completed form should be returned to the Clerk of the Local Review Body, Democratic
Services, Scottish Barders Council, Councif Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA or sent
by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 4 of 4

Page 110



16 High Cross Avenue
Melrose
TD6 95Q

24™ july 2018
Scottish Borders Council
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
TD6 QSA

Dear Sirs,

Ref: 18/00764/FUL 37 Bank Street, Galashiels, TD1 1EP

With regard to the above application, we write in respanse to the Planning Consultation document
that was added to the planning portal on 19% July, and with additional detail regarding our proposal.

The document culminates with the recommendation that our change-of-use application should be
refused. So, we have taken time to consider this and also the Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot
Study, as published on 16 July. So, with this letter we hape to further explain why we believe that
the refusal would be not be in the interests of the community in Galashiels and the wider region as a
whole,

Our Company

We are an independent mortgage brokerage that is currently based on George Street in Edinburgh,
albeit | myself am a born and bred Borderer. Having been assisting clients in The Borders for many
years, we have a large number of active clients across the region as a whole, indeed we have almost
400 at last count.

We are not looking to open a new regionat branch of our current business (MQV8 Financial) in The
Borders. We are, in fact, looking to fully relocate to Galashiels and be headquartered at 37 Bank
Street. And in doing so we would rename the business Borders Mortgage Hub.

Our Intention

As indicated by use of the word “Hub” in our new name, we do not intend to operate in the manner
of what could be perceived as a “traditional” mortgage broker. Qur whole onus will be “no
appointment necessary”. Our message to consumers will be clear — walk in and you will be
accommodated. The word “Hub” suggests a busy, open and welcoming environment, and that is
exactly what we intend to create.

With this in mind, we specifically require a premises ¢n a main and busy thoroughfare. We also
require a premises with large windows that the public can see in, into an open and welcoming
working environment. Qur shop frontage {and branding as a whole) will have a modern look and
feel, to create the impression that this is absolutely not a traditional professional service business.
There will be no covered windows, no locked doors, no “by appointment only” signage, and no team
members in suits & ties.

Page 111



We also only intend to use local companies, based in the Borders, to provide the significant amount
of initiat work required to the property, and also the ongoing services that witl be required. These
works and services include:

Initial:

1. The trades required to convert the shop from its current condition into the functioning shop-
cum-office that we require it to be — joiners, electricians, plasteters, plumbers, heating
engineers, painters, flooring etc. These companies will be from various Border towns

2. Atelecoms company, to install the required phone system. We have & company from
Galashiels lined up for this

3. Atechnology company, to install our tech requirements. We have a company from
Galashiels lined up for this _

4. A signage company, to provide external and internal signage - We have a company from
Galashiels lined up for this

Ongoing:
1. Telecoms support - We have a company from Galashiels lined up for this,
2. [T support - We have a company from Galashiels lined up for this,
3. Cleaning - We have a company from Galashiels lined up for this
4. Window Cleaning - We have a company fram Galashiels lined up for this

The Premises

37 Bank Street is a retail unit that has been empty since August 2016. !t was first marketed by
Bannerman Burke in September 2016. In that time there have been only 10-15 viewings. In 2017 a
tentative offer was made, but this was withdrawn shortly thereafter. The business that made this
offer was not of a retail or food nature, and would have required change-of-use consent.

Our Commitment

We have made an offer to purchase the property, but it currently requires significant upgrading and
reconfiguration to meet our requirements.

So, in purchasing a property as opposed to leasing one, we will incur significant initial costs. This is
an indication of our long term commitment. We are fully relocating and rebranding an existing
business that is already successful, and currently based at a location in Edinburgh that suits us. But
we have a vision for Galashiels and the wider Borders community in general — we are coming to The
Borders to provide a service to the people of The Borders.

Some have questioned why a mortgage brokerage would relocate from the thriving Edinburgh
market. But we firmly believe that The Borders is underserved for what we will defiver in terms of a
modern, open-door, welcoming brokerage. However, to make the move, our business model
requires us to have premises of the type and in the location we are proposing to purchase.

To further demonstrate this, we have already held advanced discussions with Radio Borders to run a
sustained advertising campaign, specifically designed around the onus of “no appointment
necessary”. This demonstrates commitment to our vision, and belive that it will be the best way to
spread the message that we are open to “walk in” customers. We will also run a social media
campaign, across various platforms, to further spread this message.

Page 112



The Benefits to Galashiels and The Borders as a Whole

We already have a large number of clients in The Borders, from across the whoie region. All of these
clients have been generated by “word of mouth” or personai connections.

As it stands, we typically meet these clients at an out-of-town coffee shop or occasionally at their
own home. indeed, some of them travel to Edinburgh to meet us in our current office., Sq, at the
moment, we are not bringing footfall to any Borders town centre. This obviously would change
immediately upon opening the new premises.

Also, as well as bringing a large number of existing clients to the area, our new presence, radio
advertising and social media cam paign will clearly bring many new clients to Bank Street. And with
more new clients comes more word-of-mouth, more referrals and yet more footfail to the area.
And this is notwithstanding the fact that our staff would be purchasing goods and services from
other local businesses on a regular basis.

Our clients typically witl visit us on many occasions. What we do for clients is not “one-time
transactional” — we assist first-time buyers who will then revisit when they move. We assist movers
who move again. We assist those looking to purchase properties to let. And all of these clients
typically return to us when their mortgage needs to be reviewed. Also, when a client is purchasing a
new property it is not uncommon to meet them at least two or three times regarding that purchase
alone.

We also have built, and are continuing to build, commercial relationships with other companies in
The Borders, whose own clients will be referred to Borders Mortgage Hub for mortgage advice.,
These companies {solicitors, estate agents etc) are based in various towns throughout the Borders.
And in referring clients to Borders Mortgage Hub, these clients wil! be coming to Bank Street for
meetings, which potentially also means they will be drawn to the other shops and businesses in the
Bank Street area and Galashiels as a whole.

As a company, we are planning to relocate to The Borders to serve the people of The Borders at a
time when bank branches are closing. The closure of bank branches in the region has been well
publicised and poorly received by the community as a whole. Banks obviously provide mortgages to
many people in Galashiels and the whole Borders region. So we intend to provide a bespoke,
personal and independent “walk in” service at a time when other, larger organisations are
withdrawing from the region.

We will require staff, and will therefore create jobs for local people. We will require at least one
new full-time employee from day one, and it is expected that more will be required in due course.

The Risks

As far as we can see, there are none. We are not a “start up” business. We have been trading for
nearly 7 years, and have a large and recurring client bank, both in The Borders and further afield.

We believe the area is badly underserved in terms of what we can offer and the way in which we will
deliver our offering. We intend to be everything that a traditiona! financial services company is nat —

young, modern, welcoming, with a clear and well-known “walk in” policy.

And because of this we genuinely believe that we will bring significant footfall to the area, much
more so that a service business that operates in the more “traditional” way.

Page 113



Responses to Points Raised in the Pianning Consultation Report

We would like to respond to the points raised in the consultation report added to the SBC Planning
Portal an 19 July:

“The proposal falls within use class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose of Policy ED4”

We at Borders Mortgage Hub understand this. However, “the policy does ailow consideration of a
number of other factors to be considered, and applied on a case by case basis” — we feel that, given
how long the property has been empty and marketed, and given our offering explained above, we
are exactly the type of company that that could be granted an exception.

“Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in terms of their contribution towards
the core retaif area function of the area and will only be acceptable where there is a significant
positive contribution to the core retail function”

37 Bank Street has not generated any footbal! since August 2016. Also, we understand that a Dog
Grooming business was granted “change of use” permission six or so weeks ago, and they are now
based in the retail unit next to 37 Bank Street. With this in mind, we would question the fairness of
the decision if we were not granted permission when another class 2 business recently was.

“It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, aithough by the nature of the
business and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be substantiaily less than a
typical retail unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not considered these are reasons
in themselves for deviating from Council policy in this instance”

37 Bank Street has not generated any footfall since August 2016. Having read appendix 3 of the
Pilot Study, there seems to be a particular aversion to financial, legal and accountancy firms while, at
the same time, the rules seem to be relaxed for beauticians/nail salons etc. It is difficult to
understand this discrimination against professional services. It is unlikely that a nail salon, for
example, would generate more footfall than the kind of business that we have outlined.

“No information has been submitted in respect of the marketing of the premises for the period it
has been vacant. It is not, therefore, possible to assess this application in terms of the marketing
history of the premises during this period”

It has now been asceriained, from Bannerman Burke, that 37 Bank Street has been empty since
August 2016 and actively marketed via various channels since September 2016, both for sale and let.
During this lengthy period only 10-15 parties have viewed the property. A tentative offer was made
in 2017, but this was withdrawn shortly thereafter. The business that made this offer was not of a
retail or food nature, and would have required change-of-use consent.

“Bank Street is the most attractive and buoyant retail area of Galashiels, being opposite the well
maintained and atiractive gardens”

This is the reason that Borders Mortgage Hub wishes to be located here. We wish to move to The
Borders in arder to serve the people of The Borders. But our vison for a busy, “no appointment
necessary” hub only works on a main thoroughfare, in a unit that can have an open-plan working
area with large windows.

Page 114



“The Pilot Scheme, however, notes that financial/mortgage advisors offer an inactive frontage and
low footfall generally”

This is not an image we recognise in our business model, Qur continued success will be built on
having an active and engaging shop frontage, with good footfall. There are many businesses located
within the core area that, | believe, will generate less footfall than Borders Mortgage Hub would.

Having assessed appendix 3 of the Pilot Study we find it disappointing that certain types of class 2
businesses are deemed a “better bet” than & walk-in mortgage shop. Having provided a more
detailed explanation of our vision and intention has been provided, we hope that our proposal is
seen as very different to the more traditional {and some would say “old fashioned”) impression of a
mortgage advisory business.

“If the Council allows a number of uses which do not meet the principal thrust of Policy ED4 this
would defeat the long term aims of generating healthy footfall. This would hove major
implications for the aspirations of ensuring a buoyant and healthy town centre”

Given our plans outlined above, we genuinely believe that our offering would be an excellent
addition to Bank Street, both in terms of footfall and also overall contribution to the current look
and “perception” of the street.

With regard to Policy ED4’s criteria against which proposals for Class 2 uses within core retail
activity areas will be considered:

1. How the proposed use would coniribute to joint shopping trips — We have an existing client
bank that would come from all over the region to our office, often 2 or 3 times in short
succession, These clients, and the many new clients that our presence and advertising
campaigns would generate, are currently not providing footfall to anywhere at the moment,
with the exception of the out-of-town coffee shop we use, or indeed George Street in
Edinburgh. So, this additional footfall to Bank Street would potentially visit {and spend
money in) other businesses and shops on the street and surrounding area.

2. Footfall Contribution — The premises has not generated any footfall since August 2016.
Indeed, we are the only company to make any firm and lasting offer on the property since it
came to market in September 2016. On this basis any footfall generated by Borders
Mortgage Hub is a bonus to the area. Our estimate is that over 1,000 visits per annum will
be made to the premises, based on a very conservative 4 meetings per working day, and
given that we will have 2 fully qualified and experienced mortgage advisers based at the
premises, as well as support staff.

With a sustained advertising campaign highlighting our onus on “no appeintment
necessary”, our actual footfall could turn out to be well in excess of this figure.

3. Current Vacancy and Footfall Rates — These ¢an be found in the SBC's Town Centre Core
Activity Area Pitot Study Report, of 16/07/2018.

4. Longevity of Vacancy — 37 Bank Street has been empty since August 2016.
5. Marketing History of Premises — 37 Bank Street has been actively marketed by Bannerman

Burke since September 2016. A “for sale/let” sign has been fixed to the premises for all of
this time, the property is listed in the window of Bannerman Burke’s two shops in the

Page 115



region. And the property has also been listed on Rightmove and Bannerman Burke’'s own
website for all of this time, and Zoopla for some of the time.

Ability to Retain Shop Frontage — In order for our “no appointment necessary” ethos to
work, the shop frontage will need to reflect this. It needs to be open, consumers and
passers by need to be able to see in, and it needs to reflect the welcoming environment that
awaits inside. To have shop-frontage that did not refiect our ethos would defeat the
purpose of what we are trying to achieve.

To Conclude

We at Borders Mortgage Hub firmly believe that we will bring a good level of footfall to Bank Street
in Galashiels. And in doing so this will provide a first class and required service for the people of
Galashiels and The Barders as a whole, while at the same time:

1.
2.
3.
4,
5.

Rabin Purdie

Choosing to invest in Galashiels and The Borders, as opposed to remaining in Edinburgh
Creating jobs for local people

Utilising local business for initial and ongoing services

Bringing to life a retail unit that has stood empty since August 2016

Bringing a service that will counter bank branch closures in the area

Borders Mortgage Hub

Page 116



16 High Cross Avenue

Melrose
TD6 950
12™ August 2018
Clerk of the Local Review Body
Scottish Borders Council
Newtown 5t Boswells
TD6 05A
Dear Sirs,

Ref: 18/00764/FUL 37 Bank Street, Galashiels, TD1 1EP

Since our application, the additional info that we provided, and the subsequent refusal of our application,
we wish to formally appeal this. Please therefore find the Notice of Review Form attached.

We also wish to point out that new information has since emerged regarding the previous use of the
building. Prior to being owned by the current owner the property was at one time the office of Pike &
Chapran solicitors, and prior to that was an office for the Pearl insurance company. Bath of these are
Class 2.

Also, the planning officer’s report of 2™ August states that our proposal would not comply with the types
of uses encouraged by the Council's Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot Study. However, our
application was submitted on 17 June 2018, prior to the Pilot Study report published on 16t July. This is
a significant “shifting of the goalposts”, post-application, which has clearly done more harm than good to
our application. So we are struggling to see, in the interests of fairness, how applications made prior to
16™ July can be measured against outcome of the Pilot Study.

We therefore believe that, at best, the Pilot Study should have no impact on our application. In the exact
same way that it had no impact on the recently accepted application by the adjacent dog grooming
company. Or, at worst, we should be refunded our application fee. It is simply not fair, in our opinion,
for the findings of any study/report to have a bearing on the outcome of an application made prior to
that report being published. Especially given the acceptance granted to the adjacent dog grooming
company. And this is notwithstanding the reasons that we believe we should have been accepted
initiafly:

The length of time that the unit has been empty and marketed

The creation of jobs

The investment in Galashiels from a company that wants to relocate there from Edinburgh
The footfall that we will bring to the area

The ways in which our presence will enhance Bank Street

AN ol A o

We are hopeful that the barriers that we have incurred thus far can be lowered, and that the refusal can
be overturned.

Should you require any additional information then just let me know.

n Purdie
Borders Mortgage Hub

Attached:
Motice of Review form
Supporting statement of 24" July

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6b

%g?_été?_'; Regulatory Services
COUNC

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Iﬂpplication for Planning Permission Reference : 18/00764/FUL

| To: Robin Purdie 16 High Cross Avenue Melrose Scottish Borders TD6 9S50

With reference to your application validated on 18th June 2018 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 for the following development :-

Proposal : Change of use from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2) and external re-decoration

at: 37 Bank Street Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1EP

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated Z2nd August 2018
Regulatory Services
Council Headguarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE

TD6 0SA

Signed
Depute Chief Planning Officer

YWisit http:/feplanning. scotborders. gov. uk/online-applicatipnsd
Fage 1139




g‘é?_'élté Sr*; Regulatory Services

COUNC

APPLICATION REFERENCE : 18/00764/FUL

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
Existing Layout Refused
Floor Plans Refused
Photos Refused

colour reference Specifications Refused

photo mock-up Other Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposed development would nat comply with Palicy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016
in that it does not comprise a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. It would also not
comply with the types of uses encouraged by the Council's Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot
Study. The proposed development would potentially positively contribute to the town centre but, on
balance, its contribution would not be sufficient to override its conflict with policy and potentially
adverse effect on the town centre's core retail function

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 434
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months from the date of this notice. The
notice of review should be addressed to Corporate Administration, Council Headquarters, MNewtown 5t
Boswells, Melrose TDE OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve an the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997,

Yisit http://eplanning. scotborders. gov. uk/online-applications o
Page 120




Agenda Item 6¢

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Ill REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 18/00764/FUL
APPLICANT : Robin Purdie
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT : Change of use from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2) and
external re-decoration
LOCATION: 37 Bank Street
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD1 1EP
TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status
Location Plan Refused
Existing Layout Refused
Floor Plans Refused
Photos Refused

colour reference Specifications Refused

photo mock-up Other Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: O
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Consultations

Roads Planning Service: No reply

Community Council: No reply

Forward Planning Service: The site is within the Core Activity Area of Galashiels as defined by the
Local Development Plan 2016. This application must therefore be assessed against Policy ED4. The
proposal falls within Use Class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose of Policy ED4. The
policy does allow consideration of a number of other factors to be considered and applied on a case by
case basis which in extreme instances may allow consideration of allowing other uses. Policy ED4
sets out the criteria. The key factors that influence the vitality and viability of a town centre include
pedestrian footfall, the diversity of uses and the number of vacant properties. Class 2 uses will only be
acceptable where there is a significant positive contribution to the core retail function

The Council's Town Centre Footfall Survey at this location (indicates a recent increase up to 8470 in
2017 from 6850 in 2013. The Council's most recent retail survey (Summer 2017) indicates that the
Galashiels retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19% in the Winter of 2016.
It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, although by the nature of the business
and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be substantially less than a typical retail

Page 121



unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not considered these are reasons in themselves for
deviating from Council policy in this instance.

The Council's retail survey, which goes back to 2006, shows that these premises have been vacant
since late 2016. No information has been submitted in respect of the marketing of the premises for the
period it has been vacant. It is not, therefore, possible to assess this application in terms of the
marketing history of the premises during this period. Bank Street is the most attractive and buoyant
retail area of Galashiels, being opposite the well maintained and attractive gardens. Vacancy rates on
Bank Street have historically been low.

The Council agreed to approve a one year Pilot Scheme at a special meeting on 16 July 2017 for
Galashiels and Hawick. This allows for a wider and more flexible range of uses to be supported.
However, financial/mortgage advisors are noted as offering an inactive frontage and low footfall
generally. This type of use would not be permissible within the Galashiels Core Activity Area under this
Pilot Scheme. If the Council allows a humber of uses which do not meet the principal thrust of Policy
ED4 this would defeat the long term aims of generating healthy footfall. It is not considered that this
planning application meets the requirements of Policy ED4 (and the Pilot Scheme) and should
therefore be refused.

Flood Protection Service: The site is at risk from a flood event with a return period of 1 in 200 years.
Notwithstanding this, this is a small scale change of use that is unlikely to have a significant effect on
the storage capacity of the functional flood plain or affect local flooding problems, and he would not
oppose it on flooding grounds. He would strongly encourage the applicant to sign up free to the
Council's "Galashiels Flood Warning Group". A number of flood protection products such as
floodgates and air-vent covers are also commercially available for the existing property

Heritage and Design Officer: Whilst he generally has no objections to the principle of the proposed
works, the current application is light on detail. The existing external stone shop front has been
partially painted in the past and is currently a mid-green shade. His understanding is that this painted
stone will be repainted a dark grey colour but it is not clear from the application what is the extent of
this repainting. There is information of proposed signage, but it is not clear where this is to be located.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Local Development Plan 2016

PMD2, PMDS5, ED3, ED4, HD3, EP9, 1S7, 1S9

SPG Shop Fronts and Shop Signs 2011
Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot Study

Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Recommendation by - Carlos Clarke (Lead Planning Officer) on 2nd August 2018

Site and application description

This application seeks consent to convert a vacant shop to a 'mortgage shop'. This would be a professional
service categorised within Class 2 of the Use Classes (Scotland) Order 1997 (as amended). The use would
operate on a 'walk-in, no appointment necessary basis'. A related LBC application (18/00785/LBC) has been
submitted that includes repainting of the shop front dark blue - that aspect also requires Planning
Permission, and requires consideration here.

In support of this application, the applicant has provided statements, initially with the application, and

subsequently in response to matters raised by this service. These have been considered in full, can be
viewed on Public Access and are referred to in this assessment where necessary.

Page 122



The property is a ground floor shop, with symmetrical frontage, within a 2 % storey Victorian building with a
stone frontage onto Bank Street. The building is Category C Listed and located within the Conservation
Area.

Principle

The property is within the town centre. Policy ED3 supports a wide range of uses appropriate to the town
centre. This is a use appropriate to a town centre location, capable of contributing positively to its overall
character, mixed use nature and overall vitality and viability. However, the property is also within the Core
Activity Area where uses other than Class 1 (retail) and 3 (food and drink) are to be refused under Policy
ED4, unless the proposal can be assessed as contributing significantly to the town centre's core retail
function. This proposal would be a Class 2 use and, therefore, it would be in conflict with Policy ED4 since it
is within neither Class 1 nor 3. The test is whether the proposal would make a significant positive
contribution to the core retail function of the town centre. To assist with this test, Policy ED4 identifies six
criteria to apply to Class 2 uses, and these are considered in turn below. In making this assessment, a
considerable material consideration is the Council's recently adopted Pilot Study which promotes other uses
not falling within Class 1 or 3:

1. How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips

A Class 2 use is generally considered to be less lively than a Class 1 retail or Class 3 food and drink use in
terms of contributing to a visitor's shopping experience within a town centre. The Council's Pilot Study
recognises that ‘financial/mortgage advisors' will provide some linked trip potential, but it identifies this type
of use as not being acceptable within the Core Activity Area overall. The applicant proposes a 'no
appointment’ basis of operating. That has the potential to attract a shopper who may combine a visit with
shopping. To some extent, therefore, this proposal may contribute to joint shopping trips, and this particular
business may do so more than a traditional mortgage advisor. However, if consent were granted, the
Council could not reasonably control the operations of the business, so it would be a matter for the applicant
as to how clients use the business's services. Each business will provide different levels of footfall so
comparing is difficult. Ultimately, however, the proposal will likely contribute to joint shopping trips to a lesser
degree than Class 1 or 3 uses, but perhaps comparatively with some other uses supported by the Pilot
Study, for example, an estate agent.

2. Footfall contribution

This proposal will generate footfall which, as the applicant notes, the vacant shop currently does not do.
However, an assessment of its contribution in terms of footfall cannot be reasonably made against a vacant
shop, but rather the lawful use of the premises, which is currently Class 1 retail. The Council's Pilot Study
judges that this type of use will generate low footfall generally. The applicant states that, on a conservative
level, this proposal could generate 1000 visits per year, on a conservative estimate of four meetings per day.
Added to that will be footfall from staff and others. This footfall contribution, while welcome, will be lower
than that of a shop of café. While comparisons with uses that are accepted by the Pilot Study, such as nalil
salons and beauticians, are noted, these provide a personal service that cannot be provided remotely. While
there may be a significant one-to-one element to this particular business, it can also operate on a basis that
does not essentially require personal contact. The same, though, could also be said for other uses accepted
by the Pilot Study, such as a bank, betting office and estate agents. However, these all provide different
services and will contribute differently to the town centre. Ultimately, | would conclude that this proposal will
be a welcome addition to the town centre in terms of footfall, but not likely a significant one.

3. Current vacancy and footfall rates

The Forward Planning Service outline the vacancy levels and footfall rates above. As noted, vacancy levels
have fallen, and footfall has increased. Vacancy rates in Bank Street are historically low. This remains the
case now. That said, the Council's introduction of the Pilot Study recognises that more progress needs to be
made. However, the level of vacancy in Bank Street is not significant itself, and the Pilot Study does not
consider that the flexibility to be provided to uses other than Class 1 or 3 needs to, at this time, extend to
mortgage advisors. The Pilot Study has only just been introduced, and it requires time to establish if it will
have a marked impact on vacancy rates in the town..

4. Longevity of vacancy

Page 123



The property has been vacant since August 2016. This period of vacancy is a concern, albeit not
unprecedented. The Pilot Study that has been introduced may result in greater interest in the premises from
uses that are accepted by the study.

5. Marketing history of premises

The property has been marketed for sale and let since September 2016, with a board on the premises and
website marketing. It has attracted 10-15 viewings, and a withdrawn offer from a barber (a Class 1 use). The
applicant states that the seller considers that retailers and café operators do not feel the property is suitable
for their requirements, most likely due to the modernisation required. This, however, is a matter for the
owner to resolve, and is not a consequence of planning policy. It is noted that the applicant will invest in the
property, and that will overcome this aspect. However, at this early stage of the Pilot Study, it would be
premature to approve this use without other uses accepted by the Pilot Study being given the opportunity to
consider the potential of the property.

6. Ability to retain shop frontage

The applicant has advised that his intention is to keep the frontage welcoming. The proposal will result in
redecoration of the property frontage and no alterations to its frontage are necessary. In that sense, it will
continue to contribute positively to the town centre. The proposal is not likely to be as lively as a shop or
café, but it may not be significantly different to the visual contribution made by some uses accepted by the
Pilot Study, such as a bank or a beauticians.

Summary

Ultimately, this development would be a positive contributor, resulting in investment in the shop and the town
generally. The business model the applicant proposes may also result in a livelier, more welcoming
premises than a traditional mortgage advisor may provide. However, how the applicant operates the
business is not something this authority can reasonably control. This proposal is for a Class 2 financial
service, and would be a use that the Pilot Study specifically does not encourage. Though the property's
continued vacancy is a concern, the Council's Pilot Study may broaden the potential for finding a new
occupier amongst those uses the Pilot Study endorses.

The similarity between this proposed uses and uses which the Pilot Study accepts, are acknowledged. This
proposal has elements which compare favourably with those uses, however, none which would appear to be
overwhelming. The Pilot Study excludes this specific use and, though the applicant's business model may
set this proposal apart from traditional mortgage advisors, it is the use that seeks consent, not the business
model. Though the applicant has drawn attention to the Council's approval of a dog groomer's adjacent this
property (which is also excluded by the Pilot Study), that was subject to some materially different
considerations. In particular, it was approved prior to the Pilot Study's adoption

Any continued vacancy of the premises is regrettable, however, it would appear to be premature to permit a
use which the Pilot Study is not trying to attract to the Core Activity Area at this time. There is no clear
reason why a use supported by the Pilot Study, such as an estate agents, nail salon etc could not operate
from this premises. On balance, therefore, while the proposal would indeed be a positive contributor to the
town centre as a whole, it is not considered that it can be supported within this prominent unit within the
Core Activity Area at this time.

Other matters:

Services and parking

Mains services are expected to be available, and existing bin storage arrangements will be in place. Given
the town centre and established use, no parking is necessary

Flood risk

Page 124



The property is at potential risk of flooding but not to the extent that consent should be refused, given the
established and proposed uses of the premises. An informative note that reflects our Flood Protection
Officer's comments could be applied to a consent, were it to be granted.

Amenity

The proposed use will not conflict with the amenity of neighbouring properties or operation of other
businesses

Alterations

The alterations to the exterior are limited to repainting the shop front dark blue. This will be a sympathetic
redecoration on the basis that only the existing painted elements are repainted. A condition similar to that
imposed on 18/00785/LBC could be imposed here

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development would not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it
does not comprise a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. It would also not comply with the types
of uses encouraged by the Council's Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot Study. The proposed
development would potentially positively contribute to the town centre but, on balance, its contribution would
not be sufficient to override its conflict with policy and potentially adverse effect on the town centre's core
retail function

Recommendation: Refused

1 The proposed development would not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016
in that it does not comprise a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. It would also not
comply with the types of uses encouraged by the Council's Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot
Study. The proposed development would potentially positively contribute to the town centre but, on
balance, its contribution would not be sufficient to override its conflict with policy and potentially
adverse effect on the town centre's core retail function

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6d

it v

i TOWN AND COUNTRY For Office Use Only:
SCOttISh PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT P ——
y Borders 17 as avennen) PRI TR

PLANNING APPLICATION

1. Name and Address of applicant.

Date Registered:

U7 Nane and Address of Agent. ]

..................................... Posl Code.eeninnnersnens

Tel. No. ... e R+ R e

E-mail addrg -mail address........... T~ R
_2._FUlLPOS aycumsoswimppasangitone wuysaagedon thelsieplan) . o0 o

3F LK ST, GAmSEaY, To| lep

Is this address a flat?

Yes N [T

3. Brief Descriplion of Proposed Development: = ... = & =
CH el INTD Wi IN™ MoRTyAg e SibP
0N Ptnd “wWAMC (N ofFice with 2. S CligvT adcen Room S
0L & Lack of The SHhce ‘

4. Type of Application (tick one box only)

(a} Full application for new building works and/or a change of use and/cr engineering works EI

(b) Full application fer a echange of use not invalving any building works

(c) Planning permission In Principle

(d) Approval of matters specified in conditlons (pursuant to a Planning Permission in Principle)

(e) Application for removal or variation of a conditien en a planning permission previously granted
(Please indicale reference number of previous application)

() Application for renewal of a limited peried permission
(Ploase indicale reference number af previous application)

(@) Application for renewal of an unimplemented permission
You need only answer Questions 17 and 18)
(Please indicate reference number of previous application)

5. Applications far Matters Specified in Conditions (if you:ticked (d).in Q.4, plecase complete)

(a) Stale the reference number and date of the planning permission in PARGIPIE ......o.veviee e,

(b) State which of the conditions are submitted for approval as part of this application:

All Conditions (please tick) aor Condilion Numbers

Page 127



6. Pre-Application Discussion and.Consultation

(@) Has assistance or prior advice been sought from Scottish Borders Council about this applicalion?

e

If yes, please complete the following informalion about the advice you were given:

Yes No | v

QOfficer Name: Date:

Council Reference:

(b) Has Pre-Applicaticn Consullation taken place (for MAJOR developments: See Notes for Guidance)?

Yes No I}/

If Yes, a Pre-application Consultation Repart should accompany this application

7. Site Area ' SRR R - 8. "State.whether applicant owns or controls any
ad;mmng land. fedged in blue on submitted plans)

9. Existing/Proposed Uses T T T

Please indicate all existing and proposed uses that are the subject of this application:

Existing B ; | Proposad =
feﬂ‘m-“ﬂoﬂ Lean CorlTd AR SLE | MORTaTIGE S ThoF WA ol B WD
SWE SePT Wik [ AT NéceeCsnry

W10 Commerce and Businessia i i i R vt e ets i S o

(A): Floorspace : :
Please indicated the total amount of floorspace {in square mares} o which this application relates
Existing — FProposed -
Cikek 2031 §gwm St — Ao OP’TW‘!E
{A) Employment ‘- : :

Please indicate the number of staff anployed {induding parl-tma)

Existing — ﬂ/ { H- FProposed - 4 v 5_

(B) Traffic Flow - '
What is the anticipated traffic flow 1o lha sile dunng a normal working day? (No. of vehicles mnvlng in und out of the sita}

(Inclide &ll vehicles except those used by individual employees driving to work)

Existing - A} { A Froposed - ﬂj ! )

(C) Industrial Processas i
-In the case of industrial development, please gl\'e a d&ncﬂpﬂnn nf the prncassas to be c:am&d on and nf the end p;cducts as.

.well as the type of machinery to be inslalled:

Nl

[D} Storage of Hazardous Substances | gy
Wil the proposal involve the use or storage of any malerials C'f aﬁ"FB and quarrtl'ly defined as hazar:ﬁuus substances? If YES

please state materials and quantities below:

N W

Page 128



Please indicale car parking facllities/spaces:

Existing: N ( L Proposed: N { L_.

(A) There will be no new access 1o a highway (either vehicle or pedestrian), no alteration Y

lo an existing access to a public road and no alteration to any public right of way or other public path

(B) There will be a new or allered access lo a public road Vehicular Pedestrian

(C) A public right of way or other public path will be affected by the praposed development

3. Trees

Will the proposed development involve the felling of any trees? Yes No %
(If YES, pleass indicele positions on plan)

" 14. Drainage and Waler Supgly:

(A) Please slate how surface waler will be disposed of. ..., i T —_—

(B} How wil foul sewage be dealt with?

9 _
Mains sewer | Septic Tank and Soakaway Other (P1ease Speciy).........ccuu iiisamsisisiessnisanns

(C) From where will the propofsid development receive its water supply?
o

Privale source

Fublic mains supply

Where the waler supply is from a private source, has any tesling or analysis been undertaken?

vee [7 Nl o

Please indicate position of source an lacationdsite plan, and where possible provide defalls of the source fe.g. borehole, spring efc.), and of any
related pipework or apparatus

(15, Materials .

Please stale type and colour of materials io be used (if known)
EXISTG . . o s o o RIVGPOSED S o

ExlertﬂrWaﬂa R P

16. Additional Information

Is there any additional information you wish to give in support of this application?

Jlane See NeT [re

Page 129



[ WL care 7o

7) Py THIS

.-'j'.';{ﬁ’;-[}qec_faraffoﬁ "

| hereby apply for planning permission and declare that, to the best of my knowledge, the infgrfiation contained in this
application and on the submitted plans is correct.

| altach FOUR copies of the applicalion forms and endose the applicationfee of £....... A , logelher with:

Four sels of the necessary plans and drawings

In Ihe case of MAJOR developments, a Pre-Applicalion Consultalion Reporl

A Design and Access Slatement or Design Slatement, where the application sile is situaled wilhin a conservation area,
historic garden or designed lendscape, a National Scenic Area, the sile of a scheduled monument ar the curlilage of an
A Listed Build Notes for Guidance for further information)

DENBIEDE oo T e e S W R Uate’l/‘b{!f-

Signed

_18. Please complete Certificate A.and Certificate:B {please tick ONE box in.each) i - .

CERTIFICATE A under section 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotiand) Act 1997, as amended

| certify that:

At the beginning of a period of 27 days ending wilh the date of this application, nobody olher than the applicant was the ownar’ of all
of the land to which the application refates

The applican! has given the required nolice {0 everyone who, al the beginning of the pericd of 21 days ending with the dale of the
accompanying application, was tha ownar’ of any part of the land to which the application relates, as listad below:

Cwner's Hame Address at which notice was served Date on which notice was served

Wooli6a , sk
fListhg DORWAR ;mﬂ’, g | el

gl T A o et L e e B e N E ot Diate.. 20X

CERTIF' CATE B under Section 35 ol the Town and Counlry Planning (Scolland) Act 1987, as amanded

I certify that:

t the beginning of a period of 21 days ending wilh the date of this planning application, none of the land te which the application
relales is, oris part of, an agriculiural holdirg;

OR

The applicant has given the required nolice Lo every person other than the applicant who, at the beginning of 21 days ending with
the date of the application, was a lenant of an agricultural halding on all or pan of the land to which the application relates, as

follows;

Tenanl's Name Address at which nolice was servad Dale on which notice was served

......on behalf of.......... Daia(?’ 6//?

An owrer meiudes anyone with a lease on {he land lthel hes el leas! seven years left tc run

Page 130



Page 131



RO NS P NG IA R B4,
Vi PSR 08 1 6a

10w

Frraritindy Boraders Oosgraa il
Fawwi 73 Mareel D Osimtey
Frimwvrsivsgy {Soodiarnady Hat
ey

wislnfrrart S fhie

el v e rrserh
BTt Teitvd Fod £oXe B
P avtiarar

[ 5 4 410
wriunden ey

B AN L N . N " . O . ",

o)

7 En

-13m > < 2-2Fm ?

6-3Fm

Page 132

 ReNT



EResar®its iy Easyalerasy X aareanid
Frareearryr Auwrad S avuawrieye
Frimeersievg (B o otianceiy Mt
B ERER T

axsiniaoest 2O e
reapugrsiverrrearsiss sxf Tiea
wnws sy arar i aatarad Evaraiwideye
PEasEiaar

{9

{I\\\\\\\\ SN NN NS VAL M
:\
N \
N
'\
Y| ) \
Y \
w '\
/ \
[\
[
L
pmeenn oo 1 \
N
™
\

§-3FmA
1

Plobesch Lo

NS S NN N ™ON S D SN N

e

>
Q
P

meenngg Lom

BT L N N N Y W " ™ ., Y

Page 133

/’?Z@N 7




Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART Il REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 17/01704/FUL
APPLICANT : Mr S Wilson
AGENT :
DEVELOPMENT ; Change of use from retail to dog grooming practice
LOCATION: 38 Bank Street
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD11EP
TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

Location Plan Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

Consultations:

Roads Planning Service: No objections
Environmental Health Service: No comments

Economic Development Service: Understand it doesn't comply with Policy ED4. However, they do not
object because the main aim of Policy ED4 is to protect and enhance the vitality and viability of town
centres and this business could contribute to achieving this. They also do not believe this small
increase in Class 2 use will have a detrimental effect on the retail floorspace, or retail demand in
Galashiels. The business could also maybe consider selling dog leads, bowls etc on ancillary basis

Forward Planning: The proposal falls within Use Class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose
of Policy ED4. The policy does allow consideration of a number of other factors to be considered and
applied on a case by case basis which in extreme instances may allow consideration of allowing other
uses. The key factors that influence the vitality and viability of a town centre include pedestrian
footfall, the diversity of uses and the number of vacant properties. The proposed Class 2 use requires
to be tested against Policy ED4's criteria.

The Council's Town Centre Footfall Survey at this location indicates a recent significant increase up to
847 in 2017 from 685 in 2013. The Council's most recent retail survey (Summer 2017) indicates that
the Galashiels' retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19% in the Winter of
2016. It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, although by the nature of the
business and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be substantially less than a
typical retail unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not considered these are reasons in
themselves for deviating from Council policy in this instance.

Page 137



It is understood that these premises have only very recently become vacant, having operated as a
sweet shop until late 2017. The Council's retail survey, which goes back to 2006, shows that these
premises have not been vacant at any time of the survey. It has previously been occupied as a
clothes shop, a craft shop and sweet shop. Bank Street is the most attractive and buoyant retail area
of Galashiels, being opposite the well maintained and attractive garden. Vacancy rates on Bank Street
have historically been low.

It is noted that the premises are small and some consideration may be given as to what retail interest
there may be in a unit of this size. However, it does appear to be the case in Galashiels town centre
that there is limited interest in larger retail units and it is not considered that there has been sufficient
time for these premises to be marketed to gauge potential interest from retailers. It is considered there
are already other small units of similar size on Bank Street operating in retail use.

The comments of Economic Development are noted but there is concern that approvals are granted
with the fundamental test that 'any use is better than nothing'. This would be a short term response to
a much wider issue and in the longer term precedents would be set for non-class 1 uses which in time
would have a serious impact upon the vitality and viability of Galashiels. Town centre regeneration in
Galashiels is a major objective for the Council and these principles are identified in the Blueprint. If the
Council allows a number of uses which do not meet the principal thrust of Policy ED4 this would defeat
the long term aims of generating healthy footfall. This would have major implications for the
aspirations of ensuring a buoyant and healthy town centre.

The application does not meet the requirements of Policy ED4 and should therefore be refused.

Flood Protection Officer: The site is at risk in 1:200 year flood event. However, this is a small scale
development that won't affect storage capacity of the functional flood plain or affect local flooding
problems and so does not oppose. Recommends flood warnings and evacuation plan.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

Local Development Plan 2016

PMD2, PMD5, ED3, ED4, HD3, EP7, EP9, IS7, IS9

Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Recommendation by - Carlos Clarke (Lead Planning Officer) on 7th February 2018

This application seeks consent to convert a vacant shop premises located within the town centre to a dog
groomers. The site forms part of the ground floor of a 2 % storey Category C Listed Building located within
the Conservation Area. The frontage comprises a door and single window within a stone elevation. No
alterations are proposed to the building under this application.

In terms of the principle, the site is within the town centre, where a range of uses can be supported under
Policy ED3 provided they contribute positively to the vitality and viability of the town centre. The proposed
use is an appropriate activity for a town centre location and will complement its principal retail and service
functions. However, the property is also within the Core Activity Area where uses other than Classes 1 and 3
are to be refused under Policy ED4, unless the proposal can be assessed as positively contributing to the
town centre. This proposal would most comfortably fit within Class 2 and, even if categorised outside a
Class (sui generis) it would be in conflict with Policy ED4 since it is within neither Class 1 nor 3. The test is
whether the proposal would make a significant positive contribution to the core retail function of the town
centre. To assist with this test, Policy ED4 identifies six criteria to apply to Class 2 uses, and these are
considered in turn:

g 7 How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips

Page 138



A dog groomer's has the potential to contribute to linked shopping trips. As noted in the applicant's
supporting statement, customers can leave their dogs off, and then visit shops or cafes in the town centre.
The central location of the premises makes this possible. However, not all dog owners may choose to do
this. In all likelihood, the level of linked shopping trips from customers using the proposed business
compared with those visiting a shop or café in the same premises is likely to be less. While the difference
between this proposal and a retail or café use will not be significant (given that the premises is relatively
small), the net benefit to the town centre is likely to be less than the Class 1 and 3 uses promoted by Policy
ED4.

2 Footfall contribution

The outlet is currently vacant and, therefore, the proposed use is certainly more beneficial to the town by
way of footfall contribution than the current vacancy. Also, the outlet is so small that its overall contribution to
the town centre by way of footfall will, whether it is in Class 1, 2 or 3, or another use will, on the whole, be
relatively small. However, comparing with a Class 1 retail or Class 3 café use, the use of the property as a
dog groomers is, in all likelihood, likely to involve less footfall per day than a retail or café use and that would
not reflect the purpose of the policy. Reducing footfall will have a knock-on effect for other Class 1 and 3
uses,

The applicant has stated his intention to sell goods from the premises (30-40%), which will assist in footfall
numbers, albeit the level of retail trade is not something that could be easily enforced via a planning
consent, if granted. The business will be new, and this suggestion was made in response to Economic
Development's comments. Therefore, it would not be prudent to expect this level of retail trade to be
guaranteed. Itis not considered, in any case, that the proposed use would likely compare as favourably to
the footfall contribution of a retail or café use in the same location.

3. Current vacancy and footfall rates

As the Forward Planning Service notes, the town's vacancy rate has dropped of late and the footfall rates in
the area have, in their interpretation, significantly increased. These rates will, of course, vary in time and are
a useful record of past activity, rather than a strong indicator of future trends. However, they do suggest that
Bank Street, in particular, is in a relatively stable position. As they note, the level of vacancy and footfall in
the town do not suggest that a departure from Class 1 or Class 3 is justified.

4. Longevity of vacancy

The applicant advises that the most recent business closed in October. This application was made in
December. While the speed of this proposal is welcome, and demonstrates that such an outlet in such a
highly central location is desirable, it also suggesls that the potential for a retail or café business to operate
from it has been given little, if any, opportunity. Had the property been vacant for longer, most likely at least
a year, this would provide more weight in favour of a use which does not comply with Policy ED4. However,
as it stands, the unit has not been vacant long and, in recent years, has not had apparent difficulty in finding
new occupiers.

5. Marketing history of premises

The applicant advises that the unit was advertised as far back as May 2017 by means of signage in and on
the shop, thus how it came to his attention. He looked into the retail business as a going concern, but
established that it was not viable or sustainable as it was. This level of marketing is extremely limited. As
the Forward Planning Section notes, there is currently limited interest in the town's larger retail units.
However, that may not be the case for smaller units. The extent to which this unit has been marketed for
potential sale or lease by a Class 1 or 3 business has been inadequate. Evidence of unsuccessful marketing
over at least six months, in local papers and websites, as well as a board on the building, would be the
minimum necessary to demonstrate that no retailer or café operator would be interested in occupying it.

On a related note, the applicant has stated that the ‘well-being' and micro chipping side of the business
should not be forgotten, and points to the potential for the proposal to be an asset to the town. These points
are accepted, and the proposed use will potentially be an asset to the town. However, it comprises the use
of a premises that could potentially provide a stronger contribution in the form of a Class 1 or 3 use which
the LDP positively endorses. There has been next to no opportunity for a retailer or café outlet to do this,

Page 139



and that suggests that the proposal is premature without such marketing having first been properly
undertaken.

6. Ability to retain shop frontage

The shop frontage would be unaffected as no alterations are proposed as part of this application. There is
also the potential to require an internal frontage display since it is the applicant’s intentions to sell goods as
well as provide the principal dog grooming business. The frontage is relatively small and, therefore, whether
it is in retail, café or a professional use such as this, the internal display will not have a significant bearing on
the town centre. In this case, the proposal is not unacceptable as regards its frontage display

Services and parking

The property is expected to have existing mains and water services. It has no dedicated parking, though that
is not a concern for an established town centre property. Bin storage and collection will be expected to
follow existing arrangements.

Flood risk

The site is within the 1:200 flood risk area for the town but is an established premises and the proposal is
not for a vulnerable use. If the application were to be approved, an informative note could refer to the Flood
Protection Officer’s advice.

Amenity

There would be no harm to neighbouring residential amenity or neighbouring businesses from a well
operated business and | note that the EHS has raised no concerns.

Alterations

No alterations are proposed to the building. An informative can refer the applicant to the potential for
alterations to require Planning, Advertisement and/or Listed Building Consent.

Conclusion

The proposal would be a positive contributor to the town centre. However, it would occupy a unit which is
safeguarded for a Class 1 (retail) or Class 3 (food and drink) use. The proposal would be for a Class 2 use
which, though it may include some element of retail, will not comply with Policy ED4. Applying the tests of
Policy ED4, the fact that the property has not been vacant for very long and does not appear to have been
subject to marketing of any significance, suggest that the opportunity given for a Class 1 or 3 use to occupy
it has been insufficient. Though the applicant’s business would be welcome in the town centre, and the effect
of its operation from this outlet will not be significantly different from a Class 1 or 3 use due to its size, it will
not likely generate the same degree of footfall as either of those uses. It is not considered that a departure
from a retail or food and drink use is appropriate or justified at this time. To do so would materially affect
determinations on other applications for Class 2 uses within the Core Activity Area. The proposed
development will not comply with Policy ED4 and other material considerations do not outweigh this conflict.

REASON FOR DECISION :

The proposed development would not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that
the use would not comprise a Class 1 or 3 use; would occupy a premises which has not been sufficiently
marketed for sale or let; and which has been vacant for a relatively short period. The level of footfall
contribution to the town centre will likely be less than that generated by a Class 1 or 3 use operating from
the same location and this would detract from the future viability and vitality of the town centre

Recommendation: Refused

Page 140



1 The proposed development would not comply with Policy ED4 of the Local Development Plan 2016
in that the use would not comprise a Class 1 or 3 use; would occupy a premises which has not been
sufficiently marketed for sale or let; and which has been vacant for a relatively short period. The
level of footfall contribution to the town centre will likely be less than that generated by a Class 1 or
3 use operating from the same location and this would detract from the future viability and vitality of

the town centre

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 141



Page 142



Scottish

Borders
= COUNCIL

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY DECISION NOTICE

APPEAL UNDER SECTION 43A (8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING
(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL
REVIEW PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Local Review Reference: 18/00007/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 17/01704/FUL

Development Proposal: Change of use from retail to dog grooming practice
Location: 38 Bank Street, Galashiels

Applicant: Mr S Wilson

DECISION

The Local Review Body reverses the decision of the appointed officer and grants planning
permission for the reasons set out in this decision notice subject to conditions and an
informative as set out below.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

The application relates to the change of use from retail to a dog grooming practice.
The application drawings and documentation consisted of the following:

Plan Type Plan Reference No.

Location Plan

PRELIMINARY MATTERS

The Local Review Body considered the review, which had been competently made, under
section 43A (8) of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 at its meeting on 16"
April 2018.

After examining the review documentation at that meeting, which included: a) Notice of
Review (including Decision Notice); b) Officer's Report; c) Papers referred to in Officer's

Report; d) Consultations; and e) List of Policies, the LRB considered whether the social
media comments submitted by the applicant in the review documents constituted new

Page 143



evidence under Section 43B of the Act and whether or not this evidence could be referred to
in their deliberations. Members decided that the comments could have been provided and
been in front of the Appointed Officer before the application was determined and that there
were no exceptional circumstances that meant they could not have been provided at that
time. The Review Body proceeded to determine the case without reference to this
information. They also noted the applicant’s request for further procedure in the form of a
site visit and hearing but did not consider this necessary after considering the case and
viewing photographs and plans of the site and surroundings.

REASONING
The determining issues in this Review were:

(1) whether the proposal would be in keeping with the Development Plan, and
(2) whether there were any material considerations which would justify departure from the
Development Plan.

The Development Plan comprises: SESplan Strategic Development Plan 2013 and the
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. The LRB considered that the relevant listed
policies were:

¢ Local Development Plan policies: PMD2, PMD5, ED3, ED4, HD3, EP7, EP9, 152,
IS7, IS8 and 1S9

Other Material Considerations
e Scottish Planning Policy 2014

The Review Body noted that the proposal was to change the use of a former retail unit into a
dog grooming practice and that this would constitute Class 2 Use under Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997. They noted the proposal was for change of
use only and that there were no alterations proposed to the shopfront.

Members principally considered the application against Policy ED4, noting that the
application site was within the defined Core Activity Area in Galashiels, the Policy normally
opposing uses other than Classes 1 and 3 at ground floor level within the Area. As the
proposed use fell within Use Class 2, Members then considered the potential contribution of
the proposed use to the retail function of Galashiels, using the criteria listed in the
justification for Policy ED4 in the Local Development Plan.

In doing so, they noted the consultation response from Economic Development which
supported the proposed use, whilst also accepting the point made by Forward Planning that
it would not be the case that “any use is better than no use”. Members were particularly
influenced by the specific nature of the proposal for a dog grooming business, believing that
this was a specialist service that would be likely to generate linked shopping trips associated
with visiting the use, additional footfall and provide diversity and the type of niche small scale
unit that should be encouraged in the retail centre. This would integrate with the variety of
different small units in Bank Street, some of them non-retail.

Members considered that there needed to be some flexibility when it related to small scale
units, given the pressures within the town centre and the presence of larger stores. Whilst
noting that the shop had not been vacant for long, Members considered it important that the
proposed use would allow the unit to be occupied, to the benefit of the retail centre. It was

Page 144



also noted that there would be some ancillary sales of products within the unit and that the
shopfront would be unaltered.

Having considered the contribution of the proposed use against the relevant criteria under
Policy ED4, the Review Body considered that there would be a positive contribution and that
the change of use could be supported. Members then discussed issues relating to length of
consent and other uses within Use Class 2. They concluded that there was no justification
for a temporary period of consent but that it would be necessary to limit the use to that
applied for, rather than allowing any other use within Use Class 2. Members also required an
Informative note added to the consent to advise the applicant on the potential need for
consent in relation to any new signage or shopfront alteration.

CONCLUSION

After considering all relevant information, the Local Review Body concluded that the
development was consistent with the Development Plan and that there were no other
material considerations that would justify departure from the Development Plan.
Consequently, the application was approved.

DIRECTION

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006.

CONDITION

1. The premises shall be used for a dog grooming practice only and for no other
purpose (including any other purpose in Class 2 of the Schedule to The Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997, or in any provision
equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that
Order).

Reason: To ensure that the use is restricted to that applied for.

INFORMATIVE

1. Please note that as the property is within a Conservation Area, any alterations to the
shopfront, including changes in colour, are likely to need the submission of a
separate planning application. Advertisement Consent may also be necessary for
any new signage proposals.

Notice Under Section 21 of the Town & Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and
Local Review procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008.

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to refuse
permission for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed
development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant
may question the validity of that decision by making an application to the Court of
Session. An application to the Court of Session must be made within 6 weeks of the
date of the decision.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial

Page 145



use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the
owner of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring
the purchase of the owner of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part V
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Signed........... Councillor T Miers
Chairman of the Local Review Body

Date.....ccccnuue. 19 April 2018

Page 146



/T abed

Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot Study



81T abed

Contents

Purpose of Study

Policy Background
e LDP Policy ED4
o Use Classes (Scotland)(Order) 1997

Monitoring of Town Centre Performance

Hawick
e Strengths, Weakenesses, Opportunities, Constraints
o Options
e Recommendation

Galashiels
e Strengths, Weakenesses, Opportunities, Constraints
e Options

¢ Recommendation

Expansion of Core Activity Policy Guidance relevant to other Towns

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Policy ED4 Core Activity Areas in Town Centres

Appendix 2 — Use Classes Order 1997

Appendix 3 — Potential other uses within Core Activity Areas

Page Number

10
11

12
13
14
16

17



61T abed

Purpose of Study

Retailing patterns continue to fluctuate and the role of town centres is changing (e.g increase of online shopping, competition from larger
national retailers). The impacts of the current challenging economic climate are being felt across the country and these trends are not unique
to the Scottish Borders. Planning policy must adapt to these changing circumstances. In recent years the Council has amended the town
centre policy in the Local Development Plan (LDP) to adapt to such changes and whilst these changes have helped it is acknowledged a
further review of relevant planning policy could be tested via this pilot study.

There are specific immediate concerns regarding Hawick and Galashiels where reduced footfall and vacancy rates have had a detrimental
impact on how these town centres have performed. This is of particular concern as Hawick and Galashiels are the 2 largest towns within the
Scottish Borders and have a strategic economic and social significance for the region.

The primary purpose of this study is to examine ways to revitalise and reinvigorate the town centres of Hawick and Galashiels by considering
options which provide more flexibility to LDP policy ED4 (Core Activities in Town Centres) which protects prime retail frontage areas within
these towns. It suggests a number of options, identifying potential advantages and disadvantages for each.

In addition all Scottish Border towns the study states, with reference to considering the longevity of vacancy of premises, that if premises have
been vacant for 6 months and sufficient evidence is submitted which confirms it has been adequately advertised for a substantial period of that
time, then that will carry greater weight in the decision making process. The study also gives guidance to factors to be considered in respect of
any “significant positive contribution” a proposal may have towards the performance of the core activity area.

In order to monitor the impacts of the courses of action it is considered the amendments should operate as a pilot scheme for a trial period of
one year. This will allow the opportunity to draw conclusions as to the success or otherwise of these amendments and the findings can be
brought forward to be considered as permanent actions within the proposed new LDP2. Whilst it would be hoped that any policy amendments
may help vibrancy within these town centres, it must be acknowledged that there are a number of other external factors outwith the remit of the
planning system which will influence their performance.

Policy Background

Retailing is a feature of daily life providing jobs and services in the local community. Retail development in particular can act as a catalyst to
further investment in addition to creating employment opportunities and associated growth. The Scottish Government acknowledges that town
centres are a key element of the social and economic fabric in Scotland. Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) encourages the improvement of town
centres to create distinctive and successful places which are a focus for a mix of uses including retail, housing, leisure, entertainment,
recreational, cultural entertainment and community facilities. The Scottish Government’s Town Centre First Principle 2014 asks that



0GT abed

government, local authorities, the wider public sector, businesses and communities put the health of town centres at the heart of proportionate
and best-value decision making, seeking to deliver the best local outcomes regarding investment and de-investment decisions, alignment of
policies, targeting of available resources to priority town centre sites, and encouraging vibrancy, equality and diversity

The adopted SESplan Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 2013 acknowledges that town centres make a significant contribution to the SDP
area as centres for employment, services and a focus for civic activity and identifies a network of centres.

LDP Policy ED4 — Core Activity Areas in Town Centres

The adopted LDP 2016 allows a wide range of uses within town centres. However, within the central core area of these town centres, policy
ED4 - Core Activity Areas in Town Centres seeks to encourage commercial uses which increases footfall and in turn prevents the gradual loss
of essential town centre activities which are important to the vitality and viability of the town centres.  In order to achieve this policy ED4 seeks
to safeguard shop uses which generate most footfall, and food and drink outlets which are considered appropriate complimentary uses. The
policy does however offer a degree of flexibility which can be applied to decision making across the Scottish Borders for any relevant planning
application. This allows consideration of, for example, how the particular town centre is performing, cognisance of current vacancy and footfall
rates, opportunities for joint shopping trips and the longevity of vacancy and marketing of the vacant retail unit. If a town centre is performing
well there may be little justified need to lose retail premises. However, if there are significant factors which result in town centres
underperforming, there may be a case for allowing an alternative use. This policy approach is carried out by other planning authorities within
Scotland. Policy ED4 can be viewed in Appendix A.

It must be noted that this existing policy ED4 approach relates to ground floor premises only within core activity areas, as a wide
range of uses would be acceptable in principal on upper floors.

Use Classes Order 1997

The operation of activities from buildings and their impacts, both positive and negative, can vary considerably depending upon the nature and
characteristic of each particular use. In the case of activities within town centres certain uses can generate more footfall which will increase the
vibrancy of town centres. Although policy HD4 seeks to protect shop uses, cafes and restuarants, other uses could be supported in some
instances, largely in instances taking account of the current performance of the town centre in question. This consideration requires reference
to understanding of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997 (UCO).

The UCO identifies different uses within specific classes mainly governed by the characteristics of their operations. Appendix 2 highlights these
classes, examples of uses within them, instances where planning consent will / will not be required between the classes and a guidance note.
In general terms any change from one use class to another constitutes development and planning permission will normally be required. Where
the existing and proposed uses are within the same class this does not constitute development and permission normally will not be required.



TST abed

Any uses outwith the specified use classes are defined as non-classified Sui-Generis. Planning permission is required for any change of use
involving a Sui Generis use.

In terms of the use classes within the UCO, shops fall within class 1 and food and drink outlets fall within class 3. Whilst policy ED4
consequently seeks to protect and encourage these uses Appendix 3 suggests other potential uses which could be considered appropriate
uses as part of the pilot study. This will be referred to further within this study report. Appendix 3 also includes consideration as to whether the
frontage would be considered to be active or inactive. Active frontages are generally regarded as better designed and attractive frontages
which can significantly affect public perception of successful town centres in terms of safety, comfort, sociability and liveliness.

Monitoring of Town Centre Performance

The Council carries out a series of annual surveys to monitor the performance of town centres within the Scottish Borders. These include the
monitoring of vacancy rates and pedestrian footfall studies. The most recent outputs from 2017 surveys can be viewed in figures 1, 2 and 3.
The surveys are snapshops in time and can obviously change within a short period of time. The national vacancy rate is currently 12% which is
the same as the Scottish Borders. These outputs are important to take cognisance of when considering planning applications for proposals
within core activity areas / town centres and when considering amendments to new planning policy. These figures are also relevant to this pilot
study. In general it can be noted that Hawick and Galashiels are underperforming. This confirms the interest in seeking an amendment to
current practice in dealing with proposals within core activity areas via this pilot study.

Fig 1 - Town Centre Vacancy rates (winter 2017)

Town Number of units No of Vacant Units %age of vacancy
Hawick 258 37 14

Peebles 144 12 8

Galashiels 243 37 15

Kelso 166 10 6

Melrose 80 6 8

Jedburgh 89 12 13

Selkirk 88 12 14

Duns 61 5 8

Eyemouth 67 5 7




ZST abed

Fig 2 —

Average Weekly Footfall

11000

10000

9000

8000

7000

6000

5000

4000

3000

2000

1000

Average Weekly Footfall 2007-2017

W 2007

Hawick Peebles Galashiels Kelso

Melrose

Jedburgh

Selkirk * Duns Eyemouth




Figure 3 - Overall Footfall per Surveyed Town, per Year, 2007 Onwards
Note: The data in this table shows the weekly footfall count.

Settlement

Hawick
Peebles 9840 | 8980 | 9500 8590 8120 | 7940 | 7140 | 7610 | 7930 | 8100 | 8020 -1
Galashiels | 9650 | 9470 | 8780 8220 8190 | 8380 | 8220 | 7930 | 8180 | 8080 | 7970 -1
Kelso 5050 | 5170 | 5210 4790 4170 | 4360 | 4130 | 4980 | 5550 | 5340 | 5050 -5
Melrose 3540 | 3340 | 3420 3200 2930 | 3430 | 3390 990 3550 | 3370 | 3050 -9
Jedburgh 2920 | 3400 | 3260 2960 2710 | 2900 | 2700 | 2610 | 2460 6

Selkirk * 3690 | 3590 | 3250 2930 2580 | 2660 | 2420 | 2090 | 2350
Duns

1

2

€GT abw

*Figures have been derived from Friday survey as weekend survey clashed with public events

In order to consider the most appropriate means of taking forward the pilot study for Hawick and Galashiels 4 no options were considered for
each town. Retaining the current status quo was not considered to be a realistic given the desire to implement some type of alternative option
as part of the pilot scheme. These options are

1. Reduce the size of the core activity area

2. Retain the core activity area but allow a more flexible approach to potential uses

3. Amalgamation of options 2 and 3

4. Remove the core activity area completely



¥GT abed

Advantages and disadvantages for each of these options will be considered separately for both Hawick and Galashiels

Hawick

Prior to identifying the options for Hawick consideration must be given to the extent of the current core activity area, where the current vacant
units are and what the range of uses currently within the town centre. These are identified in figure 4. Similarly the strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats for Hawick town centre should be identified and considered. These are shown in fig 5. The findings of figs 4 and 5
will be taken on board when considering the range of options.

Fig 4 — Current uses and vacancy rates within Hawick Town centre (winter 2017)

Scottish
o 1:2,000 Borders

Hawick
Town Centre

Key
Retail Unit Classes

CLASS 1 (SHOPS)

CLASS 1 NON-CLASSIFIED (SUl
] GENERIS)

CLASS 2 (FINANCIAL,
[ PROFESSIONAL & OTHER
SERVICES)

[[] CLASS 3 (FOOD & DRINK)

CLASS 3 NON-CLASSIFIED (SUI
L GENERIS)

[ CLASS 7 (HOTELS & HOSTELS)

[JvacanT

w— Core Activity

1= =y Town Centre

] 20 40 60 80 100
— e w— /cters

Repreduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on
behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database
right 2018. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey
. | Licence number 100023423,




GGT abed

Fig 5 - SWOT Exercise for Hawick Town Centre

Strengths

Weaknesses

Reasonably wide range of services within the town centre

A number of run down buildings on street frontages which do not
encourage third party investment

Presence of cultural and community facilities e.g. cinema, library,
Heart of Hawick

Core activity area may be too stringent in controlling ground floor
units in current economic climate

Heart of Hawick is a strong focal point which revitalises attractive
listed buildings as a tourist asset

Perceived view that Hawick town centre requires more
regeneration than any other town in the Scottish Borders

Attractive key buildings within town centre, many of which are listed.

Conservation Area ensures higher standard of built environment

Core activity area may be considered to be too large to be
sustainable for Hawick

Recent retail developments in Commercial Road help stem the flow
of consumer spending outwith Hawick

Lack of cycling provision

One way system has eased traffic congestion and flows

High density and high quality built heritage of buildings offer
redevelopment / expansion challenges

Parking is adequate

Flood risk to town centre

Many vacancies in High St are located within 2no central blocks

One way system does not draw visitors from south-west i.e.
tourists coming into the town from the south

Footfall continues to decline

Opportunities

Threats

CARS scheme will help regenerate built environment within the
town centre

Recent retail developments in Commercial Road may have an
adverse impact on retail outlets in Hawick High Street

Hawick Action Plan offers redevelopment opportunities

Without further action town centre is likely to under perform further

Promotion of Borders Railway |l through Hawick to Carlisle

Flood risk to town centre

Potential future Borderlands / Agency funding

Competition from online shopping which will reduce visits to town
centre




9GT abed

In order to consider appropriate action to address issues with the current core activity area in Hawick the following options are discussed :

Hawick Option 1 — Reduce Size of Core Activity Area (This can refer to a series of options such as, for example, removing areas where
vacancy rates are highest, buildings are most unattractive, etc ....)

Advantages

Disadvantages

Reducing the size of the core activity area would allow some
flexibility to provide a greater no of other uses within the centre
of the town

More emphasis would be placed on protecting the remaining
core activity area for Class 1 and 3 uses

Opportunities to remove some of the longer term vacant
premises and those in a poor condition from the core activity
area may attract a wider range of potential development
opportunities

The Hawick core activity area has been considerably reduced
in size previously and it is questionable whether this further
reduction in size will produce any significant improvements to
the town centre performance

Identifying which parts of the core activity area could be
removed and have resultant clear improvements on the town
centre performance is challenging

Hawick Option 2 — Retain Core Activity Area but allow more flexible approach to potential uses. (This could involve the support for
some Class 2 (Financial, Professional and other Services) which are considered to generate notable footfall, Class 10
(Non-residential Institutions) and Class 11 (Assembly and Leisure) uses — see Appendix 3)

Advantages

Disadvantages

This more flexible approach would allow a wider range of uses
which should help town centre performance

Opportunities to allow a wider range of uses for some of the
longer term vacant premises and those in a poor condition
within the core activity area may attract a wider range of
potential development opportunities

Approved uses may adversely impact on the performance of
the town centre which may have longer detrimental impacts
Course of action may be unlikely to have a significant enough
impact to resolve town centre performance. Flexibility has
already been applied within the policy for a range of uses for
some time but this does not appear to have resulted in any

10




/ST abed

significant benefits to the town centre performance

Hawick Option 3 — Amalgamation of options 1 and 2

Advantages

Disadvantages

e This option may have some benefits in as listed in above
tables

o Whilst this option may have some added values it is
considered given the poor performance of the town centre a
more radical approach is required

Hawick Option 4 — Remove Core Activity Area Completely

Advantages

Disadvantages

e Reducing the core area completely would in essence allow a
greater no of other uses within the town centre

e Whilst there is the threat that complete removal of the core
activity area may cause longer term footfall issues it is
considered some significant action is required in Hawick. To
implement this as a test case via a pilot scheme would seem
an appropriate course of action in the circumstances

e Approved uses may adversely impact on the longer term
performance of the town centre

o Parts of the core activity area are operating well with retailing
units within them

Recommendation

Whilst the advantages of Options 1,2 and 3 are noted it is considered that given the continuing town centre issues within Hawick in terms of
footfall, vacancy rates, etc these options will not be sufficient to see significant or desired changes to the performance of the town.
Consequently it is considered option 4 which would remove the core activity completely for the one year trial period would be the most
preferable for the pilot scheme. Proposals within the removed core activity area designation will now be tested against current LDP policy
ED3 (Town Centre and Shopping Development) which allows a mix of town centre uses.

However, there is a caveat that prevents change of uses to ground floor residencies within the currently defined core activity area. Such uses
are acceptable within edge of core activity areas and upper floors, but whilst they would be a simple more profitable option for owners within

11




8GT abed

core activity areas, they would remove permanently opportunities for commercial activities. It is also considered there should be a general
presumption against anti-social uses within this area which may have detrimental impacts on the amenity of residential properties and other

uses.

Galashiels

Prior to idnetifying the options for Galashiels consideration must be given to the extent of the current core activity area, where the current
vacant units are and what the range of uses currently are within the town centre. These are identified in figure 6. Similarly the strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities and threats for Galashiels town centre should be identified and considered. These are shown infig7. The
findings of figs 6 and 7 will be taken on board when considering the range of options.

Fig 6 — Uses and Vacancies within Galashiels Town Centre

Scottish
o 1:2,500 Borders

Galashiels
Town Centre

Key
Retail Unit Classes

CLASS 1 (SHOPS)

CLASS 1 NON-CLASSIFIED (SUI
= GENERIS)

| CLASS 2 (FINANCIAL,
[ PROFESSIONAL & OTHER
SERVICES)

[[] CLASS 3 (FOOD & DRINK)

CLASS 3 NON-CLASSIFIED (SUI
L GENERIS)

[ CLASS 7 (HOTELS & HOSTELS)

[JvAcaNT

w— Core Activity

o -} Town Centre

0 25 50 75 100
— ) Metres

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on
behalf of HMSO. ® Crown copyright and database
right 2018. Al rights reserved. Ordnance Survey
Licence number 100023423,

12



6ST abed

Fig 7 - SWOT Exercise for Galashiels

Strengths

Weaknesses

Galashiels is a primary retail centre for Scottish Borders

Vacancy rate in town centre is above national average

Strong retail catchment area

Douglas Bridge has high vacancy rates

Wide range of services / facilities in town centre eg cinema,
community hall, library, bingo

Town centre in competition with Tesco, Asda and Currie Road
development

Both national and local retail based interest

Intensely used town centre buildings in Bank St/ Channel Street leave
little opportunity for new build or expansion

New retail developments are stemming flow of shoppers outwith
region

Town centre does not cater particularly well for cyclists

Core activity area promotes vitality and viability of town centre

Core activity area may be too stringent in controlling ground floor units
in current economic climate

Parts of Town centre remain buoyant

Overhaugh Street relatively unattractive in terms of appearance and
amenity

Bank Street continues to be a very vibrant and attractive area for
retailers

Part of town centre at flood risk

Attractive built heritage with Conservation Area. The CA ensures
control and enhancement of townscape

Lack of facilities in town centre to attract tourists

Town centre has attractive focal points, such as Bank St Gardens,
Market Square, Corn Mill Square

Uncertain future use and interest of land between High Street and
“secondary” retail outlet centre at Buckholmside area

Gala Inner Relief Road project has improved traffic flows through
the town

Townscape / town fabric is in a poor condition in some areas (e.g lower
end of Channel Street next to Market Square)

Improved town centre parking provision at Asda, Tesco and Currie
Road

CCTV cameras give feeling of safety and security

Opportunities

Threats

Borders Railway offers opportunities to town centre and tourism
development

Change of shopping patterns restricts some retail investment in town
centre

Forthcoming Tapestry building offers town centre econ

Changes to core activity area retail policy may be counter productive to

13




09T abed

development opportunities and will be a catalyst for further
investment

the opportunities to the town centre the Borders railway and Tapestry
seek to promote

The planning briefs for Burgh Yard and Stirling Street encourage a
range of appropriate uses and offer development opportunities for
investment

Shift of retailing magnet away from High Street towards eastern end of
town centre

Availability of town scheme / regeneration grants would encourage
better design and fabric of buildings

Flood risk to town centre

Fully utilise the potential of Gala Water running through the town
centre as an amenity feature with the possibility of a walk way

Competition from online shopping which will reduce visits to town
centre

Town centre regeneration funding available

In order to consider appropriate action to address issues with the current core activity area in Galashiels the following options are discussed :

Galashiels Option 1 — Reduce Size of the Core Activity Area. (This can refer to a series of options such as, for example, removing areas
where vacancy rates are highest, buildings are most unattractive, etc)

Advantages

Disadvantages

¢ Reducing the size of the core activity area would allow some
flexibility to provide a greater no of other uses within the centre
of the town

e More emphasis would be placed on protecting the remaining
core activity area for Class 1 and 3 uses

o Opportunities to remove some of the longer term vacant
premises and those in an unattractive condition (e.g buildings
at the lower end of Channel Street adjoining the Market
Square) from the core activity area may attract a wider range
of potential developers

o Approved uses may adversely impact on the vitality and
viability of the town centre which may have longer term
detrimental impacts

¢ Many areas of the town centre continue to function well and
there are not considered grounds to remove them from the
core activity area e.g. Bank Street, parts of Channel Street

e Allowing more uses which generate less town centre footfall
activity may adversely dilute the positive impact on the
opportunities the Borders railway and the Tapestry will offer

e The lower end of Channel Street currently has only 1no
vacancy and a more flexible approach could result in loss of
retail units yet would not resolve the issue re poor appearance
of buildings

14




T9T abed

Galashiels Option 2 — Retain Core Activity Area but allow more flexible approach to potential uses. (This could involve the support for
some Class 2 (Financial, Professional and other Services) which are considered to generate notable footfall, Class 10
(Non-residential Institutions) and Class 11 (Assembly and Leisure) uses — see Appendix 3)

Advantages

Disadvantages

e This more flexible approach would allow a wider range of uses
which should help town centre performance — Douglas Bridge
is an area which may benefit from this

o Opportunities to allow a wider range of uses for some of the
longer term vacant premises and those in a poor condition
from the core activity area may attract a wider range of
potential development opportunities

e Approved uses may adversely impact on the performance of
the town centre which may have longer detrimental impacts

e Bank Street remains an attractive and buoyant area for
retailers and there would appear little reason to amend policy
for this area

¢ Channel Street has a high volume of retail outlets

¢ More flexible allowance of uses may adversely impact on the
opportunities the Borders railway and the Tapestry will offer

Galashiels Option 3 — Amalgamation of options 1 and 2

Advantages

Disadvantages

¢ Whilst option 2 has obvious benefits there remains issues with
option 1 in respect of identifying an obvious area / areas to be
removed from the core activity area

e Consideration to be given to ensure this option has no long
terms adverse impacts on the economic benefit opportunities
the Borders Railway and the Tapestry will offer, although it is
likely this option is not of a such a significant scale that it will

Option 4 - Remove Core Activity Area Completely

Advantages

Disadvantages

¢ Reducing the core activity area further would in essence allow
a greater no of other uses within the town centre

e Large parts of the Galashiels core activity area are functioning
well and allowing proposals which would dilute the

15




29T abed

performance of these areas and the knock on benefits they
give to the town centre would be an issue

e This option may be considered unnecessary and that such a
significant change at this time to town centre policy may have
serious impacts on the ability to maximise the economic
opportunities the Borders Railway and the Tapestry offer

Recommendation

Although Galashiels has suffered in terms of reductions of town centre footfall and increased vacancy rates these are not considered to be as
severe as Hawick. Furthermore, given the economic opportunities the Borders railway and the forthcoming Tapestry attraction will generate
great care must be given to ensure that any changes to policy ED4 do not dilute the benefits these hope to offer. Consequently it is
considered changes to the core activity area within Galashiels need a more fine grained policy approach, and so option 4 of removing the core
activity area completely should be ruled out.

The core activity area has previously been reduced in size and given the relatively widespread vacancies across the town centre it is difficult to
pinpoint a particular area where there is a clear justification for removing it from the core area designation. Whilst there are several vacancies
at the pedestrianised part of Channel Street it is likely these will become highly desirable premises in due course when the Tapestry opens in
the close vicinity and it therefore is difficult to justify a case for removing them from the designation.

It is therefore concluded that option 2 to retain the core activity area but allow a more flexible approach to potential uses would be the most
appropriate course of action for the pilot scheme. These proposed acceptable additional uses are identified within Appendix 3.

It is also considered there should be a general presumption against anti social uses within this area which may have detrimental impacts on the
amenity of residential properties and other uses. In order to encourage redevelopment in Galashiels the guidance also proposes temporarily
removing the requirement for Development Contributions within the town centre. This would relate to affordable housing and education
provision. Contributions towards the Borders Railway must remain as they are a statutory requirement. There are no current Development
Contributions required within Hawick Town centre.

16




€97 abed

Expansion of Policy Guidance Relevant to other Scottish Border Towns

Whilst this pilot study has focused mainly on Hawick and Galashiels the study is also considered an opportunity to lay down some further
criteria guidance to be considered for proposals within other core activity areas within the Scottish Borders. These will be relevant to
Galashiels, Peebles, Kelso, Melrose, Jedburgh, Selkirk, Eyemouth and Duns. As this pilot scheme removes the core activity area from Hawick
this will not be relevant to Hawick.

Policy ED4 incorporates some supporting text which allows some flexibility to support some uses in instances where a town centre may be
underperforming. This includes consideration of the following :

How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips;
Footfall contribution;

Current vacancy and footfall rates;

Longevity of vacancy;

Marketing history of premises; and

Ability to retain shop frontage

Of the above listed criteria it is considered further guidance should be given with regards to judging application submissions in terms of the
longevity of the vacancy and the marketing history of the premises. Such further guidance would be useful to both the applicant and the
decision maker. A vacancy which lasts longer than 6 months would be cause for concern.. However, there would need to be a distinction as to
how long a property has been vacant and how long has been marketed. For example, if a property had been vacant for 6 months but had only
been marketed for 2 months, then it may be considered that is not a sufficient time to test the market which could justify an approval of a use
which policy would not normally allow. Consequently it is considered that if premises have been vacant for at least 6 months then it must have
been marketed for a substantial period of that time. Furthermore, satisfactory marketing evidence must be submitted which would be given
considerable weight within the decision making process. It is considered the criteria test should require the submission of the following :

e premises must have been vacant for at least 6 months and adequate marketing must have taken place for a substantial period of time

e premises must have been advertised by at least one property agent who normally deals in commercial property

o details of the nature of the marketing, including for example, details of publications used, distribution area of the publications and press
advertisement

e submission of property selling details which should include property/site, address, size, location, description, services, planning/current,
reference to potential uses, terms, leasehold rent or freehold sale price, viewing arrangements.

17



9T abed

o details of all expressions of interest and all offers received, including rental interest, with explanations as to why such offers were not
accepted. In circumstances where the premises are currently occupied, the assessment should indicate clearly why the occupier wishes
to vacate the premises

e independent valuation confirming the selling or lease price was reasonable (this is to ensure instances where no third party interest was
lost due to unrealistic overpricing)

Policy ED4 states “Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in terms of their contribution towards the core retail function of
the area and will only be acceptable where there is a significant positive contribution to the core activity area”. It is considered this pilot study
would be an opportunity to expand upon this requirement. It is therefore considered that, in respect of a proposed use which would not
normally be supported within a core activity area, the term significant positive contribution should take cogniscance of
¢ the economic benefits of the proposals, including consideration of the general positive contribution to the economic or social vitality of
the town centre
e the fooftfall it is likely to generate
¢ how active the frontage is in terms of how it can help improve the public perception of successful town centres in terms of safety,
comfort, sociability and liveliness

18



G9T abed

Appendix 1

Policy ED4 : Core Activity Areas in Town Centres

1.1 The aim of the policy is to encourage public activity within Core Activity Areas in Town Centres. These areas are defined in the
town centre network identified in Policy ED3 and shown on the Proposals Maps. A wider range of commercial uses
encourages development which increases footfall in town centres and in turn prevents the gradual loss of essential town
centre activities in locations where this is regarded as important to the vitality and viability of the centre.

1.2 In order to support the vitality and viability of core activity areas, acceptable uses are restricted to Class 1 (shops) and 3 (food
and drink) of the Use Class Order. Proposals for uses within Class 2 (financial, professional and other services) of the Use
Class Order would only be acceptable where they contribute positively to the core retail activity of the area and will be
assessed against the following:

How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips;
Footfall contribution;

Current vacancy and footfall rates;

Longevity of vacancy;

Marketing history of premises; and

Ability to retain shop frontage.

1.3 Decision making will be guided by any research or studies on vitality and viability by the Council or
developers.

19



99T abed

POLICY ED4: CORE ACTIVITY AREAS IN TOWN CENTRES

To provide flexibility and maintain vitality and viability in the retail core of the town centre, core activity areas have been identified in Galashiels,
Hawick, Peebles, Kelso, Selkirk, Melrose, Jedburgh, Duns and Eyemouth. In core activity areas a mix of uses appropriate to the town centre
will be allowed. Class 1 and 3 of the Use Class Order are seen as appropriate

uses within core activity areas.

Proposals for uses other than Class 1 and 3 at ground level in core activity areas will normally be refused.

Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in terms of their contribution towards the core retail function of the area and will
only be acceptable where there is a significant positive contribution to the core retail function.

Other uses, such as residential, are encouraged above shops and other town centre uses

20




/9T abed

Appendix 2

The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997

A GENERAL GUIDE TO USE CLASSES ORDER IN SCOTLAND

UCO 1997 Description Change Permitted [see note 2]
Class 1 Retail sale of goods, hairdresser, undertaker, travel & ticket No permitted changes.
Shops agency, post office.

Dry cleaner, launderette, cold food consumption off premises.
Display of goods for sale, hiring out of domestic goods or articles,
reception of goods to be washed, cleaned or repaired (where the
sale, display or service is principally to visiting members of the
public.

Non-classified Sale or display of motor vehicles.

Permitted change to Class 1.

[Sui Generis] [limited to floor area of 235 sq.m. or less]
Amusement centre, taxi business, vehicle hire. No permitted changes.

Class 2 Financial, professional or any other services, including use as a Permitted change to Class 1.

Financial, betting office [which is appropriate to provide in a shopping area,

Professional principally for visiting members of the public].

and other

services

Class 3 Restaurant, cafe, snack bar Permitted change to Class 1 & 2.

Food & drink [use for sale of food or drink on the premises].

Non-classified  Public House [primary use sale of alcoholic liquor].
[Sui Generis]

Hot food takeaway.

No permitted changes.

Permitted change to Class 1

Class 4 Office [other than that specified under Class 2]

Permitted change to Class 6.

21




89T abed

Business Research & development of products or processes [limited to floor area of 235 sq.m. or less]
[see note 3] Light industry.
Class 5 General industry. Permitted change to Class 4 & 6.
General [use for the carrying on of an industrial process other than one [Class 6 change limited to floor area of
Industrial falling within the Class 4 [Business] definition]. 235 sq.m. or less]
Class 6 Storage or distribution. Permitted change to Class 4.
Storage or
distribution
Class 7 Hotel, boarding & guest house, hostel. No permitted changes.
Hotels &
hostels
Class 8 Residential school, college, training centre No permitted changes.
Residential Residential accommodation with care, hospital, nursing home.
institutions
Class 9 House occupied by a single person, or a number living together No permitted changes.
Houses as a family, or as a household of 5 persons or less. Limited use
as a bed & breakfast or guesthouse.
Class 10 Creche, day nursery, day centre, provision of education No permitted changes.
Non- Museum, exhibition hall, public library, display of art. Public
residential worship, religious instruction, social activities of a religious body.
institutions.
Class 11 Cinema, concert hall, bingo hall, casino, dance hall, discoteque. No permitted changes.
Assembly & Skating rink, swimming bath, gymnasium or for indoor sports or
leisure recreation not involving motorised vehicles or firearms.
Non- Theatre. No permitted changes.
classified Motor vehicle or firearm sport.

[Sui Generis]

Guidelines

1. Any change from one use class to another constitutes development and planning permission will normally be required. Where the existing
and proposed use are within the same class does not constitute development and permission normally will not be required. NB the freedom to
switch between certain use classes can be restricted by conditions imposed by the planning consent.

22




69T abed

2. Any uses outwith the specified use classes are defined as non-classified Sui-Generis. Planning permission is required for any change of use
involving a Sui Generis use.

3. A Class 4 Business use is that which can be carried on in a residential area without detriment to the amenity of the area by reason of noise,
vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, soot, ash, dust or grit.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the 1997 Use Classes Order, the General Permitted Development Scotland Order 1992 defines certain
changes between use classes considered to be permitted development which therefore do not require planning permission. This is subject to
the satisfaction of certain criteria as set out in the Order and, as mentioned in Point 1, existing uses must be free of restrictive conditions

5. It should be noted that permitted change of use are ‘ratchet’ changes, i.e. they cannot be made in reverse.
6. This is of course a general guide, and for full details reference should be made to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland)

Order 1997 and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, together with any subsequent
amendments.

23




0.1 abed

Appendix 3

Potential Other Uses within Core Activity Areas (Note - Active frontages are generally regarded as better designed and attractive
frontages which can significantly affect public perception of successful town centres in terms of safety, comfort, sociability and liveliness)

Use Class Specific Use Yes | Comments
Type /| No
Class 2 Betting Office yes | Frontage not too active, online betting options reduce visits, but footfall can be active.

Some linked trips

Bank yes | Generally inactive frontage — footfall decreasing with on-line banking so even less
viable as a contributor — unlikely to receive proposals for new banks. However, banks
still generate flow of regular customers

Beauticians yes | Frontage generally inactive, but depends on business. Footfall not high but regular.
Some linked trip potential. No competition from online, so an assured presence

Nail Salon yes | Frontage generally inactive, but depends on business. Footfall not high but regular.
Some linked trip potential. No competition from on-line, so an assured presence

Estate Agents yes | Inactive frontage, low footfall generally. However some linked trip potential

Photographer no Fairly inactive frontage, low footfall, low linked trip potential

Studio

Dog Groomers no Although potential for linked trips, it has low footfall and frontage can be inactive. No
competition from online so an assured presence

Veterinary no Inactive frontage generally, footfall can be relatively low (though depends on

Surgeries business), potential for linked trips low.

Lawyers no Inactive frontage, low footfall generally. Some linked trip potential. Not a good
physical presence

Financial / no Inactive frontage, low footfall generally. Some linked trip potential. Not a good

mortgage advisor physical presence

Accountants no Inactive frontage, low footfall generally. Some linked trip potential. Not a good
physical presence

Health Centre no Inactive frontage, albeit regular footfall. Some linked trip potential, but not a town
centre use where retail spend is key

Dental Surgeries no Inactive frontage, albeit regular footfall. Some linked trip potential, but not a town

24




T/T abed

centre use where retail spend is key

Tattooist

no

Inactive frontage (generally), with low footfall. Linked trip potential is low. No
competition from online so an assured presence. However, footfall / number of visitors
per day is limited

Non-classified (Sui
Generis)

Public House

yes

Inactive frontage. Can be low footfall during day (though it depends on the business —
food orientated businesses can be a lively daytime contributor), but active in evening.
Its suitability will depend on location

Class 7

Hotel

yes

Considered an appropriate use within Galashiels town centre core activity area

Boarding and guest
house

no

Ok on periphery of core, or above shops, but not as frontages within a core where
active retail spend is key. A contributor, yes, but not in terms of physical presence

Hostel

no

Ok on periphery of core, or above shops, but not as frontages within a core where
active retail spend is key. A contributor, yes, but not in terms of physical presence

Class 9

Houses

no

Houses are acceptable on edge of core activity areas and on upper floors, but would
result in the permanent loss of more desirable footfall uses within core activity areas

Class 10

Créche

no

Very limited benefit to town centre. Not appropriate to a core activity area

Day nursery

no

Very limited benefit to town centre. Not appropriate to a core activity area

Museum

yes

Will depend on context/town and the proposal itself . Could be inactive frontage
(depending on business) but could bring high or low footfall and linked trips — really
depends on the business proposal itself (e.g. tapestry) and the context. Could
encourage tourist related retailing

Exhibition Hall

yes

Will depend on context/town and the proposal itself . Could be inactive frontage
(depending on business) but could bring high or low footfall and linked trips — really
depends on the business proposal itself (e.g. tapestry) and the context. Could
encourage tourist related retailing

Public Library

yes

Will depend on context/town and the proposal itself (a library is likely less appealing
than an exhibition hall for a particular tourist attraction for example). Could be inactive
frontage (depending on business) but could bring high or low footfall and linked trips —
really depends on the business proposal itself (e.g. tapestry) and the context

Display of Art

yes

Will depend on context/town and the proposal itself . Could be inactive frontage
(depending on business) but could bring high or low footfall and linked trips — really
depends on the business proposal itself (e.g. tapestry) and the context. Could
encourage tourist related retailing

Class 11

Cinema

yes

Depends on town — if evening activity important, then a good contributor in that sense.
Not good during the day, largely inactive frontage. Some linked trip potential

Concert Hall

yes

Depends on town — if evening activity important, then a good contributor in that sense.

25




2.1 abed

Not good during the day, largely inactive frontage. Some linked trip potential

Bingo Hall yes | Depends on town — if evening activity important, then a good contributor in that sense.
Not good during the day, largely inactive frontage. Some linked trip potential

Casino yes | Depends on town — if evening activity important, then a good contributor in that sense.
Not good during the day, largely inactive frontage. Some linked trip potential

Dance Hall yes | Depends on town — if evening activity important, then a good contributor in that sense.
Not good during the day, largely inactive frontage. Some linked trip potential

Discotheque yes | Depends on town — if evening activity important, then a good contributor in that sense.
Not good during the day, largely inactive frontage. Some linked trip potential

Skating Rink yes | Not active frontage, but good for evening activity for the most part, and linked trips and
footfall. Will depend on town/location though.

Swimming Pool yes | Not active frontage, but good for evening activity for the most part, and linked trips and
footfall. Will depend on town/location though. Extremely unlikely new proposal

Gymnasium yes | Not active frontage, but good for evening activity for the most part, and linked trips and
footfall. Will depend on town/location though.

Indoor yes | Not active frontage, but good for evening activity for the most part, and linked trips and

Sports/Recreation footfall. Will depend on town/location though.

26




CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION

Agenda Item 6e

Scottish
Borders
COUNC]

Comments provided by Mark Douglas Contact e-mail/number:
Lead Officer mtdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk
Built Heritage & Design 01835 826563 (direct dial)

Date of reply 09/07/2018

Planning Application 18/00764/FUL Case Officer:

Reference Carlos Clarke

Proposed Development

Internal & external alterations

Site Location

37 Bank Street, Galashiels (Shop)

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be made after
consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.

Background and
Site description

The shop to which the application relates is part of the GF floor of a 3 storey later
19" century tenement with 2 shops on the GF and flats above. The building was
added to the statutory list at category C in 2006 as part of the resurvey of
Galashiels Burgh.

The list description notes that the building is a good example of a commercial
building with decorative detailing.

It is noted that the stonework above the shop windows and doors has been
painted in the past

Key Issues
(Bullet points)

e Impact of the alterations on the special architectural or historical interest
of this category C listed building / and impact on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Assessment

Whilst | generally have no objections to the principle of the proposed works, the
current application is light on detail.

External:

The existing external stone shop front has been partially painted in the past and is
currently a mid-green shade. My understanding is that this painted stone will be
repainted a dark grey colour but it is not clear from the application what is the
extent of this repainting; stonework or stonework and door / window frames?

There is information of proposed signage, but it is not clear where this is to be
located; on the glass or above the central doorway??

Recommendation

L] Object [1Do not object | [1Do not object, X Further information
subject to conditions | required

Recommended
Conditions

Page 173



mailto:mtdouglas@scotborders.gov.uk

Recommended
Informatives

Page 174




Consultation Reply e

ENVIRONMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE

To: HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGULATORY SERVICE

FAO: Carlos Clarke Your Ref: 18/00764/FUL

From: HEAD OF ENGINEERING & INFRASTRUCTURE Date: 10" July 2018

Contact: lan Chalmers Ext: 5035 Our Ref: B48/2539

Nature of Proposal: Change of use from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2)
and external re-decoration

Site: 37 Bank Street Galashiels

In terms of information that this Council has concerning flood risk to this site, | would state that
The Indicative River, Surface Water & Coastal Hazard Map (Scotland) known as the “third
generation flood mapping” prepared by SEPA indicates that the site is at risk from a flood event
with a return period of 1 in 200 years. That is the 0.5% annual risk of a flood occurring in any
one year.

The Indicative River & Coastal Flood Map (Scotland) has primarily been developed to provide a
strategic national overview of flood risk in Scotland. Whilst all reasonable effort has been made
to ensure that the flood map is accurate for its intended purpose, no warranty is given.

Due to copyright restrictions | cannot copy the map to you however, if the applicant wishes to
inspect the maps they can contact me to arrange a suitable time to come in and view them.

Notwithstanding, this is a small scale change of use that is unlikely to have a significant effect
on the storage capacity of the functional flood plain or affect local flooding problems, | would
not oppose it on flooding grounds.

| would strongly encourage the applicant to sign up free to the Council’s “Galashiels Flood
Warning Group” which gives an early warning message for predicted flooding at Bank Street
from flood waters overtopping at the Bakehouse / Mossilee Burn. This gives an early warning
for the businesses on Bank Street to prepare for flooding. To do this, please either e-mail your
contact details (Name, Address, Business, Mobile No, E-mail) to
ian.chalmers@scotborders.gov.uk or phone lan Chalmers on 01835 820535.

A number of flood protection products such as floodgates and air-vent covers are also
commercially available for the existing property and details of these can be found by calling
Emergency Planning on 01835 825056 who are able to offer discounts for the products.

Please note that this information must be taken in the context of material that this Council holds
in fulfilling its duties under the Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009.

lan Chalmers
Engineer — Flood and Coastal Management

Page 175


mailto:ian.chalmers@scotborders.gov.uk

PLANNING CONSULTATION

To: Forward Planning Section
From: Development Management Date: 21st June 2018
Contact: Carlos Clarke @& 01835 826735 Ref: 18/00764/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION

Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. | shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 12th July 2018, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 12th July 2018, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.

Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into ldox.

Name of Applicant: Robin Purdie
Agent: N/A
Nature of Proposal: Change of use from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2) and external

re-decoration
Site: 37 Bank Street Galashiels Scottish Borders TD1 1EP

OBSERVATIONS OF: Forward Planning Section

CONSULTATION REPLY

37 Bank Street is located within the Core Activity Area of Galashiels as defined by the Scottish
Borders Local Development Plan 2016. This application must therefore be assessed against
Policy ED4 — Core Activity Areas in Town Centres. In essence, this policy seeks to ensure Class 1
retail units are not lost within town centres as these generate higher footfall which enhances vitality
and viability of the town centre. As a result of the economic downturn Policy ED4 also allows other
complimentary uses within town centres, namely those within Use Class 3 (Food and Drink).

The proposal falls within Use Class 2 and is therefore contrary to the prime purpose of Policy EDA4.
The policy does allow consideration of a number of other factors to be considered and applied on
a case by case basis which in extreme instances may allow consideration of allowing other uses.

The key factors that influence the vitality and viability of a town centre include pedestrian footfall,
the diversity of uses and the number of vacant properties.

Policy ED4 states that proposals for uses other than Class 1 and 3 at ground level in core activity
areas will normally be refused. Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in
terms of their contribution towards the core retail area function of the area and will only be
acceptable where there is a significant positive contribution to the core retail function. Paragraph
1.2 of the fore text to Policy ED4 sets out criteria against which proposals for Class 2 uses within
core retail activity areas will be considered, these are:

How the proposed use would contribute to joint shopping trips;
. Footfall contribution;

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 176



http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/

Current vacancy and footfall rates
Longevity of vacancy

Marketing history of premises; and
Ability to retain shop frontage

The proposed Class 2 Use therefore requires to be tested against the aforesaid criteria.

The Council’'s Town Centre Footfall Survey at this location (point 7) indicates a recent increase up
to 8470 in 2017 from 6850 in 2013. The Council’'s most recent retail survey (Summer 2017)
indicates that the Galashiels retail vacancy rate had decreased 1% to 18% from the figure of 19%
in the Winter of 2016. It is appreciated the proposal will generate a degree of footfall, although by
the nature of the business and the few people that will visit it in a typical day this would be
substantially less than a typical retail unit. Consequently in respect of these matters it is not
considered these are reasons in themselves for deviating from Council policy in this instance.

The Council’s retail survey, which goes back to 2006, shows that these premises have been
vacant since late 2016. No information has been submitted in respect of the marketing of the
premises for the period it has been vacant. It is not, therefore, possible to assess this application
in terms of the marketing history of the premises during this period. Bank Street is the most
attractive and buoyant retail area of Galashiels, being opposite the well maintained and attractive
gardens. Vacancy rates on Bank Street have historically been low.

The Council agreed to approve a Pilot Scheme at a special meeting on 16 July 2017 for Galashiels
and Hawick. This will run for a year and aims to revitalise and reinvigorate the town centres of
Galashiels and Hawick by adding more flexibility to Policy ED4. In Galashiels, a wider and more
flexible range of uses can be supported. The Pilot Scheme, however, notes that
financial/mortgage advisors offer an inactive frontage and low footfall generally. It was therefore
agreed that this type of use would not be permissible within the Galashiels Core Activity Area
under this Pilot Scheme.

Town centre regeneration in Galashiels is a major objective for the Council and these principles
are identified in the Blueprint. If the Council allows a number of uses which do not meet the
principal thrust of Policy ED4 this would defeat the long term aims of generating healthy footfall.
This would have major implications for the aspirations of ensuring a buoyant and healthy town
centre.

It is not considered that this planning application meets the requirements of Policy ED4 (and the
Pilot Scheme) and should therefore be refused.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 177



http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION

Scottish

Borders
COUNCIL

Comments provided by Roads Planning Service Contact e-mail/number

Officer Name and Post Alan Scott ascott@scotborders.gov.uk
Senior Roads Planning Officer 01835 826640

Date of reply 2" August 2018

Planning Application 18/00764/FUL Case Officer: Carlos Clarke

Reference

Proposed Development

Change of use from class 1 to 2

Site Location

37 Bank Street, Galashiels

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be made after
consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.

Background and
Site description

Key Issues
(Bullet points)

Assessment

| have no objections to this proposal.

Recommendation

[ Object XIDo not object | [1Do not object,
subject to conditions

ClFurther information
required

Recommended
Conditions/Reason for
Refusal

Recommended
Informatives

Signed:  DJI

18/00764/FUL

Page 178

Page 1of1


mailto:ascott@scotborders.gov.uk

Agenda Item 6f
List of Policies

Local Review Reference: 18/00018/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 18/00764/FUL

Development Proposal: Change of use from retail (Class 1) to mortgage shop (Class 2)
and external re-decoration

Location: 37 Bank Street, Galashiels

Applicant: Robin Purdie

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS

All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:

Sustainability

a)

Q)

In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,

it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,

it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,

it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,

it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,

it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the
wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,

it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design

h)

)

k)

1)

It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,

it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,

it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,

it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,

it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,

it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,

Page 179



List of Policies

n) it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.

Accessibility

0) Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,

p) it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,

q) it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,

r) it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport

connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,

s) it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.

Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity

t) It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,

u) it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.

Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.

POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within

Development Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following
criteria are satisfied:

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the

social and economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or ‘town
and village cramming’; and

d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its
surroundings; and

e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water
and drainage and schools capacity; and

f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining

properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.

All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design
statements as appropriate.

POLICY ED3: TOWN CENTRES AND SHOPPING DEVELOPMENT
The Council will seek to develop and enhance the role of town centres. A network of centres

and growth of the retail sector will be supported through directing development to the
following district town centres:

Page 180



List of Policies

Duns, Eyemouth, Galashiels, Hawick, Jedburgh, Kelso, Melrose, Peebles, Selkirk

To protect town centres, town centre locations will be preferred to edge-of-centre locations
which, in turn, will be preferred to out-of-centre locations. An out-of- centre location will only
be considered where there is no suitable site available in a town centre or edge-of-centre
location.

The council will support a wide range of uses appropriate to a town centre. Proposals for
shopping development and other town centre developments will generally be approved
within defined district town centres provided that the character, vitality, viability, and mixed
use nature of the town centre will be maintained and enhanced. For the avoidance of doubt,
the council will apply the preferred order of locations set out above to appropriate uses
generating significant footfall, including community and cultural facilities, offices, libraries,
and education and healthcare facilities as well as retail and commercial leisure uses. It will
also ensure that different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations.

Town centre enhancement, including the provision of new retail facilities and complementary
non-retail uses, will be encouraged in centres both within the hierarchy and other centres
which:

a) are council priorities for area regeneration because of special economic difficulties
and/or population decline,

b) are subject to significant retail spending leakage,

c) play an important role in areas planned for substantial development under the

development strategy.

The council will have regard to the following considerations, where relevant, in assessing
applications for out of centre development, including retail proposals:

a) the individual or cumulative impact of the proposed development on the vitality and
viability of existing town centres,

b) the availability of a suitable town centre or edge of centre site,

c) the ability of the proposal to meet deficiencies in shopping provision which cannot be
met in town centre or edge of centre locations,

d) the impact of the proposal on travel patterns and car usage,

e) the accessibility of the site by a choice of means of transport,

f) the preference for commercial centres in the preferred order of locations, including
appropriate retail clusters and parks, over other out of centre locations,

9) the extent to which a proposal would constitute appropriate small scale shopping
provision designed to serve the needs of local rural communities,

h) the location of the proposal. Sites will be located within existing settlements and,

within them preference will be given to applications on vacant or derelict sites, or on
sites deemed to be surplus to requirements.

The council will encourage the use of town centres during the evening provided residential
amenity is protected. Any proposed development which would create an unacceptable
adverse impact on the town centre will be refused.

POLICY ED4: CORE ACTIVITY AREAS IN TOWN CENTRES

To provide flexibility and maintain vitality and viability in the retail core of the town centre,
core activity areas have been identified in Galashiels, Hawick, Peebles, Kelso, Selkirk,
Melrose, Jedburgh, Duns and Eyemouth. In core activity areas a mix of uses appropriate to
the town centre will be allowed. Class 1 and 3 of the Use Class Order are seen as
appropriate uses within core activity areas.

Page 181



List of Policies

Proposals for uses other than Class 1 and 3 at ground level in core activity areas will
normally be refused.

Proposals for other uses including Class 2 will be assessed in terms of their contribution
towards the core retail function of the area and will only be acceptable where there is a
significant positive contribution to the core retail function.

Other uses, such as residential, are encouraged above shops and other town centre uses.
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

a) the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that
would be lost; and

) the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:

) the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,

i) the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,

(iii) the generation of traffic or noise,

(iv) the level of visual impact.

POLICY EP7: LISTED BUILDINGS

The Council will support development proposals that conserve, protect, and enhance the
character, integrity and setting of Listed Buildings.

Internal or external alterations and extensions to Listed Buildings, or new developments
within their curtilage, must meet the following criteria:

a) be of the highest quality,

b) respect the original structure in terms of setting, scale, design and materials, whilst
not inhibiting contemporary and/or innovative design;

c) maintain, and should preferably enhance, the special architectural or historic quality
of the building;

d) demonstrate an understanding of the building’s significance.

All applications for Listed Building Consent or applications affecting the setting of Listed
Buildings will be required to be supported by Design Statements.

New development that adversely affects the setting of a Listed Building will not be permitted.
The demolition of a Listed Building will not be permitted unless there are overriding
environmental, economic, social or practical reasons. It must be satisfactorily demonstrated
that every effort has been made to continue the present use or to find a suitable new use.
POLICY EP9: CONSERVATION AREAS

The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area

which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic

Page 182



List of Policies

character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale,
proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.

The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle
Consent.

Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:

a) the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical
form or state of disrepair, and

b) the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and

c) the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as

part of the townscape.

In cases a) to ¢) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed.

Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for
demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and
design concepts of the proposals.

POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS

Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with
approved standards.

Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not
compromise road safety.

In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

POLICY IS8: FLOODING

At all times, avoidance will be the first principle of managing flood risk. In general terms, new
development should therefore be located in areas free from significant flood risk.
Development will not be permitted if it would be at significant risk of flooding from any source
or would materially increase the probability of flooding elsewhere. The ability of functional
flood plains to convey and store floodwater should be protected, and development should be
located away from them.

Within certain defined risk categories, particularly where the risk is greater than 0.5% annual
flooding probability or 1 in 200 year flood risk, some forms of development will generally not
be acceptable. These include:

a) development comprising essential civil infrastructure such as hospitals, fire stations,
emergency depots etc., schools, care homes, ground-based electrical and

Page 183



List of Policies

telecommunications equipment unless subject to an appropriate long term flood risk
management strategy;
b) additional built development in undeveloped and sparsely developed areas.

Other forms of development will be subject to an assessment of the risk and mitigation
measures.

Developers will be required to provide, including if necessary at planning permission in
principle stage:

a) a competent flood risk assessment, including all sources of flooding, and taking
account of climate change; and
b) a report of the measures that are proposed to mitigate the flood risk.

The information used to assess the acceptability of development will include:

a) information and advice from consultation with the council’s flood team and the
Scottish Environment Protection Agency;

b) flood risk maps provided by the Scottish Environment Protection Agency which
indicate the extent of the flood plain;

c) historical records and flood studies held by the council and other agencies, including

past flood risk assessment reports carried out by consultants and associated
comments from the Scottish Environment Protection Agency, also held by the
council;

(d) the Scottish Environment Protection Agency’s Land Use Vulnerability Guidance.

POLICY I1S9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE

WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:

a) direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or
failing that:

b) negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or
failing that:

c) agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or

temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone
treatment plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:

d) for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing
it can be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to
public health, the environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.

In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.

Development will be refused if:

a) it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment
infrastructure within settlements,
b) it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to

provide for new infrastructure.

Page 184



List of Policies

SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE

Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites,
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required),
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.

OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS
e “Shop Fronts and Shop Signs” Supplementary Planning Guidance 2011
e Town Centre Core Activity Area Pilot Study 2018

e Scottish Planning Policy 2014

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4a Notice of Review
	4b Decision Notice
	4c Officer's Report
	4d Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	Item 4(d) - Papers referred to in report (2)

	4e Consultation
	4f List of Policies
	5a Notice of Review
	5b Decision Notice
	5c Officer's Report
	5d Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	Item 5(d) - Papers referred to in officer's report (2)
	Item 5(d) - Papers referred to in officer's report (3)

	5e Consultations
	5f List of Policies
	6a Notice of Review
	6b Decision Notice
	6c Officer's Report
	6d Papers referred to in Officer's Report
	Item 6(d) - Papers referred to in officer's report (2)
	Item 6(d) - Papers referred to in officer's report (3)
	Item 6(d) - Papers referred to in officer's report (4)

	6e Consultations
	6f List of Policies

